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OVERSIGHT HEARING ON THE REAUTHORIZA-
TION OF THE HIGHER EDUCATION ACT OF
1965

SATURDAY, JULY 27, 1991

Housz OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION,

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
New Orleans, LA.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:05 a.m., in the
Dillard University, Dent Hall, New Orleans, Louisiana, Hon. Wil-
liam J. Jefferson presiding.

Members present. Representatives Jefferson, Hayes, Payne,
Washington, Mink, and Kildee.

Staff present: Tom Wolanin, staff director and Diane Stark, legis-
lative associate.

Chairman JEFFERSON. Good morning. I am pleased to call to
order this hearing of the Subcommittee on Postsecondary Educa-
tion on the reauthorization of the Higher Education Act.

We have here today with us several outstanding Members of the
United States Congress. We do not have, as you can see, two addi-
tional Members who will join us at some point this morning. And
while we are reluctant to stsrt without them, in order to maintain
the timeliness of the conduct of this hearing, we are going to begin
without them.

I want to say how pleased we are to have those witnesses who
are present with us today. Because truly we have assembled a very
good panel. I have been to hearings in other parts of the country,
and this one, I would submit is better attended by Members of Con-
gress than most. I think we ought to be very pleased for the turn-
out that we have here today in the midst of all of the business that
is going on in Washinigton.

I will just make a brief introduction, and I ask these gentlemen,
since each of them is senior to me, and it is with their mdulgence
that I am chairing this meeting today because, as you know, in
Washington seniority means everything. But I want them to speak
first, and I will make my statement when they conclude.

First, I want to recognize Congressman Kildee, who is from the
State of Michigan, who Chairs the Elementary, Secondary and Vo-
cational Education Committee. The title is so long, he has to put it
on both sides of his business card. But he, of course, has been with
the committee for a good long time. He will begin this morning.

Then Congressman Hayes, who sits to my right, from Chicago,
the great State of Illinois, who has served on the Education and
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Labor Committee, and who also serves as a subcommittee Chair-
man on the Post Office and Civil Service Committee.

And Don Payne from New Jersey, who got there just ahead of
me. But, as I said, seniority means everything. He is from Newark,
and he serves on Education and Labor with me, as well as on the
Foreign Affairs Committee.

So, I will ask Congressman Kildee to begin.
Mr. Klima Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. It is good to

be here in New Orleans. I used to travel with our former chair-
man, and a hearing similar to this was down at Morehouse College
a few years ago. I met some of you down there, and I look forward
to the hearing again today.

I have always been convinced that the role of the historically
black college is a very, very important role in the total spectrum of
higher education in this country. For that reason, I always Eupport-
ed this part of the bill, and will continue to support it. But we need
the input from you because education is dynamic. All education is
dynamic, and things change.

You mentioned I was chairman of the Elementary, Secondary
and Vocational Education Subcommittee. I'd like to share a quick
story with you. All of you, as educators, know that we can learn
from our students. I learned from one of my students, Glenn
Girdie, about 30 years ago, when I had been talking for days, weeks
and months about civil rights. I taught Latin. It was pretty hard to
work it into a Latin class. But, I was talking about the time of
Emmit Tills' death. I was talking about the struggle of the Roman
plebeian, comparing that with the American blacks.

One day, Glen Girdie came up to me. He was very blunt. He said,
"Mr. Kildee, put your money where your mouth is. Here is a mem-
bership for the NAACP." So I learned from my students there. I
think we can always learn &or- our students.

I see Mr. Proctor here, who was my fellow in Flint, Michigan,
and I am glad to have you here.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, Mr. Kildee. Congressman

Hayes.
Mr. HAYES. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. To you and our other two

colleagues, Mr. Kildee and my good friend, Donald Payne, from
New Jersey.

If Mr. Kildee had not had mentioned it, I would not have
thought about it. Your mind tends to travel backwards, you know.
You come into a city that you have not been into in quite a few
years. I remember my first visit to New Orleans. I used to be, as
you know, a leader of labor. We had a strike on a levy somewhere
on the Mississippi River, sugar workers. Several of them had been
put in jail. I came down here to tu to extricate them. This is what
I remember about what happened here. I have been here several
times since.

I always do enjoy coming to New Orleans. I think the purpose for
which we are here today is one of the most important missions of
our committee. I want to thank you for inviting me to join you in
what is the last field hearing of the Postsecondary Education Sub-
committee series on the reauthorization of the Higher Education
Act.
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I have certainly learned to value field hearings, because these
hearings were held in my district, and was of immense help in my
preparation and knowlWge. It is important to hear from those that
are directly impacted by the committee's actions. So I welcome our
witnesses here today, and our host, Congressman Jefferson, and
yes, the chairman of the subcommittee, Mr. Kildee. You have been
great additions to the committee, and I appreciate your convening
this hearing today.

I understand that today we will focus our attention on various
titles of the Higher Education Act, including those addressing mi-
nority access issues and historically black colleges. It is a well
known fact that HBCUs have been a consistent beacon of success
in promoting educational justice and opportunity. These colleges
continue to serve as the great social equalizers in an educational
syrstem that has not at all times been responsive to the needs of
African Americans or other minorities.

Again, I hope that we are able to touch upon issues such as mi-
nority teacher recruitment and retention, graduate education, in-
cluding the obvious need for more minority Ph.D.s, international
programs, and of course, student financial aid. I, along with my col-
leagues, are here to learn.

In closing, thank you, again, Mr. Jefferson for your kind hospi-
tality. I look forward to working with you for many more years on
the committee, and I am pleased to be here with you at this histori-
cal university, Dillard University, to address very important issues
concerning higher education.

Thank you very much.
Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, Mr. Hayes.
Mr. Payne.

like to commend you for this field hearing here in your
Mr. PAYNE. Thank you veniiiluch, Mr. Jeffer3on. I, too, would

home city of New Orleans, to cdscuss the reauthorization of the
Hipher Education Act, and particularly Title HI, Part B, strength-
emng black colleges and universities.

I also have to say that I have attended field hearings before. But
this is, indeed, the one that, to my knowledge, has been best at-
tended. I guess that you are just the real magnet to bring all of us
here to this city. If you were not here, we would not be here in
New Orleans. But seriously speaking, it is just a fine place to come.
It is a great opportunity to be at one of the tine institutions that I
have heard about for many years.

In the past, Historically Black Colleges and Universities have
made significant contributions to the Nation and the world. Today,
they are continuing these significant contributions by providing
postsecondary and graduate education for primarily black, many
low income, but Americans who are looking for an opportunity to
work themselves out of their situations.

Even though Historically, Black Colleges and Universities have
produced generations of scholars, doctors, lawyers, and engineers, if
they are to survive in this harsh economic climate, they are going
to have to expand and develop their competitive edge in higher
education academia.

Investments in building superlative infrastructures in historical-
ly black higher education institutions are essential for development
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of quality programs in science and technology, and in providing
greater access and ability to attract contracts and grants from both
the private and the public sector.

It is apparent that we need to encourage more women and mi-
norities to go into the sciences, engineering, apd more technical
fields. This IS the time to concentrate on utilizing and improving
the unique resources that the Historically Black Colleges and Uni-
versities have to offer.

According to the Department of Labor, by the year 2000, 80 per-
cent of the people entering the workforce will be women, minori-
ties and immigrants. In order to provide even better opportunities
for these stu enth, institutions must develop new initiatives in
graduate programs, post-doctoral programs, and innovations in new
technologies.

This will require new legislative and policy initiatives, and addi-
tional sources of funding to support these initiatives. I will support
these institutions, and I will continue to support the expansion of
funding for historically black colleges.

Once again, I commend you for this hearing, and I look forward
to hearing testimony from your witnesses.

Chairman JEFFERSON. I would like to thank each of the members
for their opening statements, and for their participation in this
meeting. We will have CAmgressman Washington, who is from the
State of Texas, and Congresswoman Mink, who is from Hawaii,
who, as I said before, I hope will be joining us fairly soon.

I want to thank Dr. Cook and Dillard University for prmitting
us to hold this hearing here, and fi..2 hosting it for us. They have
done, as you can see, an outstanding job in outfitting the room, pre-
paring the place for us, and in alerting the community to the meet-
ing. We really do appreciate what Dillard has done. And Dr. Tema
also, of course, started out working very hard on this and has done
an outstanding job. I do not know where he is right now, but I
really appreciate his work. There he is in the back.

I see one of our local university president's is here, who I hope
we will see some more of, Dr. Greg O'Brien, of the University of
New Orleans, who has come to join us this morning. We really ap-
preciate that.

Some of the speakers this morning have already mentioned the
historic place that Dillard University holds. I want to add to that
by saying that we meet here today at a school that is regard as a
stellar institution in higher learning in this State, and in the
South, and, indeed, throughout the Nation.

It is a historically black university. Born out of the incongruous
union between freedom and the vestiges of slavery, endowed and
supported by a concerned Methodist in the aftermath of the tragic
war between American brothers and sisters in the South and the
North, it has become more than a shelter from the debilitating
storm of legalized oppression and injustice. It has offered hope and
opportunity to those who thought there would be none, of a more
productive future through education and self-help.

This vaunted status epitomizes the role of Historically Black Col-
leges and Universities, HBCUs, in this country. With meager re-
sources, but great dedication to an enthusiasm for teaching, and an
unusual capacity to inspire learning, these institutions have gone

;I
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about their business of educating often the most disadvantaged in
our Nation, while hampered by perceptions of inferiority and defi-
ciency. Indeed, the historical record provides incontrovertible proof
that without these institutions, the Nation would be far less en-
riched through the talents of African Americans.

Blacks have achieved dramatically at historically black colleges,
and have gone on to contribute immeasurably to the arts, the sci-
ences, the humanities, and the legal, medical, and dental profes-
sions. Names such as Thurgood Marshall, Barbara Jordan, Leon-
tyne Price, Andrew Young, and Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., just
to mention a few among thousands of the most distinguished
alumni of rIBCUs.

The present day role of these institutions is still challenged by
some, in spite of the fact that these now multiracial, multicultural
institutions still remain the higher educational choice of nearly
one-third of all African American students entering 4 year colleges
today. Thus, they collectively hold the greatest concentratio- of Af-
rican American students in our Nation today, and a national focus
upon supporting and enhancing their success with these students
holds the greatest potential for mcreasing the number of black bac-
calaureate degreed Americans.

Congress, through its most recent enactments of the Higher Edu-
cation Act, has already recognized that our Nation, in order to be
its most competitive and productive in the future, must provide
more opportunity for college education to more African American
students. And Congress has alreaciy recopized the fundamental
wisdom of strengthening the capacity of 1113CUs to help to meet
this important national goal, and to realize this important rational
interest.

The time has now come to reauthorize the Higher Education Act.
The question before us today then and the subject of these hear-
inp, is how may Congress and our Nation in this reauthorized
Higher Education Act better address the obstacles facing African
American college students and the needs of HBCUs.

To address the current needs facing our African American stu-
dents, and to better meet the needs of the Nation's HBCUs, I, along
with several other of my colleagues on the Education and Labor
Committee, have introduced the College Opportunity Act of 1991. I
will not try to detail what that act provides. There will be others
today who will talk about it. And I hope that we will have some
discussion on it as we go through the day. In fact, I hope we will
have a great deal of discussion on the bill. But, I do want to invite
those who have come to pay some attention to it and to give it
some focus as we go through our discussions.

I look forward to the comments of the outstanding panelists who
we have assembled today, and who will make presentations to us
and to this committee. I look forward to their comments on this
legislative direction we are trying to take with the HBCUs, and the
addressing of the furthering opportunity for African American stu-
dents through the reenactment of the Higher Education Act.

I look forward to this hearing today with great anticipation for
the results that it will bring to enhance our chances of learning
more, as Qmgressman Hayes has said, about how you, the consum-
ers of what the Congress has done, have responded to the act.

1 ( 1
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What you see that we need to do with it and how we might move
forward from where we are.

Without any further discussion, I took a little license there to
make the statement, following thb lead that I see Mr. Kildee take
in his committee to extend his remarks when he is chairing the
committee. I hope you have indulged me and will indulge me in
that, Mr. Chairman

Mr. Klima. You have done very well.
Chairman JZFFERSON. Thank you, sir. What I want to do is to try

to move this hearing to a conclusion as quickly as we can. To that
end, I want to ask the witnesses, as they come, to summarize their
testimony within no more than 5 minutes. The testimony that you
give, that you are submitting in writing, will be a part of the
record in full. There is no need to recite it all, or to read every
word of it to us, if it should extend beyond the 5 minute time limit.

Of course, I would ask the members of the committee to try and
confine their questioning to about that time as well, unless their
remarks involve some praise for the local chairman. In that event,
that will not count against their time. They may continue as long
as they deeire.

Our first witness this morning is John Childers, the Deputy As-
sistant Secretary for Higher Education for the U.S. Department of
Education. Of course, without objection, I have said the panel will
take the full testimony of Mr. Childers. I would like him to come
forward at this time.

I really appreciate you taking the time to come down to be with
us, and to make your contribution to us this morning.

STATEMENT OF JOHN CHILDERS, DEPUTY ASSISTANT
SECRETARY FOR HIGHER EDUCATION PROGRAMS

Mr. Cinwinis. Mr. Chairman, it is a real pleasure to be with you
and the other members of the committee this morning to testify on
Title III, and other Titles of the Higher Education Act of interest
concerning Historically Black Colleges and Universities.

On a personal note, after the weather we have had in Washing-
ton in the last month, this is the coolest I have been in 4 weeks. So,
T am delighted to come to New Orleans to cool off a little bit.

The Higher Education Act is one of the most important acts, I
think, of interest to Historically Black Colleges and Universities.
The administration is committed to assuring continuing funding
for the Nation's Historically Black Colleges and Universities. In
1989, President George Bush issued Executive Order 12677 to
insure that HBCUs continue to benefit from Federal programs.
There were a number of provisions in that Executive Order, Mr.
Chairman, which I will not detail at this moment. But let nve 1st
say that one of the most important things of that Execitka Order
was the establishment of a continuation of a White House initia-
tive on HBCUs to get Federal funding from all Federal agencies for
Historically Black teolleges and Universities.

To underscore the importance of the reauthorization of the
Higher Education Act, I would just like to note that last year in
fiscal year 1990, HBCUs received nearly $900 million in direct Fed-
eral support. About half of the amount of funding for HBC1J8 came

'1 1
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from various provisions of the Higher Education Act. I think that
is just an indication of the extreme importance of this.

In addition to Title In, there were a number of other prwams
in the Office of Higher Education Programs, from which MCUs
have directly benefitted: the TRIO Program, Student Support Serv-
icee, Upward Bound and Talent Search, as well as, of course, all
the student fmancial assistance programs.

But, among the most important programs in the Higher Educa-
tion Act supporting HBCUS is Title M. This provided nearly $100
million in support to HBCUs in fiscal year 1990. These programs
have been supportive of HBCUs since the Higher Education Act's
inception in 1965.

There were three parts of the four parts of the Title III act which
directly, and specifically, benefit HBCUs. Part B, strenOhening
Historically Black Colleges and Universities. The part of that that
strengthens historically_ black graduate institutions and the endow-
ment portion of Title M.

I will very briefly describe in line, with your admonition, Mr.
Chairman, very briefly, some changes the administration is propos-
inf during reauthorization. We have had the chance only to cliscuss
this a little bit in Washington. So, I will just very briefly outline
these remarks.

Specifically, the administration proposes eliminating the require-
ment that Part B institutions have to state that their principal
mission is the education of black Americans for continuing funding
under Title III. While some Historically Black Colleges and Univer-
sities do reference blacks as a target population, many no longer
have written in in their mission statement that the education of
black Americans is the mission of the university.

Secondly, we would like to permit institutions specifically to use
their allocation of funds under Part B to establish or maintain a
development office for fundraising for the institution. We feel this
would help institutions in their role of seeking other sources of
funds, and is consistent with the goal of strengthening HBCUs.

We also have some suggestions on accountability and reporting
requirements, similar to those required for Part A institutions.
Again, as has been the case in previous reauthorizations, the ad-
ministration is proposing a 10 year length of time for this program.

In the area of historically black graduate institutions, this pro-
gram currently supports five post-graduate institutions. We are
proposing no substantive changes to this program. Again, the reau-
thorization proposal would clarify the fact that the five graduate
HBCUs can receive only 10 years of support under this program.

In the endowment portion of Title III, we are proposing a change
that the level of which endowment grants over $1 million can be
made, there should be at least $20 million in the program before
those larger grants should be made. This would ensure that a
larger number of institutions would have the opportunity to re-
ceive an endowment grant.

We would like to extend priority to applicants under Part C to
institutions that have received grants under Part A or Part B in
any of the last 5 years. We would also like to require applicants to
submit long and short term plans for raising and using their Part
C funds as part of their applications for endowment funds.



8

We would specifically like to authorize a set aside of $10 million
in fiscal 1992, and funds thereafter, specifically for endowment
grants for Historically Black Colleges and Universities, to ensure
that func can go directly to these institutions in that program as
well.

There are a number of other provisions in the Higher Education
Act reauthorization that directly relate to students at Historically
Black Colleges and Universities. If there is any interest I would be
happy to describe them, but we do want to simplify the student aid
fmancial assistance form. We have a number of proposals in the
TRIO area. We would like to strengthen our graduate education
programs for the benefit of underrepresented students in graduate
education. And there are a number of areas in which we think that
our proposals would benefit HBCUs and the students at Historical-
ly Black Colleges and Universities.

I think, Mr. Chairman, in the very beginning of my remarks, I
think that it can be seen the importance of the Higher Education
Act to Historically Black Colleges and Universities. The amount of
ftmds that go to those institutions under the terms of this act, as I
said, about half of all the direct Federal support for them. So, I do
congratulate you on holding this hearing today, and the relation-
ship of HBCUs to the Higher Education Act reauthorization be-
cause, obviously, it is a key act for their support. I am happy to be
with you today.

Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of John Childers follows:]

#1 3
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

I appreciate this opportunity to appear beform you today to

discuss the Administration's reauthorization proposals for the

Institutional Aid programs authorized by Title III of the Higher

Education Act of 1965.

The Title III programs are among the major responsibilities

I have as Deputy Assistant Secretary for Higher Education

Programs. The current funding level for the Title III programs

is $205 million, approximately 26 percent of all the program

funds to be obligated in the current fiscal year for which I am

responsible.

My personal interest in the Title III programs was initiated

by my father's participation as a visiting professor in a Title

III-funded program at Southern State College in Magnolia,

Arkansas, during the late 1960's and early 1970's.

The Title III programs have been an integral part of the

Higher Education Act since its inception in 1965. They have

played a vital role in strengthening the administration and

academic programs of institutions of higher education,

particularly those which serve low-income and minority students.

Currently, Title III authorizes four Institutional Aid Programs:

o Part A -- Strengthening Institutions;

o Part B -- Strengthening Historically Black Colleges and

Universities;

1
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c Part B, Section 326 -- Strengthening Historically Black

Graduate Institutions; and

o Part C -- Endowment Challenge Grants.

A particularly important aspect of the bill has been the

support provided to historically Black colleges and universities;

in 1966 they received $3 million of the $5 million appropriated

for Title III. In 1991, they inn receive close to $100 million.

The rest of the Title III assistance is directed at the schools

e nrolling the largest percentages of disadvantaged and minority

students.

As a result of the critical role which Title III

institutions have played in providing quality postsecondary

e ducation to low-income and minority students, Title III has had

the consistent support of the Congress and the Administration

with the appropriation increasing from $135 million in 1986 to

$203 million today.

I am pleased that the House Postsecondary Education

Subcommittee is holding this hearing on Title III. In the fall

of 1989, the Department of Education held seven regional meetings

around the country to solicit ideas for changes in the Act. In

addition, written comments wore solicited. We carefully reviewed

the 40 comments received as we developed our reauthorization

proposals. These proposals reflect the Administration's

commitment to these Title III program's and the institutions they

serve.

2
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I will describe ach of the Title III programs in which

HBCUs participate and tell you what changes the Administration is

proposing during reauthorization. Later in my testimony I will

also briefly highlight some of our other reauthorization

proposals which would benefit Historically Black Colleges and

Universities.

Itranathaning_zittpricAnsulniversities

The Strengthening Historically L.Ack Colleges and

Universities program helps HBCUs to improve their academic

programs and management. Funds provided under this program may

be used to:

o purchase, rent, or lease scientific or laboratory equipment

for educational purposes;

o construct, maintain, renovate, or improve instructional

facilities;

o support faculty exchanges and development;

o provide academic instruction in disciplines in which Black

Americans are underrepresented;

o purchase library and other educational materials;

o provide tutoring, counseling, and student services designed

to improve academic success;

o support administrative management, including the acquisition

of equipment for use in strengthening funds management; and

o support joint use of facilities.

3
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Up to 50 percent of the funds may be used to construct or

maintain instructional facilities.

Funds are allocated among HBCUs by a formula based on the

number of Pell Grant recipients enrolled, the number of

graduates, and the percentage of graduates who are attending

graduate and professional school in degree programs in which

Blacks are underrepresented. The statute provides for a minimum

$350,000 allotment for each eligible institution.

Since 1987, 98 historically Black colleges and universities

have received $351.1 million. In fiscal year 1988, the funds

provided were used as follows:

Distribution of Fiscal Year 1988 Title III
Activity

Activity Amount

-- Part B Funds by

percent of Total
Scientific Equipment $ 7,364,755 12%

Construction & Maintenance 7,480,131 12%

Faculty Exchanges 3,233,745 5%

Academic Instruction in
Disciplines in Which Blacks
are Underrepresented 23,431,128 37%

Library and Other
Educational Materials 3,252,008 5%

Student Services 12,554,536 20%

Project Administration 6,271,197 9%

Total Federal Funds $63,587,500 100%

4
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We are proposing a number of changes to Part B during this

reauthorization of the Higher Education Act. These changes

include:

a Eliminating the requirement that Part B institutions

continue to have as their principal mission the education of

Black Americans. We are concerned that this requirement

could violate Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

o Permitt:ng institutions to use their allocation of funds

under Part B to establish or maintain a development office.

This change would support institutions in their efforts to

seek corporate, foundation, alumni, and other private funds

and is consistent with the goal of making participating

institutions less dependent on Federal funding.

o Enforcing accountability by requiring that institutions

establish measurable performance goals and that they

demonstrate satisfactory progress toward those goals as a

condition for receiving a continuation award. Institutions

would be required to document that funds provided under this

program are measurably improving the quality of their

programa and administration.

o Requiring Part B institutions to submit the same application

and performance reports as Part A institutions.

o Carrying out congressional intent by stipulating that

institutions may receive up to 10 years of support under

Part B, with fiscal year 1987 as the first year of this 10

year period.

5
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nrenathenina Historicallv Black Graduate Institutions 01BGIsi

The Strengthening Historically Black Graduate Institutions

program provides support to five postgraduate institutions:

Morehouse School of Medicine; Meharry Medical School; Charles R.

Drew Postgraduate Medical School; Clark Atlanta University; and

Tuskegee Institute of Veterinary Medicine. Awards under this

program are limited to $500,000 unless the institution agrees to

match the funds prcvided. A minimum of $3 million under this

program is set-aside for Morehouse School of Medicine. The funds

may be used for the same purposes as the Strengthening

Historically Black Colleges and Universities program except that

funds may also be used to establish an endowment or a development

office to increase contributions from private sources. Since

1987, the five historically Black graduate institutions have

received $48.6 million under this program.

We are proposing no substantive changes to the program. Our

reauthorization proposal would clarify the fact that the 5 HBGIs

can receive only 10 years ot support under this program, with the

first year of support being 1987, as is the case with the

undergraduate Part B program. The change is proposed to ensure

that these institutions do not come to depend on Federal support

alone and to encourage them to expand their base of support.

Endowment Challenaa Grants

The Endowment Grant program proviLles funds to institutions

eligible to receive grants under either Parts A or B to establish

6
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or increase their endowment funds. In general, an institution

may receive only two endowment grants in any five-year period.

Individual grants may not exceed $500,000 pr be less than $50,000

and must be matched on a dollar-for-dollar basis. However, if

the-appropriation for the Endowment Grant program exceeds $10

million, grants of $1 million or more are permitted with the

institution providing a match of one-half the size of the grant.

Recipients of these larger grants may not reapply for a period of

10 years. The grant and matching funds must be invested in low-

risk securities. The institution may not spend the endowment

corpus for 20 years but may use one-half the income earned on

institutional expenses. Since the Endowment Grant program was

first authorized in fiscal year 1984, 198 institutions have

received 238 grants in the amount of $114.6 million.

We are proposing a number of changes to Part C during this

reauthorization of the Higher Education Act. These changes

include:

o Repealing the expired "Challenge Grant" program. Funds ware

last provided for new awards under this program in fiscal

year 1984 when the Endowment Grant program was authorized.

o Raising the level at which Endowment Grants over $1 million

can be made from $10 million to $20 million. This change

would ensure that a larger number of institutions would have

a greater opportunity to receive an Endowment Grant.

o Requiring applicants to submit long and short term plans for

raising and using Part C funds as part of their applications

7
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for endowment challenge grants. This will encourage

planning by applicants and will promote accountability for

the use of Part C funds.

o Extending current priority to applicants under Part C to

institutions that have received grants under Parts A or B in

any of the last five fiscal years. This would ensure more

equitable treatment of grantees than under current law and

is consistent with our proposal under Part A to limit

institutions to one grant.

o Authorizing the appropriation of $10 million in fiscal year

1992 and such sums thereafter for Endowment Grants for

HBCUs. This change is consistent with the Administration's

goal of increasing support to these vital institutions.

General Provisions

In addition to the changes proposed under each of the

specific programs, a number of other changes are proposed to the

General Provisions (Part D) of Title III. These changes include:

o Repealing the waiver exempting Title III institutions from

the non-Federal matching requirements under programs

authorized by Titles II, IV, VII, and VIII of the Higher

Education Act. Giving this waiver to Title //I institutions

is inappropriate since these institutions and their students

directly benefit from participation in these other programs.

By requiring these institutions to comply with the non-

8
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Federal matching requirements, more dollars are then

available for student aid and other purposes.

o Eliminating certain waivers of the quantitative criteria

used to determine institutional eligibility. These waivers

unnecessarily expand the pool of eligible institutions to

include some that do not need Title III support.

We believe that these and other changes proposed for Title

III will simplify program administration, improve targeting of

limited Federal assistance to institutions with the greatest need

of assistance, and ensure accountability.

Impact of other Reauthorization Proposals On MOGI

A number of the Administration's reauthorization proposals

for programs other than Title III are likely to benefit

historically Black colleges and universities and their students.

Among these proposals are:

o simplifying for students the process of applying for Federal

student financial assistance by using one need-analysis

system;

o raising the maximum Pell Grant a student may receive from

$2,400 to $3,700;

o increasing the amount that students can borrow under the

Stafford Loan program;

o focusing resources provided under the Student Support

Services program toward institutions with the greatest need

9
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as demonstrated by low educational and general eXpenditures

per full-time equivalent student; and,

o increasing emphasis on outreach programs through formula

.grants to States from which HECUs can receive support.

Thank you for this opportunity to testify in support of the

Department's reauthorization proposals for Title II/ of the

Higher Education Act. I will be happy to respond to any

questions you may have.

10
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Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you very much. We are very appre-
ciative of your presence here and of the comments you have made
supportive of I-MCUs, and particularly of reauthorizing the Higher
Education Act to include in many ways enhancing and strengthen-
ing the role of HBCUs and what they are able to do with respect to
the students they are trying to educate.

I want to ask, if I might, for clarification on one point that you
made with respect to which, you know, there may be some dis-
agreement on page five of your testimony. I do not know how many
historically black colleges now state as a part of their mission that
their principal mission is the education of 131ack Americans. You do
not quibble with the fact that it may end up that the HBCUs are,
in fact, providing opportunities for a majority of African Ameri-
cans. Your concern is with the statement that that is the missions
of the universities. Am I clear on that? Is that what you are
saying?

Mr. CHILDERS. That is very correct, Congressman. I do not quib-
ble at all with support for these .institutions which are educating
African Americans. I hope I have made that clear in my statement.

The only concern is two words that were added to the law in
1986 in the reauthorization proposal at that time for Part B. It said
that in order to receive support under Part B of Title III a HBCU
must show that its_principal mission was and is the education of
black Americans. There are a number of institutions, HBCUs,
which no longer have written in as their mission statement that it
is for the exclusive education of black Americans.

There is concern among the lawyers, and among some HBCUs at
the time in 1986 or 1987, that there might be legal problems be-
cause a number of state constitutions do not allow colleges to have
a specific designator like that in their mission statements in the
colleges. I am happy to hear from the presidents and other officials
of I-MCUs here today. I can only point out that in 1986, when this
was put into law, a number of HBCUs themselves raised questions
about what this meant in terms of the applicability of the law to
them.

But I do point out, very clearly, that it does not in any way take
away from the Federal Government's continuing support of
HBCUs. I think this is more a question to make sure that the mis-
sion statements do not run afoul of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964.

Chairman JEFFERSON. I will be interested to see what the Presi-
dent's panel and others have to say about that statement. I just
wanted you to clarify so that we could understand your testimony.

With respect to the graduate schools, you know that there is a
strong proposal from many of the HBCUs, and of course, from the
United Negro College Fund, for some additions to be made for
graduate schools along those that are listed there, to add to the
list, in effect. And of course, the idea, as we discussed earlier, is to
focus on increasing the number of graduate degreed black Ameri-
cans in various fields that are of particular concern. The interest
is, of course, where there are these concentrations of black Ameri-
cans to put a real push and an effort there because that is the rich-
est soil, if you will from which might be produced these graduate
degree holding blaa Americans.
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And to that end, there is a strong interest in adding to the list a
number of institutions of five or six. I really believe it is five be-
cause that is an alternative in one proposal. It is really five. I
would like to ask that the administration not be completely closed
out on that. I understand where you are starting off. I hope we can
have some discussion about what sense it makes to look further
than you have gone so far. I would like you to comment on that.

Mr. Cilium& Well, CoL4ressman, I would like to think that in
this reauthorization of the Higher Education Act, this timenei-
ther you nor I was involved in the last one. But I certainly look
forward to an open and continuing dialogue on these issues with no
closed minds involved. I would like to just ask that perhaps other
off-wit...As could address during the course of the day as to the ques-
tion of how we define which graduate schools or graduate programs
should be eligible.

The administration's concern is that where does this end. There
are five schools currently authorized. A prowsal is for five, as you
pointed out. And again the United Negro College Fund's proposal
said, it is not just institutions, but it said of Texas Southern, I be-
lieve it was, "Well, we might designate the school of law or the col-
lege of pharmacy." Which means that you may not be talking of
institutions as a whole, but p, ()grams within institutions.

There are a number of programs within graduate institutions,
obviously. According to a profile of the Nation's Historically Black
Colleges and Universities put out by the National Associwion for
Equal Opportunity in Higher Education, NAFEO, earlier this year,
indicates that there are a number, perhaps as many as 39 HBCUs,
with graduate programs. So, the question is, is this never ending,
or how do we define which schools should be eligible. And I just
leave that as a question. I certainly would be happy to work with
you on it during the course of the year.

Chairman JEFFERSON. I think that is a point worthy of address-
ing to clarify exactly what is meant, and perhaps even to make a
choice now, with respect to Texas Southern, as to what is proposed
to be included and what is not. It may be that that is a way to go. I
appreciate your attitude that we may discuss these matters, and
that we will leave them as things to be dealt with. And each of us
approach it with an open mind so that we might come to some con-
clusion to reach the objective that we both have in mind here.

Mr. Cmumas. Mr. Chairman, I might point out one possible al-
ternative for your consideration, a more generic alternative to
think about in reauthorization, as opposed to designating specific
institutions or specific programs. You m4litt_think about some way
of recognizing the graduate students at CUs in the formula for
granting them funds under Part B, basically the undergraduate
formula at the present time.

Right now, Part B funds are based on the number of grant recipi-
ents, the number of students that graduate, and the percent of
graduates who are attending graduate or professional schools. You
might think about adding specifically in the formula, with in-
creased funding under Part B, the number of graduate students ac-
tually enrolled at the HBCUs. That would increase the formula for
the contributions to HBCUs that have graduate programs. It would
be generic as opposed to designating specific schools, and would

2 6



22

benefit all of them. That is not the official administration position
at the moment, but it is one of the things we could think about
during reauthorization.

Chairman JEFFERSON. Are there other questions of Mr. Childers.
Mr. Kildee?

Mr. Kum:. Mr. Childers, a number of organizations have recom-
mended that the minimum grant under Part B of Title III be
raised from $350,000 to $500,000 for Historically Black Colleges and
Universities. How do you react to that recommendation to raise
from $350,000 to $500,000?

Mr. Cimino. The original administration position is to leave it
at $350,000 at the present time. I think, generally, the question is
one of equity and size. The MICUs are widely varying in size, some
of them very small. It is just a question of figuring out the ratios
and the equities, in a sense, the per student contribution to those
schools. I have no really fixed opinion one way or another, but I
just think you possibly have to look at the ratios of funding that
would be provided to schools based on their size.

Mr. Klima. The small colleges do have a fixed cost. Despite the
fact they are smaller, there are certain fixed costs that am, univer-
sity has. It would seem that just inflation alone might indicate
some raising of that minimum amount.

Mr. Ciinangas. Yes, that is possible. It is also not extremely costly
ither, Congressman Kildee. I believe there are only 15 HBCUs at

qui present time that are in that range of between $350,000 and
;500,000. Even if they needed a maximum jump to $500,000, it
would only be $2,225,000 to increase that minimum.

Mr. Knzon. To those colleges and universities, that could be very
important to them. But it would not have a significant effect on
our fiscal situation here in Washington.

Mr. Cammuts14.8n1ree.
Mr. Mum. you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, Mr. Kildee.
Mr. Hayes?
Mr. HAYES. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You do not necessarily

have to follow seniority.
Chairman JEFFERSON. I do not want to get into trouble, Mr.

Hayes.
Mr. HAYES. I noticed from Mr. Childers' background, heritage

makes you somewhat interested in the zeal of education. Your
father, I notice, participated as a professor in a Title III funding
program at Southern State College in Magnolia, Arkansas.

Mr. CHILDERS. Yes, sir.
Mr. HAYES. So you sort of pick up the mount from your father, I

guess.
Mr. CHILDERS. Well, ; have always had a very deep interest in

this program, going back to the late sixties when my father was in
Magnolia, Arkansas. It used to be called Magnolia A&M. At that
time, it was Southern State College. But he was doing, at that time,
what I know the members of this panel are trying to think about
for minority groups. He was down there to help the faculty achieve
advanced degrees and be supportive of them. A very large part of
his role there at that time was faculty development, and providing
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support for younger faculty going on and getting their Ph.D. de-
grees in various fields.

And I know that is one of the themes we really want to talk
about in reauthorization this year. It is how to get more underre-
presented minority groups, who are underrepresented in various
fields, to get them to the top graduate degrees in those fields so
that they can go into the faculty and research opportunities of the
future. So, I do have a deep interest in this program, Congressman.

iMr. HAYES. I know that you know that, at least n some of our
traditional black colleges, there has been a declire in enrollment of
students. I am particularly concerned in the low income minority
students who find an access to higher education on a decline. I
know that you focus your attention on Title III, which is primarily
concerned with institutional help, which I am for too. As you know,
I think I have posed this question, or someone did, at hearings we
have had in Chicago, not in Chicago, but in Washington, on higher
education.

My specific question goes to the question of student aid, which I
think is a part of your field, although you do not deal with it in
this statement of yours here. Would fo:Ri favorhave you thou/gilt
seriously since we have talked about it so much and since the Pell
Grant program is under siege. You may not agree with me, but I
think it is. Have you thought about making the Pell Grants an en-
titlement?

Mr. CHILDERS. I would be happy to answer that, Congressman.
First, as a note of background to agree with you. All statistics I
have seen show that socioeconomic status of students starting out
is one of the key factors as to their access to continuation and suc-
cessful completion of postsecondary education. Lower socioeconomic
students of all races do not rmish and complete as well as those of
a higher economic status. Therefore, student financial assistance is
critical to their success in postsecondary education.

That is why the administration has taken one of the two steps
toward the goal you were asking about this morning. The adminis-
tration has specifically requested that the maximum Pell Grant be
increased dramatically for the lowest socioeconomic students, based
on financial need. Secretary Alexander, in his testimony before
your committee, did not go so far as to suggest that the Pell Grants
program be made an entitlement. I am, obviously, constrained by
that position.

Mr. HAYES. I understand that, but I thought with your back-
ground you may be able to influence Secretary Alexander.

Mr. Cimmats. Well, I will do my best, Congressman, in working
on reauthorization of the Higher Education Act. When this com-
mittee's hearings conclude in the near future, I expect there will
be a lot of interchange between the Department and members of
the committee, such as yourself, on these issues over the next few
months. My understanffing is that the committee would like to
mark this up and complete action

Mr. HAYES. We would very much like to.
Mr. CHILDERS. [continuing] before the end of the year. So, I do

hope that we will have a number of opportunities to discuss these
issues in the next 2 or 3 months.

Mr. HAYES. All right. Thank you very much.
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Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, Mr. Hayes.
Mr. Payne?
Mr. PAYNE. Thank you. Just in dealing with that same question

about entitlement and the truly needy. When we get into the ques-
tions that we are starting to hear that the middle class students
are unable to go to college, and so forth, do you see brewing the
political or the clash with the limited amount of funds because of
the budget summit agreement of last year? Do you see a battle now
becoming of the truly needy persons who woulsi fall into the enti-
tlement class, if there were one, and the so-called hurting middle
class who are unable today, they claim, to afford a college educa-
tion?

Mr. Cmumas. Well, I think, Congressman, we are seeing the an-
guish of restricted funding and caps on domestic discretionary
spending. Just reading the record of debate on the House Floor on
the Education Appropriations Bill, the members concerned about
the need to reduce funds in certain areas to fund other areas. A
number of members were very unhappy about reductions in the
Low Income Home Energ/ Assistance Program, which was reduced
by the Department. Mr. Natcher, I believe, said that had to be done
to fund health and education. I believe even you, yourself, ex-
pressed concern about the reductions in that program.

Within the Higher Education Program itself, yes, there is always
that concern with limited funding. I think that came out clearly at
one of the very first hearings when Secretary Alexander testified
before you: and proposed that the Pell Grants be focused more on
the lower income students. A number of members of your commit-
tee expressed concern about what that might do to the eligibility of
students at a slightly higher income level. So, I do think it is of
great concern, and will continue to be a prime topic of debate
during this coming year.

Mr. PAYNE. Although we are dealing with higher education, in
order for students who are most disadvantaged to be able to suc-
ceed in college, we have some of the program.. Upward Bound and
the Talent Search. Are there any steps to increase that funding so
that students at a younger age, elementary school age, could be en-
hanced so that they will be better able to handle the college level
once they get there?

Mr. Cmuncas. Yes, sir. It is absolutely critical that we do that
because to start thinking about college opportunities only at the
college level is much too late. For a number of years the programs
administered in the Office of Higher Education Programs, where I
am, have reached down to the high school. Starting last year, in an
initiative that we started in the Office of Higher Education Pro-
grams, our programs that we operate through institutions of higher
education are now reaching down as far as the seventh grade in
trying to encourage students to achieve in secondary school, in
junior high, and high school, to get information about collwe op-
portunities and to prepare themselves. It is absolutely criticW that
those programs be enhanced at that level.

I am very pleased to note that one of the growth programs in the
Higher Education Act for several years that both the administra-
tion and the Congress have been extremely supportive of is the
TRIO Programs. Again, this year there is a very nice increase that
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is proposed, particularly in the House Appropriations Committee,
for these access programs. But, it is a main focus of the Depart-
ment in this area.

Also, as you well know, Congressman, the whole thrust, or a
major thrust of Secretary Alexander in America 2000, is to im-
prove secondary education in this country, to prepare more young
men and women in postsecondary education. So, I absolutely agree
with you that that is a critical area that we need to continue to
focus on, not just on postsecondary education.

Mr. PAYNE. Thank you. Just following a very quick question to-
tally out of the line of questioning that I have had. Under the Gray
amendment, AID is supposed to attempt to have goals of 10 percent
of foreign aid that is spent abroad to go to minority and historical-
ly black colleges for educational programs, and so f'orth. Has your
Department aggressively taken on a program of attempting to
inform historically black colleges about the 10 percent foreign aid
set aside for minorities and historically black colleges? How suc-
cessful has that been, if you know that off hand?

Mr. Ciumeas. As I mentioned vomr briefly in my statement, the
White House initiative for Historicgly Black Colleges and Univer-
sities, which is housed in the Department of Education, has as its
major goal, or a major goal, the stimulation of Federal funds flow-
ing from other Federal agencies to Historically Black Colleges and
Universities. According to their preliminary, and I do not have the
final results yet, Congressman, official, but according to their pre-
lhninary statistics in fiscal year 1990, of $146 million that AM
awarded to colleges and universities, $20.6 million of that, or 14
percent, was awarded to HBCUs this last fiscal year. If these pre-
liminary figures are adequate then, indeed, AID has met the 10
percent goal.

Mr. PAYNE. Thank you very much.
Mr. CHILDERS. Thank you.
Mr. PAYNE. How did you have that information? You did not

know I was going to ask that question.
Mr. CHimuts. Well, I was to be accompanied today by Mr.

Robert Goodwin, who is the Executive Director of the White House
Initiative. He is giving a commencement address that he had long

aflss

oi committed to, and could not be here. But, I asked him, I said,
case the Congressmen ask me some questions, what other agen-

cies are doing that that you are working with? Is there anything
that you can give me?" So, Mr. Goodwin just happened to give me
this piece of pa_per y/hich I brought with me today.

Mr. PAYNE. Thank you. I am veu impressed. I tell you.
Chairman JIMRSON. Mr. Childers, again, we would like to

thank you for your testimony. You have added a method to our dis-
cussion today. You have also added a new reason for coming to
New Orleans, which is one to cool off. That is one we have not
heard before.

Mr. Cimanzas. Well, it is a great pleasure, Mr. Chairman. I ap-
predate this opportunity and the many courtesies of you, personal-
ly, and the committee. This has been, as you noted, a well-arranged
and organized hearing, and I have been delighted to be with you
today.
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Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you very much. We look forward to
talking with you further.

Mr. CHILDERS. Thank you.
Chairman JEFFERSON. The next panel to present testimony is a

panel of presidents, as we have it listed here on the program, with
Dr. Cook, Dr. Fort, Dr. Moore, Dr. Hack ley, Dr. Turner, and Dr. Ro-
berson. If you would please take your places at the table.

The way we would like to proceed, as I announced earlier, is if
you would just confine your remarks to 5 minutes or less, if you
can do that, and summarize your testimony. We will begin with Dr.
Cook, and go the length of the table, after which we will ask ques-
tions. We will hold off questions until everyone has given their tes-
timony.

Again, Dr. Cook, thank you so much for what you have done to
help put these hearings together, and help us to get them orga-
nized. Please, proceed with your testimony.

We are being joined, if I may, before you begin, by Congresswom-
an Mink of Hawaii, and Congressman Washington. We will, per-
haps, let them get settled, and Congressman Washington is never
at a loss of words, nor is Congresswoman Mink. They never need to
get settled. I suppose they probably came in ready to talk.

We have had Mr. Childers testify this morning already. Mr.
Washingt pn and Mrs. Mink, if you would, please give a statement
at this point. Then we will hear from the panel that is assembled
before us. You have not missed very much yet, but you missed a
good witness. We will bring you up to date.

Mr. WASHINGTON. I will yield to the beautiful lady. I am from
Texas.

Mrs. MINK. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I am so sorry
we are late, but you never can depend on the airlines to get you
delivered on time. We had hoped to be here about a half hour ago,
but it was some delay at the airport. I am really delighted to be
here, and to have an opportunity to hear all your distinguished
witnesses on the very, very important subject of the opportunities
for young people in America to achieve the heights of their abili-
ties and talents through programs that we initiate in the Congress
that will support our colleges and our higher educational institu-
tions.

I know that you have many important witnesses here, Mr. Chair-
man, and we will learn a great deal. We will get some new ideas
and new initiatives that will be supporting your leadership in this
bill.

Thank you very much for inviting me to this hearing.
Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you very much for coming. Mr.

Washington?
Mr. WASHINGTON. Mr. Chairman, let me not delay the proceed-

ings. There are some things I want to say about you, in particular.
Chairman JEFFERSON. We are giving folks 5 minutes or so to

make a statement. But if it involves praise of the Chairman, then
you may continue without any limit whatsoever.

[:!autiter.]
Mr. WASHINGTON. As long as I desire?
Chairman JEMIRSON. Yes, sir.

31 ,
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Mr. WASHINGTON. May I reserve that time until we get ready to
close, Mr. Chairman? I would just like to say that I have been im-
pressed by you, and I find out how impressed the people of the
community are. They have named a parish after you.

[Laughter.]
Mr. WASHINGTON. I tell you, where the airport is, I was coming

in, and I saw it. I am not surprised.
Chairman JEFFERSON. That is just the beginning.
[Lauil_iter.]
Mr. WASHINGTON. I am not surprised.
Chairman JEFFERSON. There is more to come, Mr. Washington.
[Laughter.]
Chairman JEFFERSON. Mr. President, we would like to hear from

you, Dr. Cook.

STATEMENT OF SAMUEL DUBOIS COOK, PRESIDENT, DILLARD
UNIVERSITY, NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA

Mr. COOK. Mr. Chairman, the Honorable Congressman Jefferson,
other distinguished members of this subcommittee, friends of His-
torically Black Colleges and Universities, and other ladies and gen-
tlemen, I am, indeed, honored and pleased to participate in this
hearing. I want to thank you and commend you, Congressman Jef
ferson and members of this subcommittee, for your great interest
in and su,Jport of Historically Black Colleges and Universities.

I also want to thank you for coming to Dillard University to hold
these hearings. I appreciate very much your gracious remarks
about Dillard. Dillard University is a private, independent, liberal
arts institution. Since its foundmg in 1869, it has been a progres-
sive and creative force in the vigorous pursuit and achievement of
academic excellence, social relevance and community service.

The first Speech Department in a black college or university was
established at Dillard University. The University has had the first
nationally accredited program in Nursing in the State of Louisiana,
and our pre-freshman program served as a motto for the Upward
Bound Program. We have the only degree granting Japanese Stud-
ies program in the south central part of the United States, one of
only two in the South, and the only one at a Historically Black Col-
lege and University. We also have the only center for black Jewish
relations, not only in this country, but in the world.

Our enrollment last year was 1,625 students, by far the largest
enrollment in our history. Dillard University is multicultural, mul-
tiracial, multireligious, and multidimensional. So, I am especially
pleased to welcome you to Dillard University.

As you can readily tell, despite substantial increases in the cost
of college education at many private colleges throughout the
Nation over the past decade, IDillard University and its 40 sister
UNCF institutions struggle each year to maintain high quality and
low costs. We are dedicated to keeping college education affordable
and within the financial reach of students from low and middle
income families that we serve.

So, I speak for Dillard University, but not only for Dillard Uni-
versity, but for the other 40 institutions of the UNCF. As you
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know, the UNCF is a consortium which was established in 1944 to
raise funds for our colleges and universities.

We consider ourselves to be among the most creative of all
American colleges in one area in particular. That is the area of de-
veloping, implementing, and sustaining high quality programs at
relatively low costs. Moreover, we are, indeed, the Nation experts
in the area of developmental quality education. While Historically
Black Colleges and Universities represent of just 5 percent of all
the 4 year institutions of higher learning, these institutions enroll
35 percent of all black students attending 4 year colleges and
confer 33 percent of the baccalaureate degrees earned by them. We
are a vital component of the infrastructure which offers hope to
black students. VVe have a great track record.

So, I want to urge you, Congressman Jefferson and other mem-
bers of this congressional committee, in the strongest possible term,
to work very hard for the reauthorization of this act, to recommit
the Federal Government to assuring access t 0 lower income stu-
dents. The most important issue facing this committee, the Con-
gress, and the higher education community is the current reauthor-
ization process and the restoration of a better balance between Fed-
eral aid and loans. Something must be done to increase the direct
grants, rather than loans, to our students because of their poor so-
cioeconomic background.

I believe that the solution to student access, student positions,
and student loan programs we face are all part of the excessive re-
liance of low income at risk students on student loans. The UNCF,
therefore, strongly supports the creation of a true Pell Grant enti-
tlement as the only means of readdressiiig the imbalance between
loan and grant funds provided by the Congress to eliminate the
value of family finances to higher education, erected by rising costs
of a college education, and a family's limited disposal income that
can be devoted to higher education costa.

So, Mr. Chairman and other members of this committee, we urge
your support in continuing to enlarge and increase higher educa-
tion opportunities for minorities, and especially for Historically
Black Colleges and Universities. I want to thank all of you for
working with us, and having the courage, wisdom, vision and ra-
tionality to introduce legislation specifically relating to minority
education in this country. If the wheels of progress are to continue,
and if we are to aspire to higher education so that everyone will
have access regardless of socioeconomic status or race, then we
must increase the funds in terms of direct grants.

Ladies and gentlemen, and members of this distinguished panel,
as you consider all that is here today and the many challenges
which will be discussed later, I urge to remember the motto of the
UNCF, "A mind is a terrible thing to waste." And I hope you rec-
ognize that Hhistorically Black Colleges and Universities are a
great engine in instruments of hope, and rothing in this world is
more precious than hope. You deprive a man or a woman of hope,
and you deprive him or her of the God within. Remember that our
institutions are great agencies of hope in a difficult and often
tragic world.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
[The prepared statement of Samuel Dubois Cook follows:]

3 3
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GOOD MORNING CONGRESSMAN JEFFERSON, OTHER DISTINGUISHED

MEMBERS OF THIS AUGUST PANEL, FRIENDS OF THE HISTORICALLY

BLACK COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES, LADIES AND GENTLEMEN: I AM

DEEPLY PLEASED AND HONORED TO HAVE THE UNIQUE OPPORTUNITY

AND PRIVILEGE OF PARTICIPATING IN THIS MOST IMPORTANT HEARING

SPONSORED BY THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION,

AND I SHOULD LIKE TO THANK AND COMMZND CONGRESSMAN

JEFFERSON, AND THE MEMBERS OF THIS SUBCOMMITTEE FOR YOUR

INTEREST AND SUPPORT OF OUR UNIVERSE OF INSTITUTIONS. I ALSO

THANK YOU FOR COMING TO DILLARD UNIVERSITY FOR THIS HISTORIC

HEARING.

DILLARD UNIVERSITY IS A PRIVATE, LIBERAL ARTS COLLEGE LOCATED

IN THE HFART OF NEW ORLEANS. THROUGH THE YEARS, DILLARD HAS

BEEN PROGRESSIVE AND CRFATIVE IN THE PURSUIT OF EDUCATIONAL

GOALS. THE FIRST SPEECH DEPARTMENT IN A BLACK UNIVERSITY WAS

ORGANIZED AT DILLARD. THE UNIVERSITY HAD THE FIRST NATIONALLY

ACCREDITED NURSING PROGRAM IN LOUISIANA. DILLARD'S PRE-

FRESHMAN PROGRAM WAS A MODEL FOR THE NATIONAL, FEDERALLY

FUNDED UPWARD BOUND PROGRAM.

WE ENROLL APPROXIMATELY 1,200 STUDENTS AND OFFER A BACHELOR

OF ARTS, BACHELOR OF SCIENCE, AND BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN

NURSING. TUITION AT DILLARD IS $5,500 AND ROOM AND BOARD IS

$3,250. DILLARD STUDENTS PURSUE A VARIETY OF ACADEMIC AND

EXTRA CURRICULAR INTERESTS AS PART OF THEIR MATRICULATION
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EXPERTENCE. I WELCOME YOU AND MY DISTINGUISHED COLLEAGUES TO

DILLARD UNIVERSITY AND THE GREAT CITY OF NEW ORLEANS.

AS YOU CAN READILY TELL, DESPITE SUBSTANTIAL INCREASES IN THE

COST OF A COLLEGE EDUCATION AT MANY PRIVATE COLLEGES

THROUGHOUT THE NATION, OVER THE PAST DECADE, DILLARD

UNIVERSITY AND ITS 40 SISTER INSTITUTIONS IN THE UNITED NEGRO

COLLEGE FUND (UNCF) STRUGGLE EACH YEAR TO MAINTAIN HIGH

QUALITY AND LOW COST. WE ARE DEDICATED TO KEEPING A COLLEGE

EDUCATION AFFORDABLE, AND WITHIN THE FINANCIAL REACH OF

STULENTS FROM THE LOW AND MIDDLE INCOME FAMILIES THAT WE

SERVE. I COME BEFORE YOU TODAY ON BEHALF OF DILLARD AND THE

OTHER 40 MEMBER INSTITUTIONS OF THE UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND.

THE UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND IS A NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION

DEDICATED TO STRENGTHENING AND EXPANDING THE EDUCATIONAL

PROGRAMS AND OPPORTUNITIES PROVIDED BY ITS MEMBER

INSTITUTIONS. WE ARE A CONSORTIUM OF FORTY-ONE (41) PRIVATE

HISTORICALLY BLACK COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES WHICH WAS FOUNDED

IN 1944 IN RESPONSE TO AN INCREASING AWARDIESS OF THE NEED TO

BOLSTER THE FINANCIAL BASES OF THESE INSTITUTIONS SO THAT WE

MIGHT ENHANCE OUR ABILITY TO PRODUCE THE BLACK LEADERSHIP FOR

WHICH WE HAVE BECOME KNOWN. AS A RESULT OF THIS LONGSTANDING

CONSOLIDATED EFFORT, ALL OF THE STUDENTS AND INSTITUTIONS

BENEFIT FROM THE FUND-RAISING EFFORTS OF UNCF SINCE EACH

COLLEGE RECEIVES AN EQUITABLE DISTRIBUTION OF THE FUNDS
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COLLECTED. AS YOU CAN SEE WE ARE CONTINUALLY DEMONSTRATING

OUR COMMITMENT TO OUR STUDENTS AND OUR BELIEF IN THE

VIABILITY OF OUR INSTITUTIONS.

WE CONSIDER OURSELVES TO BE AMONG THE MOST ELITE OF ALL

AMERICAN COLLEGES IN ONE AREA PARTICULARLY -- AND THAT IS IN

THE AREA OF DEVELOPING, IMPLEMENTING AND SUSTAINING HIGH

QUALITY PROGRAMS AT RELATIVELY LOW COSTS. MOREOVER, WE ARE,

INDEED, THE NATION'S EXPERTS IN THE AREA OF DEVELOPMNTAL

EDUCATION. WHILE HISTORICALLY BLACK COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES

REPRESENT JUST OVER FIVE PERCENT OF ALL FOUR-YEAR INSTITUTIONS

OF HIGHER LEARNING, THESE SCHOOLS ENROLL 35 PERCENT OF ALL

BLACK STUDENTS ATTENDING A FOUR-YEAR COLLEGE AND CONFER 33

PERCENT OF ALL BACHELOR'S DEGREES EARNED BY THEM. WE ARE A

VITAL COMPONENT OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE WHICH OFFERS HOPE TO

YOUNG BLACK AMERICANS. WE HAVE A LONG TRACK RECORD OF

ACCEPTING AND GRADUATING STUDENTS WHO WERE ACADEMICALLY

UNPREPARED BY INADEQUATE SECONDARY SCHOOLS WHEN THEY

ENTERED COLLEGE. STUDENTS ARE SUPPORTED, CHALLENGED AND

OFFERED THE OPPORTUNITY TO ASSUME LEADERSHIP ROLES RARELY

AFFORDED THEM IN MAJORITY INSTITUTIONS.

OUR INSTITUTIONS HAVE EARNED THE ASSISTANCE WHICH THE FEDERAL

GOVERNMENT HAS PROVIDED. HOWEVER, THE LEVEL OF SUPPORT

SHOULD BE MAINTAINED OR INCREASED, NOT REDUCED OR FROZEN AND

CERTAINLY NOT ELIMINATED. NEXT TO FEDERAL STUDENT AID,

37
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GRANTS DISTRIBUTED UNDER TITLE III OF THE HIGHER EDUCATION ACT

ARE THE MOST SIGNIFICATION SOURCE. OF FEDERAL DOLLARS COMING

TO THE MEMBER INSTITUTIONS OF THE UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND.

WE ARE PLEASED TO HAVE THIS OPPORTUNITY TO DISCUSS WITH YOU

CONGRESSMAN JEFFERSON AND OTHER MEMBERS OUR THOUGHTS AND

CONCERNS ABOUT THE FUTURE OF THE NATION'S 100 HISTORICALLY

BLACK COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES AS THE CONGRESS CONSIDERS

LEGISLATION REAUTHORIZING THE HIGHER EDUCATION ACT. WE KNOW

OF YOUR LONGSTANDING CONCERN AND SUPPORT FOR OUR

INSTITUTIONS. WE LOOK FORWARD TO A LONG AND FRUITFUL

RELATIONSHIP IN THE YEARS TO COME.

LIKE MOST UNCF INSTITUTIONS, DILLARD STUDENTS COME FROM LOW

AND MIDDLE INCOME FAMILIES AND EASILY QUALIFY FOR ALL FORMS OF

TITLE IV ASSISTANCE, I.E. , THEY DON'T JUST DEMONSTRATE "NEED"

RELATIVE TO THE COST OF EDUCATION, THEY ARE REALLY "POOR."

ACCORDING TO UNCF'S 1990 STATISTICAL REPORT -- 91 PERCENT OF

UNCF'S 50,000 STUDENTS RECEIVED AID IN 1990-91, AND MOST OF THESE

STUDENTS UTILIZED SEVERAL FORMS OF FEDERAL STUDENT ASSISTANCE.

I WANT TO URGE YOU, CONGRESSMAN JEFFERSON AND YOUR

COLLEAGUES ON THE EDUCATION AND LABOR COMMITTEE, IN THE

STRONGEST POSSIBLE AND MOST SINCERE TERMS, TO WORK

THROUGHOUT THIS REAUTHORIZATION TO RECOMMIT THE FEDERAL

GOVERNMENT TO ASSURING "ACCESS" AND "CHOICE" THROUGH GRANT
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AID TO LOWER INCOME STUDENTS. THE MOST IMPORTANT ISSUE FACING

THIS COMMITTEE, THE CONGRESS AND THE HIGHER EDUCATION

COIS1UNITY IN THE CURRENT REAUTHORIZATION IS RESTORING A

BETTER BALANCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF FEDERAL AID PROVIDED IN

THE FORM OF GRANTS AND THAT WHICH IS PROVIDED IN THE FORM OF

LOANS. THE REMAINING BARRIERS TO ACCESS TO HIGHER EDUCATION -

- FOR AFRICAN AMERICANS, HISPANIC AMERICANS, NATIVE AMERICANS,

AND SEVERAL GROUPS WITHIN THE ASIAN AMERICAN COMMUNITY -- ARE

RELATED TO THE RISING COST OF A BACCALAUREATE DEGREE IN

EDUCATION, AND THE ACADEMIC PREPARATION OF STUDENTS FOR

COLLEGE LEVEL WORK, ESPECIALLY THOSE IN OUR URBAN CITIES AND

IN ISOLATED RURAL AREAS. OF CRITICAL IMPORTANCE IN SOLVING THE

COST RIDDLE, I.E., HOLDING DOWN COLLEGE COSTS WHILE MAINTAINING

HIGH QUALITY, IS THE NEED TO MAKE TITLE IV GRANT AID AVAILABLE

TO LOWER INCOME STUDENTS, WHILE USING LOANS FOR MIDDLE AND

UPPER INCOME FAMILIES. THIS WAS CONGRESS' ORIGINAL INTENT WHEN

THE BASIC GRANT AND THE GUARANTEED STUDENT LOAN (GSL)

PROGRAMS witE FIRST CREATED IN THE EARLY 1970s. SOMEWHERE

ALONG THE WAY -- IN AN EFFORT TO "SAVE MONEY" AND MAINTAIN THE

APPEARANCE OF ASSURING "ACCESS," CONGRESS AND PRESIDENT

REAGAN CONFUSED OUR WORTHY EDUCATIONAL OBJECTIVES WITH THE

NEED TO CONSTRAIN GROWTH LN THE FEDERAL BUDGET.

UNFORTUNATELY, EQUAL OPPORTUNITY WAS SACRIFICED ON THE ALTAR

OF A BALANCED BUDGET WE HAVE -- TO BORROW A PHRASE FROM

'd
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THE FRAM OIL FILTER COMMERCIAL -- A CHOICE BETWEEN PAYING NOW

OR PAYING LATER!

IF AMERICA POSTPONES FOR ANOTHER FIVE YEARS A COMMITMENT TO

ASSURING ACCESS TO HIGHER EDUCATION, WE WILL BE DOOMED TO A

CYCLE OF ADULT ILLITERATES UNABLE TO FIND WORK, A NON-

PRODUCTIVE WORKFORCE WITH HIGH LEVELS OF UNEMPLOYMENT AMONG

WOMEN, LOW INCOME AND MINORITY GROUPS, A SOCIETY INCREASINGLY

UNCOMPETITIVE WITH THE INDUSTRIALIZED NATIONS OF THE WORLD AND

MILLIONS OF PEOPLE DEPENDENT ON GOVERNMENT FOR WELFARE, FOOD

STAMPS, HOSPITAL AND HEALTH CARE, AND AN EVER-WIDENING GAP

BETWEEN THE WEALTHY AND THE WOE-BE-GONE!

I BELIEVE THE SOLUTION TO THE STUDENT ACCESS, STUDENT

PERSISTENCE, AND STUDENT LOAN DEFAULT PROBLEMS WE FACE ARE

ALL PART OP THE EXCESSIVE RELIANCE OF LOW-INCOME,

EDUCATIONALLY "AT-RISK" STUDENTS ON STUDENT LOANS.

UNCF STRONGLY SUPPORTS THE CREATION OF A TRUE PELL GRANT

ENTITLEMENT AS THE ONLY MEANS FOR REDRESSING THE IMBALANCE

BETWEEN LOAN AND GRANT FUNDS PROVIDED BY THE CONGRESS TO

ELIMINATE THE BARRIER OF FAMILY FINANCES TO HIGHER EDUCATION

ERECTED BY THE RISING COST OF A COLLEIE EDUCATION AND A

FAMILY'S LIMITED DISPOSABLE INCOME THAT CAN BE DEVOTED TO

HIGHER EDUCATION COSTS.
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THERE IS NO MORE IMPORTANT ISSUE FACING THIS SUBCOMMITTEE AND

THE 102ND CONGRESS THAN WHETHER OR NOT IT WILL, IN FACT, LIVE

UP TO AMERICA'S THIRTY-FIVE YEAR OLD PLEDGE "THE SECURITY OF

THE NATION REQUIRES THE FULLEST DEVELOPMENT OF THE MENTAL

RESOURCES AND TECHNICAL SKILLS OF ITS YOUNG MEN AND WOMEN ...

WE MUST INCREASE OUR EFFORTS TO IDENTIFY AND EDUCATE MORE OF

THE TALENT OF OUR NATION. THIS REQUIRES PROGRM1S THAT WILL

GIVE ASSURANCE THAT NO STUDENT OF ABILITY WILL BE DENIED AN

OPPORTUNITY FOR HIGHER EDUCATION BECAUSE OF FINANCIAL NEED."

PRESIDENT EISENHOWER'S WORDS RING ESPECIALLY TRUE TODAY.

FOLLOWING ON THE HFELS OF THIS NATION'S GREAT VICTORY OVER

TYRANNY AND AGGRESSION IN KUWAIT, AMERICA MUST APPLY THE SAME

SKILL, TECHNOLOGY, AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES TO THE WAR AT HOME

AGAINST POVERTY, IGNORANCE, AND DESPAIR. WE CAN WIN THAT

WAR, BUT NOT WITH MEAGER RESOURCES, HALF-HEARTED EFFORTS AND

COMMITMENTS, OR LIP SERVICE TO EDUCATIONAL QUALITY AND EQUAL

OPPORTUNITY.

NO, WE MUST HAVE AN EDUCATION PRESIDENT AND AN EDUCATION

CONGRESS COMMITTED TO DILLARD, HARVARD, AND THE UN VERSITY OF

PENNSYLVANIA. WE MUST PROVIDE THE FINANCIAL RESOURCI. THAT

GUARANTEE EVERY LITTLE BOY AND GIRL -- WHETHER THEY LIVE IN

BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA OR BINGHAMPTOM, NEW YORK; CHARLESTON,

SOUTH CAROLINA OR CHEYENNE, WYOMING; DETROIT, MICHIGAN OR

DUBUQUE, IOWA -- ACCESS TO AS MUCH EDUCATION EVERY ANY LEVEL

4 1
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THAT HE OR SHE CAN ABSORB: FINALLY, WE MUST COMMIT OURSELVES

TO DIVERSITY IN HIGHER EDUCATION AND TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF

ALL OF THIS COUNTRY'S HUMAN RESOURCES -- BLACK AND WHITE, RICH

AND POOR, HANDICAPPED AND ABLE-BODIED, AND GIFTED AND HIGH

POTENTIAL STUDENTS.

THE SAD TRUTH OF THE MATTER, MY FRIENDS, IS THAT WE HAVE

RECEIVED ELOQUENT PRAISE FOR THE IMPORTANT EDUCATIONAL AND

SOCIAL ROLES WE PLAY, AND WHILE WE HAVE RECEIVED BOTH PROMISES

AND COMMITMENTS FROM EVERY PRESIDENT SINCE DWIGHT EISENtiQWER,

WE HAVE NOT RECEIVED COMMENSURATE FISCAL SUPPORT FROM ANY

ADMINISTRATION AND WE HAVE NOT BEEN ABLE TO "CASH IN" ON THE

VARIOUS PROMISES MADE. INDEED, IF MY COLLEAGUES AND I HAD

RECEIVED EVEN ONE FIFTH OF THE SUPPORT THAT WE HAVE NEEDED TO

CARRY OUT OUR UNIQUE AND HISTORIC ROLE OF EDUCATING THE

NATION'S DISADVANTAGED, OUR LIVES OVER THE PAST FEW YEARS

WOULD HAVE BEEN INFINITELY EASIER AND OUR INSTITUTIONS WOULD

'"OT HAVE FACED THE SPECTER OF CONSTANTLY LIVING ON THE EDGE.

IN POINT OF FACT, ONLY IN RECENT YEARS (WITH THE SUPPORT OF

THE CONGRESSIONAL BLACK CAUCUS) HAVE WE BEEN ABLE TO COUNT

UPON A SOLID CORPS OF SUPPORT IN LEGISLATIVE HALLS OF THIS

NATION. I KNOW THAT I SPEAK FOR MY COLLEAGUES HERE PRESENT BY

STATING THAT WE ALL LOOK FORWARD TO THE DAY WHEN A PRESIDENT

OF THE UNITED STATES (WHILE PRAISING OUR UNIVERSE OF

INSTITUTIONS AS "NATIONAL RESOURCES"), AND WHEN THE VARIOUS

MEMBERS OF CONGRESS INVARIABLY PRAISE THE SIGNIFICANT

41
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EDUCATIONAL AND SOCIAL ROLES OF OUR INSTITUTIONS, BOTH WILL

FIGHT FOR THE RESOURCES WE NEED AS VIGILANTLY AS THE

CONGRESSIONAL BLACK CAUCUS AND THE SUPPORTIVE FRIENDS IN THIS

SUBCOMMITTEE.

THE COLLEGE FUND HAS PROPOSED FORMAL RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE

HIGHER EDUCATION ACT REAUTHORIZATION. MY UNCF COLLEAGUES

WILL REVIEW SPECIFIC ASPECTS OF THESE PROPOSALS IN THEIR

TESTIMONIES. I WOULD LIKE TO SUBMIT FOR THE RECORD, THE UNCF

RECOMMENDATIONS. THESE RECOMMENDATIONS HAVE BEEN INTRODUCED

AS THE "COLLEGE OPPORTUNITY ACT OF 1991" BY CONGRESSMAN

JEMRSON. THE UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND WOULD LIKE TO

FORMALLY ENDORSE THIS LEGISLATION. I WOULD LIKE TO TAKE THIS

OPPORTUNITY TO THANK CONGRESSMAN JEFFERSON AND HIS

COLLEAGUES FOR WORKING WITH US AND HAVING THE COURAGE, WE

BELIEVE, AND FORESIGHT TO INTRODUCE LEGISLATION SPECIFICALLY

RELATING TO MINORITY EDUCATION IN THIS COUNTRY.

I WOULD ALSO LIKE TO REQUEST THAT UNCF'S ANALYSIS OF THE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION'S FY 1992 BUDGET BE INCLUDED IN THE

RECORD. IT EXPLAINS AND ELABORATES ON MANY OF THE POINTS

THAT WILL BE MADE HERE THIS MORNING, AS WELL AS INDICATING OUR

VIEWS ON SOME OF THE ADMINISTRATION'S HIGHER EDUCATION ACT

REAUTHORIZATION RECOMMENDATIONS, AND IT MAY BE OF SOME

ASSISTANCE TO YOU AND THE OTHER MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE.

4 3
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I HOPE THAT THE MEMBERS OF THIS COMMITTEE AND AUDIENCE WILL

FIND SOME CURRENCY IN THE RECOMMENDATIONS THAT WILL BE

PRESENTED HERE TODAY. AGAIN, I URGE YOU ALL TO REMEMBER THE

MAGNIFICENT LEGACIES OF THE UNIVERSE OF INSTITUTIONS KNOWN AS

THE HISTORICALLY BLACK COLLEGES, AND I TRUST THAT YOU WILL

SHARE MY VIEW THAT THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT HAS A MORAL

RESPONSIBILITY TO BOTH PRESERVE AND ENHANCE THESE

INSTITUTIONS. FINALLY, I RECOGNIZE THAT MANY WILL EXPRESS THE

VIEW THAT SOME OF THE SUGGESTIONS I HAVE OFFERED ARE FAR TOO

AMBITIOUS AND COSTLY. YET, I ASK THE QUESTION, WHAT IS THE

ALTERNATIVE?

IF THE WHEELS OF PROGRESS ARE TO CONTINUE TO TURN, IF ALL WHO

ASPIRE TO A HIGHER EDUCATION ARE TO HAVE ACCESS TO ONE, IF THE

NATION'S SECURITY AND POSITION IN WORLD TRADE ARE NOT TO BE

THREATENED, UNCF'S PRIVATE HISTORICALLY BLACK COLLEGES AND

LNIVERSITIES MUST BE SUPPORTED AND ENCOURAGED. THE MESSAGE

MUST COME FROM THE CONGRESS THAT ALL YOUNG PEOPLE WHO DESIRE

POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION WILL HAVE ACCESS TO IT -- THAT NO

GROUP OF YOUNGSTERS WILL BE RELEGATED TO OBLIVION AND

DISCOUNTED AS PRODUCTIVE CITIZENS. IN THIS ERA WHEN

COMPETITIVENESS IS ON THE LIPS OF ALL NATIONAL LEADERS, WE

CANNOT AFFORD TO DISCOUNT ANY OF OUR CITIZENS.

WE ARE NOT BLIND TO THE NEED TO REDUCE THE NATIONAL BUDGET

DEFICIT. IT IS OBVIOUS, HOWEVER, THAT IT SHOULD NOT BE DONE AT

4 4
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THE EXPENSE OF ASPIRING, PRODUCTIVE STUDENTS. OUR REQUESTS
ARE CONSISTENT WITH GOALS OF FISCAL RESTRAINT AS WELL AS
LEGISLATIVE INTENT AND CONSTITUTIONAL MANDATE. THEY WILL ALSO
ENHANCE THIS PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AND
UNCF WHICH IN TURN WILL CONTRIBUTE TO THE WELFARE AND SAFETY
OF THE NATION AND PROTECT ITS INTERNATIONAL IMAGE WITHOUT
THREATENING THE PREPARATION OF A BROAD CROSS SECTION OF
ADULTS POISED TO ASSUME PRODUCTIVE ROLES IN THEIR COMMUNITIES.

AS YOU CONSIDER ALL THAT YOU WILL HEAR TODAY AND THE MANY

CHALLENGES WHICH WILL BE DISCUSSED LATER, I URGE YOU TO
REMEMBER THE MOTTO OF THE UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND:

A MIND IS A TERRIBLE THING TO WASTE!

THANK YOU AND WELCOME.

AsWoom.us
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Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, Dr. Cook.
Dr. Fort, I appreciate that you will have to leave right after your

remarks. Is that right?
Mr. FORT. I am going to stay until this panel ends.
Chairman JEFFERSON. Good, sir. Thank you You may proceed.

STATEMENT OF EDWARD B. FORT, REPRESENTATIVE, NATIONAL

ASSOCIATION FOR EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN HIGHER EDUCA-

TION, CHANCELLOR, NORTH CAROLINA A&T STATE UNIVERSI-

TY, GREENSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA

Mr. FORT. Before you start the clock ticking on my representa-
tion, Mr. Chairman, I would like to urge that you give me a 2
minute leave to make this beginning remark.

First of all, I want to commend you and your colleagues for
having the guts, the fortitude, and the commitment to these cam-
puses to host this hearing at this historic university. I congratulate
you and Dr. Cook. And also, your young assistant, who is a poten-
tial superstar. I think she might make the Senate someday. l3ut, I

want to congratulate her for her extraordinary efforts on behalf of
all of us in terms of the preliminary arrangements that she saw so
diligent to make for us over the last 2 or 3 days or weeks.

A.nd then, secondly, before the clock starts ticking, I would like

to4).
[Laughter.]
And incidentally, I am speaking on behalf of NAFEO, and also

my institution, North Carolina A&T State University, which as you
know colleagues, is the home of the Reverend Jesse Jackson, Astro-
naut Ron McNair of the Challenger incident, and also the Honora-
ble Edolphus Towns, who is the chair of the American Black
Caucus. All three of those distinguished black Americans are grad-

uates of North Carolina A&T State University.
I would like to make a supplementary comment that we might

get into later concerning two oNervations made by the Deputy Sec-

retary, Mr. Childers.
Number one, he made a reference to the fact that $900 million

has been allocated currently during the last fiscal year, or some-
time during the most recent past, to HBCUs. That is good. That is
Food stuff. But I think that that figure might very well be taken
into advisement when you compare it with the fact that in 1988,

according to figures provided by the National Science Foundation,
the top 50 campuses in this Nation, running from John Hopkins
University to the University California, Davis, gleaned a total of
$6.3 billion in total Federal appropriations, with John Hopkins
University topping off at $592 million. In other words, $592,176,000

went to one institution of the top 50, and that is more than half of
the $900 million that was given to 114 historically black campuses.

So when you hear figures that relate to $900 million, fine. But
again, John Hopkins, as only one of the top 50, gleaned $592 mil-

lion plus in tot&I appropriations, according to the National Science
Foundation, in the year of 1988. I might add, by the way, that out
of those top 50 campuses, which included in the top 10, Hopkins,
Stanford, Michigan, MIT, Cornell, UCLA, Michigan, Columbia Uni-
versity, and the University of California, San Francisco, only one
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HBCU, Howard, is all that was included. It is rather interesting.
But, again, $6.3 billion in 1988, 1 year. And yet, he is citing $900
million for HBCUs.

Secondly, and then, I will get to my 5 minutes, he calls for the
elimination of race specificity with respect to the education by
HBCUs of citizens that come to us, without regard, by the way, to
race, color, creed, or socioeconomic status. The great danger in
eliminating that reference to ethnicity is quite simply this. If the
National Science Foundation is right, we are going to have to have
the ability to produce 75,000 scientists a year by the year 2000 just
to stay even with our current number two position behind Japan
economic development wise. Seventy-five thousand a year, andthere is no wa,y that that talent can only be produced by the likes
of the good old boy network of Yale, Harvard, Princeton, Berkeley,
Lfichigan. That is physiologically impossible.

Secondly, by the year, and this is also National Science Founda-tion Data, by the year 2010, this Nation will have to produce at
least 11,000 Ph.D.s per year just to stay even with our current for-ward moving progress. Again, in the number two position behind
Japan, as far as the internationalization of economic development
is concerned. If that is true, then where in the world do you thinkwe will get all our talent? Much of it will have to come from thelikes of these campuses that are represented at this table. There-
fore, race specificity has to be ultimately the down range salvation
of this country, economic development wise. So, to suggest that youeliminate race is poppycock, nonsense, and it is suicide.

You can do without quotas, and I will tell you later how. But, thepoint is, there is a relationship between the denigration of racespecificity and the suicidal intent of those who would suggest that
we do not have what it takes to meet the goal of the year 2000,much less the rear 2010, as far as the internationalization of eco-
nomic competitiveness is concerned.

So, again, my comments to respond to the Deputy Secretary
and incidentally, I make my comments as a member of the Presi-
dential Advisory Board on FffiCUs. But, I am speakinif for myself
and for my campus, North Carolina A&T Stete University.

Now, with regard to the 5 minutes, let me say this. I think thatit is fairly obvious that NAFEO, which was formed in 1969 is the
heartland and the bulwark of all that is necessary as it pertains tothe gargantuan like move toward strengthening these 114, 115, 117
campuses that are historically black. As a matter of fact, NAFEO
magnificently represents, in this instance, an enrollment of no lessthan 300,000 plus kids that awarded last year at least 30,000 de-grees. That is a very important niche in the promulgation of eco-nomic quality for this Nation.

I might add; also, that despite the fact that black colleges anduniversities have not received their fair share of Federal resources,that A&T, my home based institution, and other black institutions
continue to excel and to produce the kind of stuff necesbary to keepthis Nation alive and well.

Let me give you just three examples. A&T is the largest black
campus in the State of North Carolina. It is the leading producer ofblack engineers in this Nation in the year 1989-90. In 1990-91, weare in a dead heat with Howard University. So here you have two
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black campuses, Howard and A&T, that produce more black bacca-
laureate degreed holding engineers than any other universities in
the entire country, no matter what the color is. If you think this.
Nation can survive absent engineers, you are on the wrong planet.

Secondly, I would indicate the fact that we rank second in the
Nation, as far as black campuses are concerned, in the arena of
sponsored research nationally, second behind Howard University.
So, those two records alone denote the reality that that is an exam-
ple of what this campus can do for this Nation.

Third, and last example, is the fact that a couple of years ago,
A&T in a joint venture with North Carolina State, our sister insti-
tution within the University of North Carolina system, garnered
an $8.4 million grant from NASA, as design research to put a man
on the red planet by the year 2019. So, again, black campuses, with
their w:iite counterparts, are paving the way relative to the scien-
tific development of this Nation as far as space research is con-
cerned.

Now, what are our recommendations? They are six or seven in
number, and they are these. Number one, as far as Title II is con-
cerned is for libraiy enhancement, NAFEO and our campus, specif-
ically, are suggesting that funding over a multiyearperiod begin
with a $20 million allocation in the first year, $15 for the
second year, $10 million for the third year, and $5 million for the
fourth year, to cover the cost of not only courses of study for staff
development purposes for our faculty and staff on our campuses,
but also to establish much needed enhancement as far as libraries
and information systems are concerned nationally, as they impact
upon HSCUs.

Number two, as far as institutional aid is concerned, under the
banner of Title III, I mention these. First, we recommend that the
minimal grant for each institution be raised from $350,000 to
$500,000. The reasons for that were cited, as pertaining to earlier
discussions. It is important that we keep in mind in this regard
that initially Title III was formulated for the purpose of dealing ag-
gressively with the needs of black campuses. Tlien, suddenly about
midway through the process, it became "for developing institu-
tions," which cut by more than a third the amount of money allo-
cated to black campuses. We have to find some way to make up the
difference in regard to that reality.

The money is put to good use. For example, last year we received
$1.3 million f'or Title III, one of the highest grants in the country.
On that basis, among other things, we became the first black
campus in this country to receive national accreditation in the De-
partment of Accounting inside a School of Economics and Business
which was also nationally accredited. How we did it? In part with
the use of Title III dollars. So, the money does work.

Number two, we are suggesting that five new institutions be
added to Section 326 which currently provides funding for five
graduate institutions. As you know, those institutions include Drew
111edical School, Meharry Medical School, Morehouse Medical
School, Tuskegee Vet School, amongst others, and also Clark-Atlan-
ta. We are suggesting that that be expanded to include the likes of
the school of pharmacy, which also has a Ph.D. as far as Florida
A&M is concerned, the North Carolina Central Law School, the
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Southern University School of Law, the Texas Southern Schools of
Law and Pharmacy. In effect, you would raise the numbers from
five to ten, and we urge that you do that without jeopardizing the
ongoing status of the original five.

Point number three, we are suggesting that new funding in the
amount of $16 million per year be appropriated for a period of noless than 5 years, as given to the eight historically black campusesthat have graduate and undergraduate programs in the field of En-
gineering. Incidentally, for your information, those campuses in-
clude A&T, Hampton, Tuskegee, Southern, Prairie View, Tennessee
State, Ho% .ard, and Morgan State University. The reason for thatis quite obvious. Let me give you just one statistic to back that up.A year ago, according to the National Science Foundation, therewere 3,300 Ph.D.s in engineering produced nationally by this coun-try, in engineering, all campuses, red, yellow, brown, white, what-
ever color. Of that number, only 1,600 of those 8,300 were produced
by, and gained by, native Americans. Of that number, only 14 wentto black Americans. So if, in fact, you are going to have to depend
more and more upon black engineers by the year 2000 and beyondto get this Nation back on track as far as the internationalization
of economic competitiveness is concerned, you have to increase thenumber of black Ph.D.s that have engineering degrees. We aresaying you do that by providing no less than $16 million for a
period of 5 years to enhance the infrastructure and faculty develop-ment in hiring the faculty as far as these eight campuses are con-cerned.

Number four, we are recommending that a separate authoriza-
tion of $20 million for endowment challenge grants for HBCUs we
established under Part C of Title rn That money would be used forpurposes of enhancing what goes on now in sort of a limp in and
limp 3ut stage. For example, in terms of dollars, 66 HBCUs re-ceived last year 105 grants, totalling $82.9 million. That is from1984, by the way, to 1990. From 1984 to 1990, $349, almoet $38 mil-lion. Vfiiereas, 198 institutions, including 66 HBCUs, received 288
grants, totalling $114 million for the same time period. So, you can
see the disproportionate relationship there. We find that that hasto be shored up, and the gap closed.

Then, last, we are recommending that, as an added feature of
that recommendation, that a reduction in the hold out period for
large grants from 10 years to 5 years be ensued. A limitation of $1
million for grants when appropriations are $10 million to $2 mil-lion for grants, when appropriations are $11 to $20 million, and nolimit when appropriations exceed $21 million.

Then, last, we are recommending, strongly, and this is one thatNAFEO stakes its life in it. I support that strongly. Pell Grants
max awards be raised to at least $4,500, and then adjusted annual-ly based upon the consumer price index. That the formula be
changed to make the max award for living experiences $2,750, and
for tuition, $1,750.

Those are my preliminary recommendations. During the question
and answer period, I would be please to elaborate. Thank you, Mr.Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Edward B. Fort follows:]
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INTRODUCTION

Mr. Chairman and nenberm of the Postsecondary Education

Subcommittee, it is indeed an honor and a pleasure to have been

provided the opportunity to appear
before you today, to present

recommendations on reauthorizing the Nigher Education Act of 1965,

speeifically, Titles II, III, IV, and VI. I am Edward B. Port.

Chancellor of North Carolina AiT State University, located in the

All American City of Greensboro, in the great state of North

Carolina.

North Carolina AST State University is an 1190 Land Grant

Institution, celebrating the 100th year of its founding, March 9,

1891. MT State University, as we fondly refer to it, has an

enrollment of 6,515 of the country's finest young men and women,

matriculating in programs ranging from accounting, to engineering,

to nursing, to agriculture, to education, to technology, to liberal

arts and humanities, to sciences, to business, to graduate studies.

These and many other academic majors are all situated in seven (7)

schools and one (1) college.

Today, I am also representing the National Association for

Equal Opportunity in Higher Education (NAFEO) for which I served

as the Chairman of the 1991 Annual Conference Program Committee.

Before I give more details about my institution and NAPEO. I

would like to thank you, Chairman Jefferson, for selecting the

Postsecondary Education Subcommittee to launch your Congressional

career which / an sure will be long and productive, and will

distinguish you as a champion for Black colleges and univwrsities

and for equal educational
opportunities for all institutions and

individuals. Your request for this hearing exemplifies your

concern tor and your commitment to assisting your alas meter,

Southern University, and other Black colleges and universities.

N. commend you for your leadership in providing this torus at

Dillard University, for Slack college representatives to articulate

their concerns and to make recommendations regarding

reauthorization of the Higher Education Act. I an deeply honored

to participate. I also want to thank ny colleague, Dr. Samuel D.

Cook, for hosting this hearing at this illustrious Slack

institution.

Allow me at this time to preface ny remarks with data relative

to the National Association for Equal Opportunity in Higher

Education (NAFEO). Founded in 1969, NAFE0 is the membership

association of 117 historically and predominantly Black colleges

and universities that are pr1varn 7-yPar and 4-year inatitutiono.

public 2-year and 4-year institutions as well as graduate and

professional institutions. NAFEO institutions are located in

fourteen southern states, six northern states, three mid-western

states one western state, the District of Columbia, and the Virgin

Islands, Therm anflogen and universities anroll apprewis4taly

300,000 students and award almost 30,000 academic degrees annually.
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Through the Gallantly* efforts of its webers:hip, NAVMDimmeks
to promote the widest possible sensitivity to the complex factors
involved and the institutional commitment required to create
SUOVessfUl higher education programs for students from groups
affected by the racism and neglect of the economic, educational,
and social institutions of America. Our aim is to increase the
flow of these students, mostly Black, into the Mainstream of our
society.

Since their inception in the middle and late 1800's, Black
colleges and universities have produced 70% of all of the Black
professionals. They were responsible for convertingan illiterate
people, freed from slavery by the Emancipation Proclamation in 1863
to literacy in the short span of 70 years--an unparalleled human
achievement.. Thcse institutions were also in the vanguard of the
civil rightt movement. Students from Black colleges and
universities marched and sat-in to initiate and to adhieve civil
rights for disenfranchised Black Americans. Thus, this nation is
a freer nation today, because these students started student
demonstrations and sit-ins that brought this nation to the
realization of its principles of equality and parity. Yet, the
contributions of Black colleges and universities are
disproportionate to the level of support that these institutions
have received from the federal government and the credit they
should have received for their educational achievements.

In spite of the fact that Black colleges and universities have
not received their share of federal resources, North Carolina An
State University (A&T) and other Slack institutions continue to
excel and to be the most productive institutions in educating Black
Americans. I would like to mention a few of our accomplishments
at North Carolina higT State University to illustrate this point and
to present a compelling case for greater support under the Higher
Education Act.

1. North Carolina AWE State University is the largest
historically Black university in North Carolina.

2. North Carolina A&T State University was the leading
university nationally in the production of Black
engineers for the academic year 1988-59.

3. North Carolina him State University's graduates command
second highest median salaries among all state
university graduates.

4. North Carolina AfiT State University ranks 2nd in annual
total dollars for sponsored research among NBCUs
nationally.

5. North Carolina AiT State University is the first
historically Black university with a nationally
accredited accounting program.
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6. North Carolina An State University operates an $1.4
million OM funded Hare Space Research Center with NorthCarolina State University.

7. North Carolina AST State University is the leadinstitution in the Spam Technology Development and
Utilization Program (STOP), which has consortium thatincludes Tuskegee Uhiversity, Southern University,Central State University, Jackson State University, and
New maxim Highlands University. The STOP has an academic
componwft which includes fellowships and scholarships tor
faculty and students, thiMthas received $3.3 million. andresearch component funded at a level ot $5.3 million.

I. North Carolina A6T State University operates thenationally recognised Chancellor's Executive Seminarsfor Careers.

9. North Carolina AST State University was awarded a $2.5million S -year grant by the National Science Foundation
(NSF) to annually place students into the PhD programsin encompassing fields of Electrical Engineering,Computer Science, and Telecommunications Technology.

Many other Black colleges and universities can boast ofaccomplishments which position them to help this nation meet thechallenges ot educating our emerging work force and recapturing ourcompetitive edge. I am sure, however, that our collective
reauthorization recommendations will show the need for a greaterfederal role in ensuring that Black colleges and universities arefiscally and, programmatically strong and prepared to continue theirlegacy of excellence.
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REAUTHORIZATION RECONNENDATIOMS

Reeently, NAFIO Organised a TaSk Force to review verious
Nigher Education Act reauthorieation proposals prepared by
educational organisations and to develop additional proposals thatwould reflect the unique interests of MATEO institutions. The TaskForce was composed of snorts from our campuses who have broadadministrative, teaching, and research experiences, and knowledgeof federal programs. Although the work of the KAM Task Force hasnot been finalised and endorsed by the entire membership, I feelconfident that the recomeendations which followwill highlight somecritical needs of RAM institutions that can be addressed within
the framework of the Nigher Education Act. Following this hearing,we would be glad to provide you with further iustifications,
authorization specifications, and/or legislative language.

TITLE II: ACADEMIC LIBRARY AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
ENHANCEMENT

We recommend the creation of Part 2 which wesla_crovide
novas for strenotheningLAIMAXY

andinformationjoience Proem:17,in mistoricenv Black call/saes end Upiversities.

Under this section, the Secretary would make grants to andcontracts with NBcUs and library organizations or agencies which
have approved programs in library and informati4n science to assistthem in the education and training of Black students and otherminorities in areas of critical need at the undergraduate andgraduate levels. Historically Black Colleges and Universitycampuses, that have shown a strong coemitment in support ofimproving library facilities, either through new construction
or/and renovations, should have available to them a supporting
program with funding over a multi-year period, beginning with $2014in the first year, $IM for the second year, $1014 for the third
year, and $514 dollars for the fourth year. The grants or contractswould be used to help cover the cost of courses of study or staffdevelopment, including short term or regular session institutes;to establish and maintain fellowships or traineeships with stipendsfor fellows who demonstrate nood and who are pureeing a graduatedegree; and to estabiish, develop, or expand programs of libraryand information science, including new techniques of informationtransfer and cossunication technology.

A program of special assistance is needed, because many HBCUsare not participating effectively in state, regional, and nationalelectronic networks. Participation is impeded due to a lack ofadequate training in planning and use or equipment and computersoftware that facilitate resource sharing. Ina:limpets funding forcontinuing education and improved training has prevented RBCUs fromkeeping pace with the rapid technical changes in library science.Staffs, therefore, have not been able to develop and maintaincompetence in the use of new technologies.

4

5 .1



50

Furthermore, the two HNC programs that have educated the

largest nueber of Black librarians, ClarkAtlanta University and

North Carolina Central University, can demonstrate that the

availability of fellowships has a significant impact on the

enrollment and graduation of Black students in Library Science at

these institutions.

The following chart graphically illustrates the preceding

consent.

NORTH CAROL/NA CENTRAL UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF LIBRARY AND

INFORMATION SCIENCES; NUMBER OF TITLE Ii-B FELLOWSHIPS/
PERCENTAGE OF BLACK 121ROLLNIIM NUMBER OF BLACK GRADUATES

Year Number of
fellowships

Percent of black
student enrollment

Number of black
KIS graduates

197809 5 58% 23

1979-80 2 55% 14

1980..81 2 49% 7

1981-82 3 49% 13

1982-83 2 458 22

1983-84 2 68% 8

1984-85 3 51% 8

1985-86 2 49% 5

1986.47 1 37% 9

19117-88 1 31% 9

1988-89 0 28% 8

1989-90 o 28% 8

Total 22 mean 40% 134

As NECUs expand their graduate programs, it is particularly

important to strengthen library resources. A separate program for

strengthening libmyand information science programs will augment

other initiatives to strengthen HOCUs and will recognize that the
Title III Program should not be the only program which reflects a

national commitment to strengthening these national resources.

IITIA-1111.--111111=121SLAIll

The following recommended changes in Title III, Parts s and

C have been agreed upon by the NAFE0 membership.

(I) ii.isstosonfLUALlhi.jiiiiinia_ggiajoLjtaolLAntitatismit
rsioag from 1350.000 to_11500.0gs.

Over the past five years, appropriations,have riien from
approximately 845 million to almost $BS million.. Yet, fifteen of

the neediest one hundred ana three (103) eligible Lnstitutions have

not gotten an increase from the minimum grant of $390,000. Vs

agree that a change in the minimum award to $500,000 would better
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equalise the funding among the undergraduate institutions.Additionally, Title III has boon extranaly important for theenhancement of HMIs. K. received an aWard of $1,385,975 for FY1991, bringing our grand total to $14,154,249 since we beganparticipating in the Title III program. At North Carolina AnState University, we nave used these funds to develop and implementthe following program examples, as wall as, many other academic,administrative and student oriented programa and activities,essential to the continued development of our institution:

1. A successful Freshman Studies Program, designed, tested,and fully instituted to assist all freshman students toadjust viably to the academic environment.

2. The Teacher Education Program, accredited by the NationalCouncil for th Accreditation for Teacher Education(NCATE).

3. The School of Business and Economics, accredited by theAmerican Assembly of Collegiate schools of Business(AACSB),

4. The Department of Accounting, accredited by the American
Assembly of Collegiate Schools of Business (PAM).

5. The University has developed and/or expanded several newand innovative programs which attract students to itscampus, including transportation, mass communications,landscape architecture, food science, industrial
technology, civil engineecing, industrial engineering,chemical engineering, agricultural milucation, computerscience, educational media, nursing, and educationalleadership and policy.

my colleagues on other MICU campuses have used these fundssimilarly as illustrated in Appendices A $ B. Clearly, in 1987,1986, and 1989, our highest priorities for uses of Title III fundswere for improvement of academic programs and student supportservices, and I as sure that these priorities will persist. Wewill need signi:icantly higher appropriations over the nextreauthorization period in Title III as well as in other educationprograms if we are to adequately address the many needs on ourcampuses.

(2) We recommend that five new nstitutionsile added tops:nip'

Five institutions (i.e., Clark-Atlanta University, CharlesDrew University school of Science and medicine; meharry Medicalschool, Morehouse school of Medicine, and Tuskegee universitySchool of Veterinary medicine) now receive funding under Section326 to strengthen and enhance their abilities to train Black

6
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professionals in areas critical to the national interest. There

are additional institutions in our sector with graduate and

professional progralle Of equal ist.prtance to the national interest.

The five new institutions include the Florida A&KUniversity School

of Pharmacy and Pharmaceutical Sciences which offers the Ph.D., the

North Carolina Central
University School of Law, the Southern

University school of Law, the Texas Southern University Schoo!s of

Law and Pharaacy which would have one share, and the Xavier

University School of Pharmacy.

Inclusion of these institutions in Section 326 would

strengthen and encourage research and enhance the production of

PhDs end legal scholars. The addition of the five new schools

would also provide a window of npporbtnity-for.othes.WBCUe

are developing doctoral and professional progress. In this regard,

we would like to have legislative language that would permit the

inclusion of other BEMs which meet eligibility requirements over

the reauthorization period, thereby, reducing the need for

legislative amendments as they emerge.

In testimony presented on
Decesber 10, 1990, at the Education

and Labor committee Oversight Hearing, it was recommended that a

program of support be provided for HISCUs to add the capacity to

produce PhDs. / want to reinforce this appeal as we address

reauthorization of the Higher Education Act. One avenue would be

to expand Section 326 of Title 212 to adait new schools when they

meet eligibility requirements and provide planning grants for HSCUs

which have the capability of offering graduate and professional

programs.

Historically Black Colleges and
Universities are the largest

producers proportionately of Blacks receiving baccalaureate degrees

annually. Approximately 100 institutions--3 percent of the total

higher education universe --enroll almost 260,000
students which is

about 20 percent of the 1.1 million Blacks enrolled in higher

education. Yet, we graduate about 20,000 students annually or

approximately 40 percent of the 36,000 Blacks who receive

baccalaureate degrees annually. Given this success, it is

important that we now turn our energies to producing PhDs. This

nation is now producing about 600 Black PhDs per year. In the year

1976, we produced over 1,000 Black PhDs.

We are suggesting that our success in educating Blacks

historically, as well as our current level of productivity, warrant

additional surTort from the federal government to develop graduate

programs at the PhD level. There is ample precedenC4 for this

support. In the 1960's, the National Science foundation, where the

Graduate Centers of Excellence in Science and Technology were

established, poured huge sums of money into predominantly white

institutions to increase their strength in offering the PhD,

particularly their capability to produce PhDs in the sciences for

the nation. Mar granted funds tor buildings, additional faculty,

student support, and for infrastructure development. With this
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model in mind and our national isperatives, we are recommending
that a similar program of support and infusion of federal d011are
be provided for Historically Blaok Colleges and Universities.
Building on.our unrivaled success in producing Black Scholars,
leaders, and legislators, such support would enable us in a more
affirmative and acoelerated fashion to participate in the business
of producing Bleck PhDs in areas that are critically needed by this
nation.

As an extension to the recommendation of adding five new
schools to Section 326 of Title III-6, I want the Subcommittee to
look at this section (or create a new section) as a possible avenue
for providing special support o institutions which have begun
graduate programs and those which, have some of the key ingredients
on which to build. However, I am proposing a more comprehensive
strategy for moving Historically Black Colleges and Universities,
as a sector, into graduate education at the PhD level to address
the under-supply of Black PhDs which this nation needs. Black
colleges and universities, the miracle workers of the past 100
years in educating the majority of Black professionals, can
continue to be miracle workers of the next century with adequate
federal support and cosnitnent.

We have been pursuing inclusion of the five new schools for
four years, and we have included a "hold harmless" provision for
the participating five institutions throughout the current
authorisation. It is_oarticularlv important to increase the
authorisation level of Section 326 to fiacasmodate the five new,

.. at .. I

(3) ye raamd that mew famSiag. in the amount of 616
sill oaper year. be ad for_a marled of five

;ILI Is] :te:oriaalivaLae: C:tle:es anddiTintrZi:::
tikatlinJakulcALMOillarill2a.
Infrastructure enhancement dollars must be made available to

the eight (6) Historically Black Colleges and Universities, with
Schools of Engineering. Data provided by the NSF for FY 196S,
indicated that America's Colleges and universities produced 3,326
PhDs, of this number, only 1,661 were native borne, and of that
number, only 24 were Black Americans. If by the year 2010, America
must produce a minimum of 11,000 PhDs annually, in fields of
science and engineering, than ware sure to have a major problem,
this is because the onca old bar network of institutions,
(Harvard, KIT, Georgia Tech, CalTech, Michigan State, North
Carolina Statv University, etc.), will not be able to meet the
challenge.

(4)
1 .1
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In 1983, with the establishment of the Challenge Grant
Program, Dr. Fred Patterson, the late founder of the United Negro
College Fund and President of Thalweg University, realized his
dream for the federal government to play a Major rOle in ensuring
the financial stability of HIM. From 1884 - 86, HMIs received
about 50 percent of the funds as a result of the application of an
existing HICU set-aside in Title III. After the removal of this
sete-aside in the 1986 Amendsents, HSCUs received only 13 percent
of the funds from 1987 - 1990. Specifically, in 1987, only 3 of
the 36 grants went to HICUs; in 1988, 8 of the 24 grants went to
HEICUs; in 1989, 5 of the 20 grants went to HliCUs; and in 1990, only
2 of the 22 grants went to HIM.

In terns of dollars, 66 HICUs received 105 grants/grant
reservations, totalling $32.9 million, from 1984 - 1990. Whereas,
198 institutions, including the 66 HDCUs, received 238 grants/grant
reservations, totalling $114.5 million, from 1984 e- 1990.

Clearly, the program initially targeted for H8Cus is no longer
adequately serving this population. A special authorization for
mscus would restore the original intent and would reflect the
nation's commitment to preserving these national resources, thereby
helping to leverage private resources. Moreover, this
recomendation would reinfnrrotho President's budget propocalo snd
his Educational Excellence proposal to provide an endowment set-
aside for HICUs to ensure their fiscal stability. This
recommendation also has the support of the higher education
community.

In addition, regarding the Endowment challenge crants, I would
id' you to considers (a) ineludilky rwww Ilvsibility in the
legislation which would allow any HICU with the capability to
generate endowment support to participate in the program; (b)
removing language which penalized those HMIs which have been more
successful in building their endowments in the private sector; and
(c) perhaps including a classification of HBCUs according to their
fundraising potential and level of endowment.

Even though some HBCUs, including Hampton University, have
been very successful in bgliding their; endowments, thoy do not
match their majority counterparts. There are not Hems on the list
ot um institutions with the largest ondowments. Furthermore those
with significant endowments are all private institutions which are
not guaranteed public support to operate, and, therefore, must
raise funds for endowment building as for general operations.
Federal endowment assistance would allow them to use more of the
funds they raise for expanding their programs and improving their
facilities.

Al am adaed-Unbaral of bbia rmaAMBIMMIWALLBMULLt-eSekingl
.t.illigia_alz=igaLnanium_softhe _hold-mit neriodaforlarae greats from tta
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TITLE IV: STUDENT FINANCIAL AID

::a41::::idalOrtiltriligram6411111:neas Ig.grgra

IL.212-121.1111a.

Our primary concern in addressing the monumental problem of
the imbalance of grants to loans is to increase the Pell maximum
and, thereby, minimize borrowing for low income students. I am
aware that there is considerable controversy over how a Pell Grant
maximum of 04,500 could be paid for without an entitlement. Yet,
current budget restrictions make an entitlement a remote
possibility, according to some analysts and legislators. Others
fear that a Pell Grant entitlement would erode the remaining
campus-based programs.

We do not have the answers. We only know that this nation
must find a way to invest in its human resources if we ars to
regain our competitive edge and prepare our emerging workforce for
our technology-based workplace. We must, therefore, take whatever
measures necessary to provide attractions to and financing of
postsecondary education. We cannot continue to boast of our goals
of access and choice for the masses and simultaneously force those
who need financial help the most to borrow huge sklms

disproportionate to their family incomes and to their initial
earning power.

Furthermore, forcing students who should be receiving grants
as the primary source of financing their education exacerbates the
luen defaulL problem ror union institutions are being held liable.
Black institutions, which have traditionally served the
disadvantaged populations, are being threatened With expulsion from
student aid programs and subjected to sanctiuns which drain their
resources and damage their rep4ming, TOTsforr. nnt nniv tin
wlney stucents bear the burden or loans, u institutions that

serve large numbers of them are penalized and stigmatized.

A majority of students attending Sleet colleges and
universities are from low-income families. / am sure, therefore,
that the panel of financial aid experts will give expert testimony
on the difficulties that we experience in putting together a
financial aid package for our students and in helping them complete
the cumbersome applization process. I would likle to reinforce the
concerns that I am sure have been expressed by giving some data on
my institution which is fairly typical of our large public Slack
institutions. Putting financial aid packages together in our
private Black institutions is even more difficult.

10
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1991-112 SITIMATO COST OP ATTINDAMCS AT
WITS CAROLINA A I I STATS UNITIWITI

ON CAMPUS

TINS
VADIWP

POLL
AWATO OA WAWA=

MID= 39041111331PE

Tuition and fnes $ 613 $ 3,141
Living Expenses 1,295 1,295
Books/Supplies 248 248
Transportation 228 2$5
Miscellaneous ---331 111

Per Semester $2,935 $ 5,520
Per Year $5,870 $11,040

OPP CAMPUS

Tuition and Fees $ 613 $ 3,141
Living Expenses 1,475 1,475
Books/Supplies 248 24$
Transportation 223 301
Miscellaneous 112

Per Semester $3,446 $ 6,032
Per Year $6,052 $12,064

WITS PARENTS (PO DIPENDENTS)

Tuition and Fees $ 613 $ 3,141
Living Expenses 750 750
Nooks/Supplies 248 24$
Transportation 223 301
Miscellaneous RAZ

Per Semester $2,701 $ 5,307
TIPP V.A. 04,tue 510,414

Again, access to university campuses is a monetary
consideration, and thousands of Black students do not have the
money necessary to enroll. Therefore, 'we are requesting
consideration be given tor establishing a multi-million-dollar
scholarship program, to provide assistance that will assure
accessibility for this economically disadvantaged group of
youngsters to matriculate in disciplines critical to the national
flod as engineering, coif:mom, math and emaiveLei rulence, ana
technology.

The average family ingome of students who receive need-based
assistance at ALT is $14,800. Even though their family incomes are
very modest and insufficient to support the costt outlined above,
many of these students are not eligible for a maximum Pell Grant
and must, therefore, borrow. Consequently, the average student
indebtedness at graduation is $8,500, more than a third of their
family income.

11
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Increases in the pe/1 Grant maximum to $4,500, with $2,750
maximum for cost of living, $1,760 (or 264) maximum 5or tuition,
and cheidges in the expected family contrioution (ITC), would
significantly increase the grant portion of the financial aid
package for our students and would considerably reduce the loan

levels. If we could accomplish this, we would send a clear message
that the netion is serious about and committed to our goals of
4000118 and choice, and that investment in its human resources is
a top priority.

2. Mrelm=Zulehalaisaajimmlinal"batiicapplimitzumeuedeaselveiseteabg

A more simplified system and application process would reduce
our administrative burden tremendously. In addition, many ot the
students that we recruit would not be discouraged from applying.
Consequently, our enrollments could increase as a result of a more
simplified financial aid application process and a higher

percentage of grant aid. Many of our students are the first
generation to attend college, and they receive little help in the
application process from their families. Therefore, our staffs
must help more extensively which necessitates considerable
resources.

3.

-am proarams.

Even with the prospect of a higher Pell Grant maximum, the
campus-based programs are critical ingredients in the financial aid
package of students at Black colleges and universities. Any effort
to increase Poll should not eliminate the other campus-based
programs. Elimination of these programs would be as damaging as
the continual escalation of loans. For the school year 1990-91,
AST needed an additional $3,178,902 to meat the full monetary needs
of our students after family contributions and financial aid.

Although we support greater flexibility in the transfer of
funds among programs, we do not support any increase in
institutional matches which would present a hardship at most of our
institutions. Waiver provisions should be retained to help
institutions which have difficulty meeting match raquirements.

4. yo reeemend invasion_ osu nrsvirion t forgive iptudests fq
asizzilLiLingianees Itudiumak.aulia._ssal_al../aginis=i_jiAlinziukLem, _Maffei:0 if aersiat and

One of the greatest challenges before this nation, as it
attempts to regain its competitive edge and accelerate its
productivity, is to increase the number of students, particularly

12
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minority end low-income, in higher education and to encourago thos
to excel and graduate in math, science, and engineering fields.
As you deliberate the reauthorization of the financial aid
programs, we ask that you consider the problems created by the
isbalance of grants to loans, specifically how this imbalance
denies access and choice for the groups of students who are in
greatest need and whom this nation will need to be the sost
productive in the next century,

lie need to increase the number of students going into
engineering, science and technology from the disadvantaged sector
if we are going to meet our workforce mandates and ensure our world
competitiveness. Our federal financial aid programs are two
vehicles to respono to the needs of low-incose populations that we
are trying to motivate, educate, and utilize in our guest for
economic and scientific competitiveness and solutions to world
problems. Thus, some type of carefully crafted loan forgiveness
program would be a beginning step towards guaranteeing that ourfinancial aid programs truly provide access and choice and
stimulate students, particularly minority and low-income, to go
into areas critical to the national interest.

1.

TITLE VI: INTERNATIONAL EDUcATION PROGRAMS

EctinimALSIALIW
9.

promiL auansnroflinirechool.elementary.
wide array of _Slack Americas children who will mita

lattari21"1-1111"garfenial""ffillitilli"2"111131"ligternationalerlebaledcia.
2. IttsammatilhatalawahalkLIILataistizo-121.1manaigistto provide that not lass them percent of tpe stifle§

nt

3.

taatir."91-112"211-12-4-1111-11111121arahata-11111111""allid r
.

this_jas_AsuLtba&ja_ausall Titip of =nes bp
I

eatierittrtitiriniternaitint= t:a:::resse the involvesent et.

Grants under this section would be used flr developing and
enhancing self-sustaining saintenance and growth; providingstipends for minority undergraduate and graduate students pursuing
degree requirements in foreign languages, foreign areas studies,

13
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and other international ftelds; xpanding Libyan' and teaching

resources: providing student aid tor study and internship abroad

progress: and eliminating any cost sharing provisions so as not to

add an additional burden to the buit^ s of these institutions.

The overall purpose of the foregoing recommendations is to

increase the institutional capacity of the Historically Slack
Colleges and Universities to educate faculty 4nd students about

international studies and careers.

American students are graduating in a world where they will

work alongside well-prepared, globally sophisticated foreign
competitors. Across the disciplines, college degrees have come to

mean very little, because they are not well grounded in

international studies. University courses and activities resain

dispersed throughout the curriculum in a highly uncoordinated and

fragmented winner with no specific overall mission on the part of

the institution. Nonethelss, the fate of Anerica's future

political and economic well-being rests on the ability of
universities to educate faculty and students about international

studies.

This situation worsens when the status of international

courses and activities are considered at Historically Black
Calleges and Universities. Faced with an evergrowing austere
financial dilemma, the HOcU has not been able to fund international

courses, internships, study abroad programs, research and other
activities that are necessary for preparing Black Aseriamistudents

to compete in a global society.

Historically, representation of Black Americans has been low

in international careers and participation in the formulation of
American foreign and management policy has been basically nil. The
Black American population must be equipped at all levels with an
understanding of different cultures, the economic and political
interdependence linkages between nations, a grasp of basic language
skills, and the ability to contribute to global research and
information networks.

A report pcesented by Congressaan Mune (0-Hu) et a 1289
forum sponsored by TransAfrica indicated that in the U.S. State
Department there were only 252 Black Americans among 4,166 Foreign
service Officers and only 17 among the 714 senior officers. Also,

there were just 6 Black American Ambassadors posted in Africa. He

further noted that of the 60 Mission Chiefs similarly situated in
five principle offices, and in the USIA, which has responsibility
for telling America's story abroad, there are only 6 Blacks among
the 166 at the executive and senior level and 54 asong the 744
total commissioned Foreign Service Information Officers. These
statistics have been documented in three separvte 1909 reports:
The Bremen Report, the Thomas Commission, and the GAO Report.

14
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The scarcity of Slack Americans in Foreign service is net
confined to the U.S. State Department, but also ether federal
agencies, academia, multilateral and none-governaental
organizations, international business and banking, development
planning, international law, and consultancies. Particularly Ln
business and banking, Black American under-representation is even
more severs.

Geopolitically. America's national interest suffers when our
diplomatic apparatus, charged with understanding and dealing with
a world that is 87% non-white, itself contains fewer than to% non-
whites. most international conflicts since the 19e0's have
involved people of color: the Bay of Pigs, Vietnam, Iran, Beirut,
Central America, and the Middle East.

Under-representation of alnorities has dire consequences for
the business sector as well as for multicultural understanding in
major societal institutions. This situation reduces the hard won
fight to participate fully in all aspects of American life. It
robs the Black American community of a high level of skills,
experience, Knowledge, and worldview.

In concluding, I want to thank you, Chairman Jefferson, and
other members of the Postsecondary Education subcommittee for
holding this hearing and for providing me the opportunity to
participate. Again, I applaud your leadership in seeking the views
and recommendations of the Black college comsunity on
reauthorization of the Higher Education Act. we look forward to
working with you on reauthorization and other issues.

15
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TITLE III GRANTS, EXPENDITURES BY TYPES
1987-1989

Dollars in Millions

1987 1988 1989
($46,740,905) (03,587,500) ($69,108,000)

tNM Fec. Each*. CA Lib. Mater. L. I Prol. Admin. MI So. Equip

I____1 Const./Maln I 0 Tutor/Consel INN Acad. Instr.
_

I

From unpublished report, D.o.E.
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APPENDIX E

TIT1E III, PART S EXPENDITURES AND ACHIEVEMENTS

1. $263.3 million waS appropriated for the Title II/ B Program.

2. Approximately 100 HSCUs received on the average about $601,310
a year each.

3. The number of institutions which received the floor of
$350,000 declined from 41 in 1987 at an appropriation level
of $46.7 million to 14 in 1991 at an appropriation level of
$87.8 million.

aptitutional Productivity from 19$7-1990

4. The enrollment of MU. increased from 217,921 to 246,000--an
increase of over 13%.

S. A total of over 400,000 HFICU students were Pell Grant
recipients.

6. The number of Pell Grant recipients in HSCUs increased by 5.8%
between 1987 and 1990 (i.e., 106,501 in 1987 and 112,278 in
1990)

7. The percentage of undergraduates from HISCUs entering graduate
school increase from 131 to 16%.

8. At the same time, the HICUs are more productive in graduating
students of advanced standings. In 1987, there were 114
doctorates conferred to Slacks from a total of 105 HSCUs. In
the same year, 1,060 doctorates were conferred to Slacks from
all U.S. institutions combined. Thus, HSCUs are graduating,
on a per institution basis, three and a half times more Slack

ttaan all U.S. institutions. The ratio rises to about
6 times for masters degrees. The ratio could be higher if we
calculate it on the basis of those institutions that have
doctoral or masters programs. There are 12 HICUs that grant
doctorates and 48 institutions that grant masters degrees.

lmrior,Ltiu_g2sgiu..AtjtuamLjags_iliaatt
9. Of the money received from Title XXI, there have been shifts

and changes in the spending patterns over the years. However,
development of new academic programs is the malor expenditure;
on the average, about 32.7% a year between.1987-1989. (SteAppendix A).

f;3
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10. The second major expenditure is Tutoring/Counseling and ether
student services. Together, they account for over 500 of the
money spent eacn year beoveen awes-aver. tes appenaix al.

11. In 1987, about 90.5% of the Title III money vas spent on
development of Ivry academic programs and for student services:
in 1959, the percentage increased to 56.547--rteldiag 'a
marginal increase of 11%.

12. Such increases can be expected from the increases in
enrollment given the fact that these expenditures are student -
oriented. Over the same period of 1957-1919, enrollment
increased by 9.7%.

In light of the foregoing facts, two observations can be made:
(1) the increase in allocation of funds to student-oriented
activities is driven by the increase in enrollment, and (2) the
relatively close notch of the increase in funding allocation and
enrollment - 11% and 9.7% --shows that HICUs respond to the
challenge effectively and apply the Title III money efficiently.

111
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Appendix C
Summary

Preliminary Analysis of a MATZO Survey or
Historically Slack Colleges and Universities

to Determine Impact of Title ur Grants

1) Title XIII greats have been am istegral pext ofsthe progress
of the liens towards excellence aad WV-sufficiency. The
respOnses to the NAFEO survey show that between 1987-1991, on the
01/Ormid. 70% of an institution's annual budget for Faculty
Development was supported from Title IIIS funds; 42% of the budget
for Academic and Instructional Programs; 27% of the budget for
Institutional and Research Equipment; and 23% of the budget for
Student Services.

2) Title 1111 money has also been used for administrative
purposes. The registration process has bean computerized in some
institutions, and for other institutions, grant management and
information management have been computerized.

3) TO continue to raise the graduation rate has been a primary
goal for RICO.. Again, virtually all SBCUs have used the Title
ITIB grants to develop freshman seminars, pre-college summer
programs, special recruitment programs, developmental studies
programs, remedial study skills centers, counseling and tutoring.
Between 1984 and 1988, it has been reported by some institutions
that retention improved from 50% to 70%.

4) Acadenic programs that have long been identified as severely
under-represented by sinoritias are add or enhanced with the Title
1118 grant.. Among others, physics, computer sciences,
environmental sciences, physical/occupational therapy,
telecommunications, nursing, mass communications, journalism,
special education, and rehabilitation have either been established
or improved in virtually all of the MMUS. As the statistics in
(1) above show, almost half of the money came from the Title XIII
Program.

11) what deserves special mntion is the progress that IBMs have
made in the area of Motel and Restauraat Management. several new
hotel and restaurant sanagement programs have beer established in
the last 5 years. The success and the need for thse programs are
evidenced by the overwhelming number of applications. In part,
these programs are the MCC response to the lack of small business
enterprises owned and managed by minorities in the U.S.
Additionally, these programs address the Widening opportunities inthe tourist and restaurant industry and the aspirations of
minorities to either own or manage the establishments.

19
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6) Academic programs are enhanced tbrough equipment acquisitions

and renovation ot laboratory facilities. Audiology labs,

industrial and engineering center* have been renovated and enhanced

With state -of-th4ware equipeent. MUmerous cosputers have been

purchased for instructional as well as for research purposes.

Satellite dishes have been purchased, end other network Connections

have been established. One institution renovated a building with

the Title XIII money to provide an industrial-like environment,

including a kitchen for its Hotel and Restaurant Management
program. Another school applied sone of its money to establish

joint programs with local TV stations for its Mass Communications

and Journalism programs.

7) Academic programs have also bees enhanced through improved

faculty quality. As the statistics in (1) show, Title IUD plays

a critical role in this area. Dozens of faculty members have been

able to receive terminal degrses in their field through the Title
IIIS grants, and dozens more are at the dissertation stage. In

addition, various innovative faculty development programs have been

developed. For example, one institution developed Thinking Centers
where faculty members can attend seminars with will-known scholars

and share experiences and knowledge in writing, teaching, and

researach. A few institutions also developed computer literacy

programs for faculty members. Significant progress in developsent
requires innovative programs, and Title 1110 has provided money
where the traditional route has proven to be difficult.

a) Paculty and student research have been complemented by library

facilitf..s. Indeed, most of the respondents have allocated some
Title :1112 money for library activities. While it does not
constitite a large portion of the institutional budget, a full 40%

of the rwaponding institutions used their Title IIIB grant for the
much needed library automation and devices that Zacilitate search

for materials.

9) The Title IIIC Endowment Grant has yet to become a functional

component of the operating budget. The percentage that the Title
III Endowment Grant constitutes in the total endowment of an
institution varies widely, ranging from about 5% to as high as 45%,
with an average of about 40%. On the average, less than 10 of the
income for the operating budget for an institution came from the

income yield from the Title III Endowment. (Our final analysis may

show a different impact.)

10) IMICUs are preparing themselves for the next century. Goals
for the next five years are set and plans developed. The survey
shows that between 1992097, average costs to support these new
plans will be increasing about 25% annually in the area of academic

and instructional programs, about 204 in the area of funds
development and institutional advancement; about 10% in the area
of library materials; about 61 in the area of faculty development;
and about 5% in the area of student services.
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Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, Dr. Fort.
Dr. Moore?

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM MOORE, VICE CHANCELLOR OF ACA-
DEMIC AFFAIRS, SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, LOU-
ISIANA

Mr. MOORIC. Mr. Chairman, I am here in a dual role of represent-
ing the Southern University system and the Baton Rouge campus.
I am academic Vice Chancellor on the Baton Rouge campus.

The Southern University system consists of four entities which
are strategically located throughout the State of Louisiana. They
consist of a 2 year campus in Shreveport, a law center in Baton
Rouge, an urban commuter campus in New Orleans, and a Level
III doctoral institution in Baton Rouge. The Southern University
system is the only system of higher education within the Histori-
cally Black College and Universities community.

I am pleased to have the opportunity to appear before your com-
mittee this morning. I commend you on the broad based and me-
thodical approach you are taking to obtain valuable input on the
reauthorization of the Higher Education Act. For indeed, as has
been pointed out already, some of the noteworthy accomplishments
of our universities have remained well-kept secrets. It is through
the regional hearings that we are able to tell you, on our turf, what
we are doing. We think you will find our hospitality warm and less
intimidating than is usually the case around the Potomac.

Although I am a part of the Southern University system, I will
confine most of my remaining 4 minutes to the Baton Rouge
campus, the largest and oldest unit within the system. Southern
University, Baton Rouge, is an 1890 land grant institution with an
enrollment in excess of 9,000 students. The history of the universi-
ty is punctuated with achievements of its graduates. For example,
the university claims among its graduates seven generals in the
United States Army, which at my last count, is more than 25 per-
cent of all generals produced by 1890 land grant institutions.

The prominent role that the university has played in graduating
a sigmficant percentage of minority lawyers is no doubt well-
known to this committee. Southern University also has a long and
distinguished history as one of the leading HBCUs to produce grad-
uates who have earned the Ph.D. degree in political science, chem-
istry, and the biological sciences. In fact, the university has tradi-
tionally led all schools in producing black political scientists who
have a Ph.D.note that I say at all schoolswho have attained a
Ph.D. in political science, and has ranked in the top four in produc-
ing graduates who have obtained a Ph.D. in chemistry.

What is little known, however, is that during the period 1985
through 1989, 10 percent of all blacks in the United States who re-
ceived a Ph.D. in physics graduated from Southern University in
Baton Rouge. This is, indeed, a major accomplishment given the
large number of colleges and universities we have in this country.

Further, Southern University provides a wholesome, intellectual,
and cultural environment for the development of leaders among its
graduates. In 1990, three former student government association
presidents served in the Louijiana legislature. Today, as I speak to
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you, I should remind this distinguished committee that one of your
peers is a Southern University graduate, who is also the first black
to be elected to the United States Congress from Louisiana.

My point for mentioning these examples is not to suggest that
other Maki do not have similar claims. Indeed, many of them do,
as you have already heard. In fact, the unbelievable achievements
of such institutions should be sufficient justification for the various
requests which have been made in behalf of HBCUs with regard to
the proposed Higher Education Act revisions.

To date, several persons have presented recommendations to this
subcommittee for increased funding for the Title III component of
that act. The Southern University system supports these recom-
mendations. Of course, I will not reiterate them in detail. We espe-
cially give our strong support to the recommendation which called
for expansion of Part B activities under Title III. These include in-
creasing the minimum Part B grant from $850,000 to $500,000. We
also strongly endorse the expansion of the graduate school support
which was outlined in sufficient detail by Chancellor Fort. I will
not go into that.

On behalf of Southern University I wish to make a special
appeal for a change in the authorizing language to use Part B
funds so that institutions might be able to achieve goals of the uni-
versity's program in cases where such goals are not specifically au-
thorized. In other words, we are calling for flexibility in the lan-
guage.

I will not comment on some of the benefits of Title III in produc-
ing exemplary programs at the university, as did the two previous
presenters. I have it in the written text. Some of them are so exem-
plary, though, that it is difficult to resist the temptation of not
commenting on them. But, I will go to the conclusion of my com-
ments, and just indicate that we view one of our programs, the
Honors Program, as one which will directly address this underre-
presentation of minorities in all fields, Ph.D.s, and is the unique
way that we are approaching the Honors Program that will allow
us to do it.

Achievements at Southern University described herein are those,
which as I said before, have been experienced by other institutions.
What they do is, they underscore the fact that there are creative
solutions to some of the more difficult academic problems we face
at Historically Black Colleges and Universities. They also point out
that many of these difficult learning challenges require funding
beyond traditional formulas. Many such programs at Southern
University are supported through Part B funding of Title III. This
is one of the reasons we recommend reorganization with greater
flexibility in language. We are confident this type of support will
enhance this Nation's chances of achieving true global competitive-
ness.

I thank you for the opportunity to share some of our views at our
institution with this important subcommittee. Thank you very
much.

[The prepared statement of William Moore follows:]
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee

am William E. Moore , Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs at Southern University In

Baton Rouge. I am pleased to have the opportunity to represent Dr. Dolores R. Spikes,

President of the Southern University System and Dr. Marvin Yates, Chancellor of

Southern University at Baton Rouge. The four entities which constitute the Southern

University System are strategically located throughout the state of Louisiana. They

consist of a two-year campus In Shreveport, a UM Center in Baton Rouge, an urban

commuter campus in New Orleans, and a Level IA Doctoral institution in Baton Rouge.

The Southern University System is the only system of higher education withlr4 the

Historically Black College and University (HEICU) Community.

I am pleased to have the opportunity to appear before your committee this morning. I

commend you on the broad based and methodical approach you are taking to obtain

valuable input on the reauthorization of the Higher Education Act. For indeed, some of

the noteworthy accomplishments of our universities have remained well kept secrets,

and it is through these regional hearings that we ars able to tell you what we are doing

on our turf. We think you will find our hospitality warm and less Intimidating for us than

some of the sites near the Potomac.

By way of experience, I have spent my entire professional career as a university

professor, having had the privilege of holding full-time teaching or administrative

appointments at four historically black Institutions. I have also served as visiting or

adjunct professor at four other majority institutions the latter representing some of the

finer examples of tradition, elitism, and ethnic purity. I mention these things not In the

interest of self indulgence, but because I believe these experiences have given me the

opportunity to observe and participate in a spectrumof educational programs, many of

which have relevance to the concerns of your committee, and some to which I will refer

today in regard to the reauthorization.

Although I am a part of the Southern University system I will confine most of my

comments to the Baton Rouge campus, the largest and oldest unit within the system.

Southern University Baton Rouge Is an 1890 Land Grant Institution with an enrollment

1



70

In excess of 9000 students. The history of Southern University Is punctuated with
achievement of Its graduates. For example, the university claims among its graduates

seven generals In the United States Army which I. more than 25% of all generals

produced by 1890 Land Grant institutions. The prominent role the University has

played in graduating a significant percentage of minority lawyers is no doubt well
known to this committee. Southern University also has a long and distinguished
history as one of the loading HBCU's to produce graduates who have earned Ph.D.
degrees In political science , chemistry and biological sciences. In feet the University

has traditionally led all schools in producing black political scientists and ranks among
the top four HBCU's In producing graduates who have obtained the Ph. D. In
chemistry. Who is little known is that during the period of 1985.through 1989, ten

per cent of all blacks in the United States who .received the Ph. D. In physics were
Southern University graduates. This is indeed a major accomplishment, given the

large number of colleges and universities In this country. Further, Southern University

provides a wholesome intellectual and cultural environment for the development of

leaders among its graduates. In 1990, three former student government presidents

from Southern University served in the Louisiana Legislature, and today as I speak to
you , I should remind thls distinguished committee that one of your peers is a Southern

University graduate who is also the first black to be elected to The United States
Congress from Louisiana. My point for mentioning these few examples is not to
suggest that other HBCU's do not have similar claims. Indeed, many of them do. In

fact the unbelievable achievements of such institutions should be sufficient justification

for the various requests which have been made in behalf of the HBCU's with respect

to the proposed Higher Educatien Act revisions.

To date several persons have presented recommendations to this subcommittee for
increased funding for the Title III component the Higher Education Act. The Southern

University System supports those general recommendations made by NAFEO and
other groups whose views reflect those of the larger HBCU community. We especially

give our strong support to thsesfecommendations which call for the expansion of part
B activities under Title iii.'fiirse include increasing the minimum part B grant from
$350,000 to 8500,000. We also strongly endorse the expansion of graduate support

to include Xavier University School of Pharmacy, Southern University School of Law,

2
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Texas southern University School of Law or School of Pharmacy, Florida A&M

University School of Pharmaceutical Sciences, and North Carolina Central University

School of Law.

On behalf of Southern University I wish to make a special appeal for a change in the

authorizing language in the use of Part B funds so that institutions might be able to

achieve goals of the univemry's program even in cases where such goals are not

specifically authorized. Permit me to now comment how one specific section of the

Part B program has had a significant impact on Southern University in Baton Rouge.

The great challenge that many HSCU's face today is that of creating learning

environments which will accommodate students of a wide range of abilities and

backgrounds. Hence it is not surprising to find schools employing three distinct tracks

of learning, including a developmental track, a standard or average track, and an

honors curriculum. Generally, special emphasis Is placed on the two extreme tracks,

and students In the standard track tend to benefit from a traditional curriculum.Through

partial support form Part B funds we have been able to make significant headway In

this somewhat refined system of teaching and learning. In this regard I bring the

following few examples to the committee'sattention:

We have implemented universIty-wide threshold examinations for writing
proficiency end for comprehensive mastery of subject matter in the
student's major.

We have developed volunteer mentoring program in which MOM than

300 faculty and staff persons serve as special mentors and assist

students with both personal and academic problems.

We have instituted a variety of faculty development activities to support
new academic initiatives as well as the rapidly changing requirements in

various fields.

We have added several new dimensions to the honors college, some of
which are designed to target more of the honors students for graduate
study. Other changes have been made to give assurance that our honors
graduates are nationally and even globally competitive.

We have implemented a skill enhancement program in which certain
3
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basic skills are deliberately reinforced throughout the student's course of
study. This activity is implemented in freshman seminar and is reinforced
in the mentoring program and in other upper level classes.

While we are experimenting with portfolio methods of evaluation, we are
placing greater emphasis on standardized tests. In some areas we have
established indicators which would lot us know when students are ready
to sit for a particular standardized test. These indicators will also tell us
what typo of intervention is appropriate for students who are not ready.

We recently piloted some of the intervention strategies in a special fourweek program for underprivileged students. The results wereencouraging.

Some of the specific result s from these selected programs are
Through the mentoring program some students have changed their
academic status from probation to the dean's list.

W. hav observed an average increase in ACT scores of above two
points for a four week period of study. We have noted this typo of
average for students who possess numerous personal problems.Specific
students have shown Increases of five to seven points

We have noted marked improvement on Board Exams for nurses. We
have had throe successive 100% passage rates over the past year.

The results described herein have been experienced at other institutions in some
cases. They underscore the fact that there are creative solutions to some of the more
difficult academic problems wo face at Historically Black Colleges and Universities.
They also point out that many of those difficult Warning challenges require funding
beyond traditional formulas. Many such programs at Southern University are
supported through Pan B funding of Title M. This is one of the reasons we recommend
reauthorization with greater flexibility in the language. We are confident this type of
support will enhance this nation's chances of achieving true global competitiveness.

I thank you for the opportunity to share some of the views of our institution with this
important subcommittee.

4
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Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, Dr. Moore.
Dr. Hack ley.

STATEMENT OF LLOYD V. HACKLEY, CHANCELLOR, FAYETTE-
VILLE STATE UNIVERSITY, FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Mr. HACKLEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As I open my com-
ments, let me make a couple of statements to give you some indica-
tion as to where I approach this program from.

I attended five historically wliite institutions and I worked in
two historically white institutions and was a vice president in a
large historically white system, but I have headed two historically
black colleges. I wanted you to know that so that some of my com-
ments would make a little bit more sense to you.

I will also need to point out that inside this college here is a
school teacher trying to get out. That is another aspect of my ap-
proach to this problem which will help you understand my prob-
lem. I do thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members of this commit-
tee for this opportunity to make a few comments to you today on a
subject of immense importance to students who predominate in
those institutions to which Title III and Title IV have been so im-
portant.

The students to whom I refer, black, poor, or otherwise disadvan-
taged, continue to be underserved by our education system, indeed,
by our social system, and they are turning in increasing numbers
to Historically Black Colleges and Universities. These students
have begun to understand that the glory of being admitted to one
of those large, mainstream institutions will soon offset as attrition
begins to take a greater toll on their numbers, and they are the
best prepared from the minority communities. At the same time,
even students who are from more advantaged backgrounds are
fmding that some of the problems created in public schools are
better dealt with in Historically Black Colleges and Universities,
thus increasing their chances for graduation.

In my few minutes today, I will limit my discussion to those as-
pects of Title III and Title W of particular relevance to Historically
Black Colleges and Universities which focus in the main on under-
graduate education. The scale and importance of the entitlements
under HEA are far too broad to encapsulate today. However, most
HBCUs do focus on undergraduate teaching, even though funding
patters, as pointed out by Dr. Ford, granting agencies, and respect,
public and private, focus overwhelmingly on large, graduate level,
research multi-versities. Title III and Title IV, in particular, fortu-
nately have helped make up for some of this deprivation.

The Education Commission of the States indicated that the
number of minority students participating and succeeding in
higher education is declining. The only question is whether the de-
cline is already becoming a crisis, or soon will be one. Clearly, we
have not achieved educational equity. Changes are not projected in
this kind of environment.

To explain our failure, antiquated myths about ethnic intellectu-
al limitations continue to be raised. However, many studies clearly
reveal that there are consistent patterns of unequal opportunities
among schools for various children to learn math and science, for

it
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example. In elementary schools with more than 90 percent minori-
ty enrollment, 28 percent of the math and science courses are low
level, as compared with only 7 percent in schools with large white
populations.

Our failure to solve the problems which poverty inflicts on chil-
dren no matter where they go to school is well known and need not
be repeated here.

Nationally, the gap between black graduation and white gradua-
tion rates has grown from 5 percentage points to 18 percentage
points, down from about 45 percent to about 46 percent for black
students, and up from about 50 percent to 54 percent for white stu-
dents. We are losing ground. To achieve parity in college gradua-
tion rates, the number of minorities graiivating from college in
America would have to be tripled by the year 2000, and quadrupled
for physical and life sciences and engineering. Keep in mind that
the numbers of such students currently enrolling in college are not
even holding steady. To have minority students enrolled in college,
in proportion to their numbers in the Nation, will require about 1.3
million additional students enrolling in college by the year 2000.
Again, what do you cut to achieve these ends?

We can change what we do to increase the college bound pool of
minority students. There are simple steps we can take to improve
the current college education situation of underserved students.
For example; low income college students served by comprehensive
academic support systems with mentoring, early intervention and
bridging programs are twice as likely to complete the first year of
college, and four times as likely to earn a degree as compared with
those students who do not get such support.

They say we do not know what to do. Yes, we do. Efforts are
most effective if begun by the sixth grade, and if they include con-
crete standards and incentives to college and employment certain-
ties. Telling a kid in the twelfth grade that he has a Pell Grant is
far too late. He needs to be told in the sixth grade that if he gradu-
ates from college with a particular grade point average and certain
kinds of other behavioral standards, you will have him in college.
He will go.

All of these components that I have just described are at Fayette-
ville State University, and are supported by Title III and Title IV.
The downside of our efforts are that we can handle with current
funding only 16 percent of our college students eligible for .3upport
services-16 percentand a little over 2.5 percent of the low
income, fourth generation, public school students in our area who
qualify for upward bound, bridging programs. Again, about 2.6 per-
cent of the kids in our area who could be helped with these pro-
grams are helped by Fayetteville State University. Only 16 percentof the students in our college who will qualify for the support serv-ices are able to get them with the current funding.

The major upsides of our activities are that 90 percent of the
public school clients attend college. Ninety percent of the kids we
can get involved with in the public schools go to college some-
where. And 20 percent of our college clients attend graduate
school. You say we do not know what to do? Yes, we do.

As a result of funding that allowed Fayetteville State University
to expand its involvement in precollege activities and better aca-
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demic and counseling programs after enrollment, the following
changes in our success have occurred in the past 3 years.

There has been an enrollment increase of more than 26 percent.
Black student enrollment from our primary service area has in-
creased by more than 45 percent. Because of better recruitment
and better support, we have about 500 more black students at Fay-
etteville State University than we could have projected just 3 years
ago. White student enrollment has increased by some 58 percent.
The quality of the student body has improved by more than 26 per-
cent.

Black male SAT scores increased at Fayetteville State University
by 156 points. Black female SAT scores increased by 140 points.
White students reflected an average SAT score growth of some 82
points. Retention rate, again, the important thing is not access but
success, the retention rate of first time freshmen has increased by
28 percent. The success rate of students moving into their junior
year improved by more than 60 percent. Additional positive results
not only argue against cuts, but also support additional funding.

In closing, Mr. Chairman, I submit that America is in greater
danger from our failure to address problems of poverty and poor
education than from Saddam Hussein. To even consider cuts, in-
stead of additions, seems rather un-American to me. When 82 per-
cent of the young people who get in trouble with the law are func-
tionally illiterate, and it costs $100,000 to build a prison cell, and
$25,000 per year ta care for a prisoner, we are investing on the
wrong end of our population. Only with early and continuing sup-
port through Title III and Title IV programs will these problems be
solved.

Mr. Chairman, that completes my comments.
[The prepared statement of Lloyd V. Hack ley followsl
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Mr. Chairman, members of this subconnittee, I appreciate the

opportunity to make a few oonments to this august body one subject

of Lammas significance to students who predominate in those

institutions to which Title III and Title IV have been so

important. Th students to vhom I refer -- Black, poor, or

otherwise disadvantaged -- continue to be under-served by our

eduoation oyster, indeed by our social ystem and are turning in

increasing nuabers to BSCUs. These students have begun to

understand that the glory of being admitted to large, nsinstreen

institutions is soon offset as attrition takes a grsater toll on

their numbers, the best prepared from minority communities.
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At the same time, ven students who ars from more advantaged

circumstances are finding that some of ths academic problems

developed in public sohools ars dealt with better in NSCUs, thus

increasing their chances for graduation.

In my few minutes today, I will limit my discussion to those

aspects of Title XII and Title Vet particular relevanoe to HIM,

which focus in the main on undergraduate education. The scale and

isportance of the entitlements under MBA are tar too broad to

encapaulate today. Abreover, most Aseve do focus on undergraduate

teaching, even though funding patterns, granting agencies, and

respect, public and pvivate, focus overwhelmingly on large,

graduate-level, research multi-versities. Title 111 and Title IV,

in particular, fortunately have helped make up tor some of this

deprivation.

3
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Although perhaps not an emphasis of this hearing, most of the

programs that have been designed to improve Black student

involt sent In higher education hove been less than effective

because they did not include plans designed to reduce the need for

tho special programs. The progress were essentially concessions,

slated primarily to addrees inadequacies of e current generation.

A propor program would have required preceding components of the

X-16 system to initiate plans to reduce the number of students who

required the concession.

I have chosen to deal with bridging programs assisted by IMA,

because they allow many of oUr institutions to improve the flow of

students moving well-prepared through the educational pipeline.

3
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lope of us have finally realised the sagnituds of the physidal lose

of Students at every level in the pipeline, as well as the higher

attrition which occurs after college enrollment when students have

not taken the right kinds of courses in public BO/tools, or when

they have not achieved excellence in their studies. my mous is

drawn to this aspect of Him because of the state of the educational

failure rate of slack children in education today.

Robert Atwell, President of the American Council on Education,

said, "...the downward spiral in Black participation in higher

education reflects a long-tern trend that is absolutely fatal to

this nation in the long run."

4
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The Ilducation Commission of the States indicated that the

number of minority students participating and outmoding in higher

education is declining; the only question is whether the decline

has already become a crisis or soon will be one. Clearly we have

not achieved educational equity.

To explain our failure, antiquated myths about ethnic

intellectual limitations continue to be raised. However, many

studies reveal clear and consistent patterns of uneqUal

opportunities among schools for various children to learn math and

science. Tr elementary schools with more than 90 percent minority

enrollment, 28% of the math and science courses are low level as

compared with only seven (7) percent in schools with large white

populations.

Our failure to solve the problems which poverty inflicts on

children no matter where they go to school is.well known and need

not be repeated here.

5
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I must point out, however, that according to AASCU, the gap between

the education levels of rich and poor 11-24 year olds, is wider now

than it has been in 20 years. Children from rich families enroll

in college at a 73% rate compared to 29% for poorest families. In

the late 1980's, a student from an upper income family was 8 to 13

time more likely to graduate from college than a student in the

lowest quartile.

The education gaps between minorities and whits students, are

pervasive, persistent and increasing. I see nothing to persuade

me that improvement is soon likely to occur. Indeed, conditions

certainly will worsen if cuts continue in the progress we are

discussing today. It is nearly impossible to achieve high levels

of educational quality it wide gaps exist among races, sexes,

socio-economic levels and geographic locations. The whole system

must be upgraded, from prekindergarten through college.

During the past two decades, Black educational gains in

college admission have been offset by attrition from colleges.

0
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nationally, the gap between illeok graduation and white graduation

rates has grown from five (S) peroentage point, to la points, down

from 45% to about 36% tor Slack students and up from 60% to 54% for

white students.

To achieve parity in college graduation rates, the number of

minoritiem graduating from °olio's in America would have to be

tripled by the year 20001 and quadrupled for physical and life

scienoss and engineering. Keep in mind that the numbers of such

tudents currently entering college are not even holding steady.

To have m:aority students enrolled in college in proportion to

their numbers in the nation will require about 2.3 million

additional students enrolling in college by the year 2000.

We nu change what we do to increase the oollege-bound pool

of minority students. There are simple steps we can take to

Saprove the current college education situation of under-served

students.

7
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For example, low inoome oollege students served by comprehensive

academic support systems vith mentoring, early intervention and

bridging programs are twice as likely to complete the first year

of college and, tour times as likely to earn a degree as compared

with those who do not get such support.

Special *opponents of successful oollege programs include the

following:

1. Eerly intervention and bridging programs (before

matrioulation). Efforts are most effective if begun by

pixth craft and include cons:rota standards and incentives

for college and employment certainties.

2. Pt program of stringent assossinitts Of &cadmic ooaptena

and proper placement in both level of rigor and credit

hour load.

3. Comprehensive acedepic enhanoement services.

4. Early career advising.
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5. Supportive and available taoulty umbers in a Un-

developed montoring system.

6. High quality, comprehensive student support services.

All of these components exist at Partteville State

University.

The downside of our efforts are that we can handle with

current funding only 16 percent of our college students eligible

for support services and only about 2.5 percent of the low-income,

first generation public school students in our area who quality for

upward bound, bridging programs. The major =Ids of our

activities are that 90 percent of public mohool clients attend

conege and 20 percent of our college clients attend graduate

school.

9
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As result of funding that allowed Fayetteville state

University to expand ita involvement in precollege activities and

better aoademio and counseling progress after enrollment, tha

following changes in our sucoess have occurred in the past three

years:

1. There has boon an enrollment increase of more than 26

percent:

2. Black student enrollment from our primary servioe area

hes increased by more than 45 percent;

34 Because of better recruitment and better support, we have

about 50U more Slack students at Fayetteville state

University than oould be projected three years ago.

4. white student enrollment has increased by moss 56

percent:

5. the quality a the student body has improved by more than

26 percent;

6. Black male saT score. increased by 161 points;

10
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7. Slack female SAT scores inorassad by 146 points;

s. white students reflected an avorage SAT soore growth of

some 62 points;

9. retention of first-time freshmen has increased by 26

percent; and

lo. success of students gloving into their junior year

improved by more than 60 percent;

Additional positive results not only argue against outs, but

also support additional funds.

11
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Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, Dr. Hack ley.
Dr. Turner?

STATEMENT OF JOHN R. TURNER, PRESIDENT, KNOXVILLE
COLLEGE, KNOXVILLE, TENNESSEE

Mr. Thum. I am John Turner, a relatively new college presi-
dent in the HBCU family, having spent the last 15 years of my life
at one of these institutions that we referred to earlier, MIT. I was a
graduate dean there for some 15 years, and worked toward trying
to provide some sense of access to these institutions that heretofore
have not been as receptive to the kinds of students that we were
looking to attract.

It is, indeed, my pleasure, along with my colleagues to be here
today, even though I know that dimension returns are setting in at
this number of panel members.

Before beginning my testimony on Title IV, I would like to pro-
vide the members of the subcommittee with a philosophical back-
drop from UNCF's recommendations. As you know, Knoxville Col-
lege is one of the 41 UNCF institutions. I may add that there is an
anomaly there in a sense that we have more black males than fe-
males attending Knoxville College. Fifty-five percent of the 1,266
students are black males, which is another speech at another time.

As many of you know, UNCF was the only mikjor presidential as-
sociation in the higher education community which did not endorse
the package of recommendations which was sent to the subcommit-
tee in response to Chairman Ford's request. That was submitted by
the American Council on Education. UNCF declined to do so be-
cause ACE and our 11 sister associations in the higher education
community all declined to endorse enactment of a Pell Grant enti-
tlement. Their refusal to support a full Pell Grant entitlement, and
UNCF's steadfast commitment to enactment of a Pell Grant enti-
tlement and beginning implementation in fiscal year 1994, caused
us to go our separate ways.

In UNCF's view, this is not simply a disagreement over budget
act requirements, or appropriate legislative strategy and tactics.
Rather, it reflects our commitment to guaranteeing financial aid to
low income students as part of a continuing Federal commitment
to equal opportunity in higher education. That commitment al-
lowed me, as associate dean of the graduate school at MIT, to facili-
tate the development of Dr. Fort's graduate, Ronald McNair, as a
person, an engineer, and a Ph.D. from MIT in Physics, and later
on, as an astronaut for the United States.

That commitment made it possible for Mary Hatwood Futrell to
teach dozens of young black minds in the Commonwealth of Virgin-
ia, and later become national president of the National Education
Association. That commitment also prepared the Nation's first
black, popular elected governor, L. Douglas Wilder, as an under-
graduate and as a law student. And honed the legal scales of Amer-
ica's first black Supreme Court Justice, ThurgoW Marshall.

That commitment also prepared students from Knoxville College,
like syndicated Chicago Sun-Times columnist, Vernon Jarrett; Cali-
fornia teacher of the year, Dr. Patricia Worthy O'Shiek; and a
lawyer lobbyist that many of you already know, William A. Blak-



88

ley, who serves as Washington counsel for UNCF, and has worked
with members of this subcommittee over the years on legislation
affecting black colleges and universities in Federal student aid.

U.N.C.F. support for a Pell Grant entitlement is directly related
to our support for low income students. We believe a Pell Grant
entitlement is directly related to increasing higher education op-
portunities for African Americans and other minorities at both the
undergraduate and graduate professional levels, as well as reduc-
ing appallingly high levels of student attrition and related student
loan defaults.

Increasingly, public attention and public policy makers are focus-
ing their attention on the difficulties facmg middle income stu-
dents and their families in financing a college education. While
UNCF member institutions serve significant numbers of middle
income students, we serve as a personal access point for lower
income students, as the data in my prepared testimony indicates.
We hope that the Congress, and especially this subcommittee, will
not abandon low income students.

The soundest and surest way to assure access and some measure
of choice for all eligible students is to enact a Pell Grant entitle-
ment. The central element of the puzzle, a piece necessary to
insure access for low income min orities, and to assure persistence
for graduation, and thereby, redt :e and eliminate student loan de-
faults, is a Pell Grant entitlement. A Pell Grant entitlement, cou-
pled with some form of front loading, is essential to insure that mi-
norities participate in the American dream, and enter the main-
stream in the 21st century.

While UNCF supports significant increases in the Pell maxi-
mum, we believe those increases would never benefit students
unless they are guaranteed through a Pell Grant entitlement. We
urge the members of this subcommittee to support a Pell Grant en-
titlement by doing the following things.

(1) Provide a $4,500 Pell maximum in fiscal years 1993-1994, and
at leaJt a $200 increase each year thereafter, or adjust the maxi-
mum award according to the CPI.

(2) Phase in the entitlement over 4 years, making freshmen eligi-
ble for entitlement hi 1993 and 1994, sophomores in 1994 and 1995,
juniors in 1995 and 1996, and seniors in 1996 End 1997.

(3) Eliminate Federal capital contributions for the Perkins Loan
Program. By phasing out this institutionally based loan program
over the life of the current authorization, permitting students cur-
rently receiving Perkins loans to complete their degrees, and allow-
ing these funds to be spent in funding the Pell entitlement.

(4) Simplify the Federal student aid application process by: (1) al-
lowing students with incomes below $15,000 to apply on a free six
element form, coupled with their 1040 or 1040A IRS form, and per-
mitting students who receive directly or indirectly other Federal
assistance based on income, such as AFDC, food stamps, Section 8
public housing, Medicaid, etc.; and, (2) eliminating the requirement
that previous year a recipient reapply each year of remaining eligi-
bility, rather than simply supplying updated information, such as
family size, number in family, postsecondary education, etc., and
the most recent W-2 form and tax return. And finally,

9 1
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(5) Eliminate the State Student Incentive Grant Program, SSIG,
by phasing out Federal support to the largest states which have
participated in the program the longest, and that rely on Federal
funds to support state need based programs the least. This would
be accomplished over 5 years, and SSIG funds would be transferred
to the Pell Grant Program.

U.N.C.F. also strongly urges this subcommittee to review careful-
ly the system of allocating funds to institutions in the Supplemen-
tal Educational Opportunity Grant, known as SEOG. Current law
provides conditional guarantees to institutions based on student en-
rollment in fiscal year 1985. Rather than income characteristics of
current students, UNCF support the use of the most recent and
available family income data in determining SEOG institutional al-
locations.

There is no more important issue facing this subcommittee and
the 102d Congress than whether or not it will, in fact, live up to its
25 year old pledge. That pledge is that every child must be encour-
aged to get as much education as he has the ability to take. We
want this not only for his sake, but for the Nation's sake. Nothing
matters more to the future of our country, not military prepared-
ness, for our might is worthless if we lack the brain power to build
a world of peace in not only our productive economy, for we cannot
sustain growth without trained manpower, and in our democratic
system of government, for freedom is threatened if citizens are ig-
norant.

Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of John B. Turner followsl
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KR. CHAIRMAN, MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, ARTS
AND HUMANITIES, I AM 4OHN B. TURNER, PRESIDENT OF KNOXVILLE
COLLEGE, A MEMBER INSTITUTION OF THE UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND
(UNCF). I APPEAR TODAY ON BEHALF OF MYSELF AND THE 41 MEMBER UNCF
INSTITUTIONS, OUR ALMOST 50,000 STUDENTS WHO ATTEND OUR PRIVATE,
HISTORICALLY BLACK, TRADITIONAL AND PRIMARILY LIBERAL ARTS
INSTITUTIONS OF HIGH= EDUCATION. I WANT TO DISCUSS WITH YOU TITLE
IV, STUDENT ASSISTANCE UNDER THE HIGHER EDUCATION ACT.

UNCF SOMBER INSTITUTIONS ARE IN A GROWTH MODE, WITH 31 OF OUR
41 MINDER IrSTITUTIONS SHOWING ENROLLMENT INCREASES UP 16 PERCENT
OVER THE PAST FOUR YEARS. OUR MEMBER COLLEGES ENROLLED 49,397
STUDENTS IN SEPTEMBER 1990, INCLUDING STUDENTS FROM 48 OF THE FIFTY
STATES, AND 1,504 STUDENTS FROM 30 FOREIGN COUNTRIES AND 339 FROM
U.S. POSSESSIONS.

TO GIVE YOU A CAPSULE VIEW OF KNOXVILLE COLLEGE, WE ENROLLED
1,266 STUDENTS -- THE SECOND HIGHEST ENROLLMENT WE HAVE ATTAINED
OVER THE PAST FIVE YEARS - INCLUDING AFRICAN AMERICAN, WHITE AND
FOREIGN STUDENTS, 867 OF WHOM WERE ?MISHNAH, 185 OF WHOM WERE
SOPHOMORES, 110 WERE JUNIORS AND 45 WERE SENIORS. AMONG OUR
STUDENTS, FULLY 100 PERCENT RECEIVE SOME FORM OF FEDERAL STUDENT
ASSISTANCE, BROKEN OUT AS FOLLOWS FOR THE 1988-89 ACADEMIC YEAR:

BMUS NILO Anna AN2UNT &man=
PELL GRANTS 1,062 $1,688,944 $1,590

SEOG 1,062 $ 316,815 $ 298

CNS 1,155 $ 190,901 $ 165

STAFFORD LOANS 1,306 $2,041,454 $2,271

PERKINS LOANS NA $ NA $ NA

PARENT LOANS FOR UNDERGRADUATE STUDENTS (PLUS) AND SUPPLEMENTAL
LOANS FOR STUDENTS (BLS) CONSTITUTE A RELATIVELY INSIGNIFICANT
PORTION OF KNOXVILLE COLLEGE'S STUDENT FINANCIAL AID PACKAGINC
PORTFOLIO. ONLY TWO PARENTS OR INDEPENDENT STUDENTS BORROWED IN
THE PLUS PROGRAM AND ONLY 16 STUDENTS MADE SLS LOANS IN 1988-89.

AS YOU CAN TELL FROM EVEN A CURSORY EXAMINATION OF THE ABOVE
DATA, KNOXVILLE COLLEGE STUDENTS ARE VERY DEPENDENT On TITLE IV
AID. SIMIIARLY, AN ANALYSIS OF UNCF STUDENTS AS A GROUP WOULD
REFLECT THAT 91 PERCENT OF ALL STUDENTS RECEIVED SONE FORM OF
FEDERAL AID (IN 1988-89), AND MOST RECEIVE SEVERAL FORMS OF LOAN,
GRAFT OR WORK ASSISTANCE.
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THIS INCOME GAP IS EXACERBATED IN TWO WAYS THAT UNCF HOPES THIS
COMMITTEE WILL CONSIDER IN THE FORTHCOMING REAUTHORIZATION OF THE
HIGHER EDUCATION ACT.

FIRST, OVER THE MOST RECENT DECADE, THE SHIFT IN THE
PROPORTION OF FEDERAL STUDENT ASSISTANCE PROVIDED IN THE FORK OF
LOANS AS OPPOSED TO GRANTS SHIFTED DRAMATICALLY. THAT SHIFT IN THE
TYPE OF AID PROVIDED TO NEEDY, LOW INCOME STUDENTS IS DEPRESSING
TO THOSE OF US WHOSE INSTITUTIONS SERVE LARGE NUMBERS OF LOW AND
MIDDLE INCOME STUDENTS AND WHO WAWr TO AVOID PLACING THEM DEEPLY
IN DEBT AS SEEK TO ACQUIRE THE MEANS TO BETTER THEMSELVES AND THEIR
FAMILIES. THE SHIFT FROM GRANTS TO LOANS, WHICH BEGAN IN 1976 IS
DISTURBING. FROM 1970-11 TO 197576, GRANT AID INCAEASED FROM 66
PERCENT TO 80 PERCENT OF ALL AID AWARDED, WHILE LOAN AID DECLINED
FROM 29 PERCENT TO 17 PERCENT. IN THE MID49708 THAT TREND
REVERSED ITSELF, WHEN THE RISE IN GRANT AID PEAKED IN 1976 AND THEN
BEGAN A PRECIPITOUS DECLINE TO 48.9 PERCENT IN 1988, WHERE IT HAS
REMAINED FAIRLY CONSTANT. LOAN AID NOW TOTALS 49.7 PERCENT OF THE
TOTAL AND THE REMAINING 2.6 PERCENT IS COLLEGE WORK STUDY. THE
DECLINE IN AVAILABLE GRANT AID 8 PERCENT OF ALL UNCF STUDENTS
WERE GSL BORROWERS IN 1979-80 COMPARED TO ALMOST 50 PERCENT ARE
STAFFORD BORROWERS IN 1987-96 HAS MIRRORED A MAJOR INCREASE IN
STUDENT BORROWING!

THE DRAMATIC EXPANSION OF STUDENT BORROWING PARALLELS THE
INCREASED AVAILABILITY OF STUDENT LOANS, SPURRED IN PART BY THE
MIDDLE INCOME STUDENT ASSISTANCE ACT OF 1978, THE 1976 AMENDMENTS
TO THE HIGHER EDUCATION ACT INCREASING THE SPECIAL ALIA:NANCE PAID
TO LENDERS, AND THE GROWTH IN THE NUMBER OF STATEAUISED GUARANTORS
PROVIDING GUARANTEES rOR STUDENT WANS FOLLOWING THE DEMISE OF THE
(FEDERALLY INSURED STUDENT LOAN (FIST.) PROGRAM. SPIRALING COLLEGE
COSTS COUPLED WITH INCREASED WAN AVAILABILITY HAS CREATED A
GENERATION OF COLLEGE STUDIMITS/GRAD)ATES WHO ARV urns MORE THAN
INDENTURED SERVANTS! THE OUTSTANDING GSL LOAN VOLUME ROSE FROM
$9.9 BILLION IN 1976 TO $21.3 BILLION IN 1980, THEN TO $67.6
B ILLION IN 1986 AND EXCEEDED 980 BILLION IN 1988. WHILE I BELIEVE
WE CANNO/ INININIZE THE INPORTANCEOF STUDENTS REPAYING THEIR LOANS,
FAR TOO MUCH ATTENTION IS PAID TO 'LOAN DEFAULT RATES,' AND
EXCESSIVE BLAME IS PLACED ON COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES THAT ARE
SIMPLY TRYING TO EDUCATI1 STUDENTS, AND NOT ENOUGH Tr= OR ATTENTION
IS SPENT ADDRESSING THE FEDERAL POLICIES WHICH DRIVE THE
UNFORTUNATE RESUME OF RELYING ON LOANS INSTEAD OF GRANTS AS THE
FOUNDATION OF A STUDENT'S FINANCIAL AID PACKAGE.

SECOND, UNCF BELIEVES THAT ATTEMPTS BY THE DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION TO *RETARGIT* THE PELL GRANT PROGRAM ON LOW INCOME
STUDENTS ACTUALLY FORCES INSTITUTIONS LIKE XAVIER UNIVERSITY AND
OUR SISTER UNCF COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES TO *ROB PETER TO PAY
PAUL.* LET ME EXPLAIN.
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THZ POTENTIALNEGATIVE IMPACT OF THE FY 1992 BUDGET PELL GRANT

PROPOSAL IS BEST UNDERSTOOD BY COMPARING THE MEDIAN ESTIMATED
MMILY INCOME OF STUDENTS ATTENDING ALL BLACK PRIVATE COLLEGES IN

THE FALL OF 1969 AND 1990 TO THOSE OF OTHER PRIVATE NONSECTARIAN

COLLEGES. IN THE FALL OF 1989, AS THE CHART ON PAGE 2 MAKES CLEAR,

THE MEDIAN ESTIMATED FAMILY INCOME OF FRESHHAN SeDDINTS ATTENDING
PRIVATE BLA(3 COLLEGES WAS $31,466 COMPARECITO $49,729 FOR STUDENTS

ATTENDING ircrun NONSECTARIAN mamas, WHILE IN THE FALL OF 1990,

TIE COMPARISON WAS $29,598 TO $51,037. VIEWED PROM A UNCF
PERSPECTIVE, THE ADMINISTRATION'S BUDGET PROPOSAL EXACERBATES,
RATHER THAN ADDRESSES THE LOAN GRANT INBALANCE SITUATION BECAUSE

IT TAKES MONEY AWAY FROM THE "NEAR POOR" TO GIVE IT TO THE "VERY
POOR." THIS WILL UNDOUBTEDLY FORCETHOSE STUDENTS FROM $10$25,000
FAMILIES TO BORROW TO MANE UP FOR DIMINISHED PELL GRANT FUNDS.
WHILE WE WOULD WELCOME THE $3,700 PELL MIEN A LONG OVMRDUE
INCREASE TO ADDRESS THE EROSION IN THE PURCHASING POWER OF THE PELL

GRANT SINCE 1980 THE PROPOSED SHIFT IN EMPHASIS WILL DO
SIGNIFICANT DAMAGE TO THE HIGHER EDUCATION ASPIRATIONS OF UNCF
STUDENTS FROM FAMILIES WITH INCOMES IN THE $15-025,000 RANGE.

WE BELIEVE A MUCH MORE THOUGHTFUL PROPOSAL, BUT ONE THAT
REQUIRES ADDITIONAL REFINDIENTS, IS THE POLICY INITIATIVE ADVANCED
BY REPRESENTATIVE BILL FORD OF MICHIGAN, CHAIRMAN OF THE HOUSE
EDUCATICMI AND LABOR COMMITTEE AND ITS SUBCOMMITTEE ON POSTSECONDARY
EDUCATION AND SENATOR PAUL SIMON OF ILLINOIS. WHILE UNCF WOULD

finglifila OPPOSE A HARD AND FAST RULE THAT RESTRICTED GRANT AID TO

THE FIRST TWO YEARS OF BACCALAUREATE STUDY, WITH LOANS BEING USED

EXCLUSIVELY IN THE LAST TWO YEARS WE DO BELIEVE IT WOULD BE
ADVANTAGEOUS AND APPROPRIATE FOR OUR STUDENTS TO naggail GRANT

AID IN THE FRESHMAN AND SOPHOMORE YEARS, AND TO REVERSE THAT
EMPHASIS IN THE LATTER TWO YEARS OF BACCMAUREATE DECREE STUDY.

THIS APPROACH, WE BELIEVE =MUM COLLEGE ACCESS ANR
SUCCESS; REDUCES OR ELIMINATES THE NEED FOR ACADEMICALLY "ATRISK"
STUDENTS TO 0 BORROW UNTIL THEY HAVE DEMONSTRATED THEIR ACADEMIC
POTENTIAL; AND COULD SIGNIFICANTLY REDUCE THE OVERALL INDEBTEDNESS

OF LOWER INCOME STUDENTS.

THE COST OF SPAYING NOW OR PAYING LATER,' GIVEN THE HISTORICAL
SHIFT OF FEDERAL STUDENT AID SPENDING FROM GRANTS TO LOANS mom
80 GRANTS (AND 20 PERCENT LOANS) IM 1976 TO 49 PERCENT GRANTS (AND
A SIMILAR AMOUNT IN LOAN AID) IN 1990 IS EASILY SEEN WITHIN THE

UNCF FAMILY. THE STAFFORD LOAN (FORMERINGUARANTEED STUDENT LOANS)

IS NOW THE LARGEST SINGLE SOURCE OF SUPPORT FOR UNCF STUDENTS,
PROVIDING SOME $51 MILLION OR 30 PERCENT OF ALL AID AWARDED IN
196889 L=ORDING TO UNCF'S 1990 ILTATIETICALAZIVET.

46-420 0 -92 - 4
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ONE FINAL POINT DESERVES MENTIONING. THE DEPARTMENT OF

EDUCATION HAS FOCUSED ITS ENTIRE STUDENT LOAN DEFAULT PREVENTION
EFFORT ON COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES AND PRIVATECAREER SCHOOLS WITH
HIGH DEFAULT RATES. BECAUSE BLACK COLLEGES, COMMUNITY COLLEGES AND
URBAN PUBLIC FOUR-YEAR INSTITUTIONS TEND TO COST LESS AND ENROLL
THE MOST SIGNIFICANT NUMBERS OF LOW INCOME STUDENTS: (INCLUDING
BLACK AMERICANS), STUDENT LOAN DEFAULT PREVENTION SEEMS TO BE
TARGETEDINYWARD POOR, MINORITY STUDENTS. FOR EXAMPLE, THE FEDERALGOVERNMENT ENCOURAGES INSTITUTIONS TO EXPAND EDUCATIONALOPPORTUNITIES FOR LOW INCOME STUDENTS, ESPECIAIIN MINORITIES. THISMEANS TAXING SOME RISXS WITH SOME STUDENTS WHO MAY ENTER AN
INSTITUTICONITH ACADEMIC DEFICIENCIES. SECAMSE STUDENT AID IS NOW
PRIMARILY LOW AID RATHER THAN GRANT AID, THE CONSEQUENCE or
STUDENT FAILURE IN AN UNDERTAXING THE GOVERNMENT HAS ENCOURAGED IS
A RIGE DEFAULT RATE! THE INSTITUTION IS THEN THE VICTIM OF THE
GOVERNMENT'S "ACCESS" POLICY. FURTHER, WHEN DEFAULT RATES ARE
INACCURATE AND INCOMPLETE, BUT PUBLISHED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION ANYWAY, LASTING DAMAGE IS DONE TO THE INSTITUTION IN THE
LOCAL COMMUNITY.

ALL OF THESE FACTORS, LEAD UNCF MEMBER INSTITUTIONS TORECOMMEND THE FOLLOWING:

* MAZE THE PELL GRANT PROGRAM A TRUE ENTITLEMENT WITH A
$4,000/UUMNDIAMARD BIGINNING =FY 1994. THE BUDGETARY
IMPACT OF THIS PROPOSAL MIGHT BE PHASED IN SY APPLYING
TEE ENTITLEMENT TO FRESHMEN STUDENTS myy IN THE FIRST
YEAR, THEN ADDING A CLASS OF STUDENTS EACH YEARTHEREAFTER.

SINPLIFY TEE FEDLRAL STUDENT AID APPLICATION PROCESS.
TWO THINGS COULD BE DONE IMMEDIATELY TO MAKE IT EASIER
FOR LON INCOME STUDENTS TO APPLY FOR AND RECEIVE TITLE
IV ASSISTANCE, WHILE PRESERVING THE INTEGRITY OF TEE AID
PROGRAMS: (1) PROVIDE A REVISED SIMPLIFIED FEDERAL FORMFOR FAMILIES WITH INCOMES MOW $15,000, WITH SIX OR
SEVEN DATA ELEMENTS, AND REQUIRE APPLICANTS TO SUBMIT
MIR 1040 OR 1040A FORM OR OTHER EVIDENCE THAT THEY
RECEIVE AFDC OR 1POOD STAMPS, LIVE IN TEDERALLY-SUBSIDIEED
HOUSING, ETC. (THOSE stoommorrms INCOMES BELOW E10,000
SHOULD DECEIVE TEE LUCE= MAW); AND (2) REQUIRE
STUDENTS APPLYING POR AID FOR THEIR SOPHOMORE, JUNIOR OR
SENIOR YEAR (NHO PREVIOUSLY ammo TITLE IV AID AS
FRESHMEN) TO SUPPLY UPDATED INFORNATION ONLY AND= MOST
RECENT PARENTAL/STUDENTTAX RETURN INSTEAD OF A WHOLE NEW
APPLICATION.

REDUCE PAPERWORK BURDENS IN THE FINANCIAL AID PROGRAMS,
ESPECIALLY FOR INSTITUTIONS WITE SIGNIFICANT WEBERS OF
AID RECIPIENTS IN THEIR STUDENT POPULATION (I.E. 504 OR
GREATER), BY ELIMINATING THE VALIDATION REQUIRENENT FOR
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THE IMPORTANCE OF GUARANTEEING EVERY STUDENT OF ABILITY AND
INTEREST WILL BE ENSURED THE OPPORTUNITY TO GO TO COLLEGE.

I MOULD LIKE TO REQUEST THAT MCP'S ANALYSIS OF THE DEPARTMENT
OF EDUCATION'S FY 1992 BUDGET BE INCLUDED IN TME RECORD RIGHT AFTER
MY WRITTEN TESTIMONY. IT EXPLAINS AND ZIABORATES ON MANY OF THE
POINTE I HAVE MADE HIRE THIS MORNING, AS WELL AS INDICATING OUR
VIEWS ON SONE OF THE ADMINISTRATION'S HIGHER EDUCATION ACT
REAUTHORIZATION RECOMMENDATIONS, AND IT MAY BE OF SOME ASSISTANCE
TO THE COMMITTEE.

THAT CONCLUDES NY FORMAL TESTIMONY. I WOULD BE PLEASED TO
ANSWER ANY QUESTIONS YOU MAY HAVE.

400/TUROTIST
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Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, Dr. Turner.
Dr. Roberson?

STATEMENT OF EARL ROBERSON, JR,, PRESIDENT, CARVER
STATE TECHNICAL COLLEGE, MOBILE, ALABAMA

Mr. Roszasori. To Mr. Chairman, members of the subcommittee,
I am Earl Roberson, President of Carver State Technical College,
established August 15, 1962. It is with pleasure and humility that I
appear before you to share 5 minute excerpts from my full report
concerning what Title III has meant to Carver State Technical Col-
lege, and to express my sincere hope that Title III funding to insti-
tutions such as ours be continued.

Carver State, like all Historically Black Colleges and Universi-
ties, was founded upon a bedrock of good intentions, hard work,
indeed, commitment on the part of dedicated people. The greatest
benefactors of these efforts have been disadvantaged students. It
was 1987 when Carver State received funding from Title III for the
first time. It was also the first time in the history of the institution
that supplementary, instructional, and learning materials were
made available to students in a comprehensive, modern resource
center that was built with Title III funding. This center, among
other things, has continued to help us provide students with associ-
ate degrees which they can transfer to local and state colleges.

The college has also been able to begin to develop its own fund-
raising capabilities through the establishment of a development
office. The survival of 2 year HBCUs like Carver State is critical in
view of the demographic projection of the workforce in the 21st
century. Title III has been critical to the survival of institutions
like Carver State.

Let me share with you just one recent success story which says it
all. The story is about one of our graduates of Carver State from a
family of 10 children, whose mother died when the child was a
junior in high school. Her grades dropped from As to Cs. Although
she did finish high school, her education was delayed with the
biech of three children, and attempting to meet the financial needs
of her family without the assistance of a husband and father. This
lady realized that she needed a job that would make things better.
She recognized that education was the most viable approach to
upward mobility in the workplace, and therefore enrolled at Carver
State.

The rearing of three children, working part time, and going to
school presented quite a challenge. She often thought of giving it
up. She is now the executive secretary for the housing board of her
city in Prichard, Alabama. She is quite an inspiration for those
who know of her perseverance. I would like to quote from a recent
newspaper article which highlighted her achievement. I quote, "I
was greatly inspired by my teachers at Carver State. They had con-
fidence in me when I didn't have confidence in myself. When I
wanted to give up and quit school, they wouldn't listen to me. They
kept telling me to go on to class. Every time I wanted to give up,
they wouldn't let me. I am very thankful for them."

What does this story have to do with Title III? Carver State
helped this lady to make a decent life, and a decent living for her
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family, as it has hundreds of others. Therefore, I offer to you the
following two recommendations for your consideration.

(1) I recommend increasing the minimum Part B grant from
$350,000 to $500,000. This increase would help Carver and other
small institutions cope with inflation as they attempt to maintain
their current programs.

(2) I also recommend that the language of the legislation be al-
tered to allow institutions to use funds from Part B, in any propor-
tion, for any activities which are directly related to the goals and
objectives stated in their approved proposals.

In conclusion, may I state that I support all of the recommenda-
tions of the Black College Joint Legislative Committee, but I specif-
ically appreciate the opportunity to share my concern about the
specific recommendations that will have an immediate and a very
direct impact on small institutions.

Thank you very much for this opportunity to come to this beauti-
fhl city, to meet the renowned Mr. Jefferson and his committee,
and to make a presentation.

[The prepared statement of Earl Roberson, Jr. follows..]
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

It is with pleasure and humility that I appear before

this Stibcommittee to share with you what Title III has meant

to Carver State Technical College (CSTC) and to express my

sincere hope that Title III funding to institutions such as

ours be continued. You have already received many facts and

statistics from my colleagues in previous testimony and

statements which attest to the successes of programs at

1113CDs in recent years because of the Title III programs. I

would like to add to those statistics and facts the story of

one very small institution.

CSTC, like all HBCUs, was founded upon a bedrock of

good intentions, hard work and deep commitment on the part

of dedicated people. Committed personnel built successful

programa and prepared thousands of successful students for

the work place despite limited financial resources. As with

most other HISCUs, the greatest benefactors of these efforts

have been disadvantaged students. For most of the students

who have matriculated at CSTC, this institution offered

their only hope for postsecondary education .

Dedication and commitment, however, can only do so

much. It soon became apparent that weakened resources could

be stretched only so far and good intentions wer.e no longer

sufficient to overcome the serious financial problems of the
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college. In 1986, after several unsuccessful attempts at

using consultants to seek federal funding through

competitive proposal writing, CSTC risked its limited

resources to employ a person to work full-time in proposal

writing.

It wee during 198 that CSTC received funding from

Title III for the first time. For some institutions, such a

grant would have meant a margin for growth and development.

For CSTC, this grant ensured our survival. With the funds

that we received, CSTC was able to upgrade its current

equipment by providing a limited amount of state of the art

equipment in all of its technical programs. Such

acquisition enabled the college to incorporate new

technologies into each curriculum.

For the first time in the history of the institution,

supplementary instructional and learning materials have been

made available to students in a comprehensive, modern,

learning resource center that was built with Titl.e III

funding. The college has been able to begin to develop its

own fundraising capabilities through the establishment of a

development office. Enhancements in support services to

students have resulted in decreased attrition rates and

increased enrollment and opportunities for our students.

The survival of 2 year, HECUs, like CSTC is critical in

view of the demographic projections of the work force in the
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21st century, and Title III has been critical to the

survival of institutions like CSTC. Please bear with me as

I share one success story which says it all:

The story is about one of ten children whose mother

died when the child was a junior in high school. Her grades

dropped from As to Cs. Although she did finished high

school, her education was halted with the birth of three

children. In attempting to meet the financial needs of her

family without the assistance of a husband and father, this

woman realized that she needed a job that would make things

better for them. She recognized that education was the most

viable approach to upward mobility in the work place and

enrolled at cSTC. But the rearing of three children,

working part-time, and going to schoo1 presented quite a

challenge. She often thought of giving it up. She is now

the executive secretary for the Housing Board of the city of

Prichard in Alabama and quite an inspiration for those who

know of her perseverance. I would like to quote from a

recent newspaper article which highlighted her achievements:

"I was greatly inspired by teachers at CSTC. They had

confidence in me when I didn't have confidence in myself.

When I wanted to give up, and quit school they wouldn't

...sten to me. They kept telling me to go on to class. They

wouldn't give me a break. They wouldn't leave me alone.

Every tine I thought I wanted to give up, they wouldn't let

me. I'm very thankful for them." What does this story have
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to do with Title III? CSTS helped this woman to make a

decent life and a decent living for her family. Title III

has helped CSTC to provide a decent education for her that

she could not otherwise achieve.

I could spend the rest of my allocated time citing

other success stories, detailing the specifics areas in

which Title III funding stabilised our institution or

expressing appreciation to you and your colleagues for your

sagacity in providing this direct aid to institutions such

as ours. But that time would still be inadequate to express

the thanks due to you or to explain just how much Title III

has meant to us.

Please allow me, then, simply to offer the following

recommendations for your consideration:

Part B: Strengthening Historically Black Colleges and

Universities

(1) I wish first to recommend increasing the minimum Part B

grant from $350,000.00 to $500,000.00. This increase would

help CSTC And other small institutions cope with inflation

as they attempt to malntain their current programs. While

we are most appreciative of the allocation that we have

received, several small institutions have received no

increase for the past 5 years because the allotment is
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number driven, based on the proportionate number of Pell

Grant reCoients, and in many situations, our numbers are

relatively constant due to our missions.

(2) I also recommend that the language of the legislation

be altered to allow institutions to use funds from Part B,

in any proportion, for any activities which are directly

related to the goals and objectives stated in their

approved proposals. The current language allows, e.g., that

..."a grantee may not spend more than 50% of its grant award

in each fiscal year for costs relating to constructing or

maintaining a classroom, library, laboratory or other

instructional facility;... Institutions need flexibility in

the use of funds for activities which are related to their

specific goals although such activities may not be

authorised.

In concluding, may I state that I support all of the

recommendations of the Black College Joint Legislative

Committee but I specifically appreciate the opportunity to

share my concern about the specific recommendations that

will have an immediate and a very direct impact on small

institutions. Thank you very much for this audience.

r
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Chairman JEFFERSON. Well, thank you very much. Let me say,
you better not count against your time at the end. And to all of
you, this has been truly brilliant testimony. I am sure all of the
members of the committee would share in my assessment of that.
This is testimony that we could not have gotten in Washington. We
would not have had the time, and v,, would not have had the op-
portunity to present as you have here. So, these field hearings are
extremely important. I think you give credence to the reason why
we take the time to come out into the field and to hear what
people like you, college presidents and others, have to say about
programs we are enacting in Washington to serve you.

Let me just ask one question, then I am g-ing to let the panel
ask. Dr. Hackley, you provided a lot of projections about the need
for graduate level oiegreed black Americans, and you talked about
the difficulties of achieving those. I want to know if the provisions
that we are talking about proposing in the College Opportunity
Act, or in the reauthorized bill, to focus more on graduate educa-
tion in the Historically Black Colleges and Universities will make
us move in the direction that you think we need to move to reach
these goals you are setting forth here?

Mr. HACKLEY. Yes, Mr. Chairman, I think so. But, so long as we
understand that some of the debilitating circumstances which
reduce minority kids' opportunities all along the line have to be ad-
dressed at the same time. We cannot focus on the doctoral level to
start talking about increasing black Ph.D.s, for example. We
cannot talk about the Master's level to start talking about that.

We have to start talking about the causes for those students to
drop out, whether it be from improper education, improper support
in a well-designed education systemif the kids are not getting
support in that, they are going to drop out early on. We have to
look at those all along the line, and make these students under-
stand early enough that that opportunity is out there.

Right now, things are getting extremely hard for the people that
we are talking about. They do not even see those as viable opportu-
nities. So, they limit their horizons well below the level at which
we can start talking about them getting into a Ph.D. program in
engineering, for example, or going to medical school, law school, or
any of those. They are there, but they do have to be tied in to con-
tinue the process.

Chairman JEFFERSON. While we should focus on those now, for
those who are at the threshold point of going into these programs,
if we are going to ultimately be succeeziiii in reaching the goals
you have in mind, we have to reach back into the elementary
school levels, and start creating aspirations there for these college
goals well before it is time for the kids to go to college. That is your
ultimate message.

Mr. HACKLEY Yes.
Chairman JEFFERSON. Does anyone on the committee have a

question of any member of the panel?
Mr. Mims. First of all, Mr. Chairman. You obviously assembled

a very powerful forum here toda3r, and I really appreciate that.
As Dr. Fort was testifying, I began to get some relationships to-

gether. I worked with your brother, Hershellt who represented the
Detroit Board of Education for m. iy years in Washington. He is

u
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retired now, and we miss him very, very much. As you talked, I
could see the family connection there. Both of you are great advo-
cates for education. I appreciate your being here.

Several members, starting with Dr. Cook, stressed that increas-
ing grant assistance, and reducing the reliance on loans, is very im-
portant. I think you would all agree, too, that simply increasing
the Pell maximum without making entitlement does not really
help a great deal in the long run because we have not fully funded
the full authorization for 10 years. So, would all of you agree that
we should really make it an entitlement? Dr. Turner, you men-
tioned that starting with the freshmr.n year might be a way of
doing that. I think that maybe isdo you all agree? I like your
idea there because I have been trying to find a way to get it to be
an entitlement. Maybe doing it in that fashion might be a way to
massage it through the legislative process.

Dr. Hack ley, you also mentioned that the failure to address edu-
cation needs is a greater danger than Saddam Hussein. You know,
that is well put. What we did, is we took that war off budget.
Would it not be great if we could take education off budget for
awhile, right, and recognize the real danger of not funding educa-
tion. We did take that off budget. Your statement is one that I
probably will plagiarize a bit.

Mr. ROBERSON. One of our former Secretaries of Education, I be-
lieve, stated that if someone would have provided the type of edu-
cation system that we have in America, we would have looked
upon it as an act of war, and gone to war with it.

Mr. KILDEB. To declare war on ignorance would be a great decla-
ration, would it not?

Mr. FORT. That quote was taken from A Nation at Risk, which
called 10 years ago for a =Or reform in K through 12 education.
Incidentally, Congressman Kildee, I think that your comment we
very much appreciate. Our hope, of course, is that you six distin-
guished Members of the Congress will make known your reactions
to, and your support of, what we have said today, as you begin your
dialogue with Secretary Alexander and his colleagues. If, in fact,
he is convinced of the reality that you support, what we have es-
poused today, then that might very well rearrange whatever points
in his current philosophy, or suggestions, or recommendations
differ from that which we have stated today.

Mr. Mums. Well, I think you realize the importance of your tes-
timony here today. Not only has Mr. Jefferson assembled a great
panel out there, but he has brought here to New Orleans over one.
third of the caucus of the subcommittee, which I think is the larg-
est assembly we have ever had. So, this could be a turning point,
because you have talked to a good cross-section of the subcommit-
tee.

Mr. FORT. Mr. Chairman, the other point that I would like to
stress, if I could, and I know that my colleagues at the table will
support this, is that the bottom line, as so eloquently indicated by
my close friend and colleague, Dr. Hackley, is thisif we do not
achieve parity, then the very economic development ethos of this
Nation, positioned 6 or 7 years hence into the year 2000 and
beyond, would be absolutely detrimentally damaged.

ll 1
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It means, therefore, that there is a definite and inescapable rela-
tionship between the enhancement of black campuses and the eco-
nomic development posture of this Nation that cannot be denied. It
has been validated by the National Science Foundation, by the Na-
tional Research Council, and by the Department of Energy. The
very fact that, for example, Admiral Wat Uls will spend millions of
man hours for purposes of espousing the point that Dr. Hack ley
made with regarli to the importance of getting the kids before they
get to college, suggest that even from the point of view of the
person who is in charge of the Department of Energy, he sees that
there is a relationship between the evangelization of these young-
sters before they get to grades six, seven, eight, and nine, and the
ultimate closing of the gap between what is and what must be, as
far as the productivity of scientists, engineers, chemists, and so on,
are concerned for this Nation's future.

You represent the listen ability of this Nation to whether or not
America will get serious in relationship to its recognizing once and
for all that absent the weight, the influence, the power, and the
presence, and the commitment of these campuses, this Nation, eco-
nomic development is really down the tubes. It really is that seri-
ous. It can be validated.

Mr. HAYES. I have a couple of questions, very brief, that I want
to raise. But, I do want to make a statement that underscores what
already has been said. This panel is one that, I have been to a lot
of committees here, but I have never seen one with this kind of
breadth, and one that expresses itself with such candor as you have
expressed yourselves. You have been honest, not afraid, and one of
the things that impresses me so much is that you have reached
levels in the educational field that are not easy to reach, as presi-
dents of universities. But, you have not forgotten your roots from
whence you came. I think that one of the things that I have often
said, and that nobody has been able to refute yet, one of the best
defenses, Dr. Hack ley, that this Nation could ever have is to edu-
cate its young, its youth. Not found in spending so much money to
bail out savings and loans, and cover up those who did wrong, as
has been the case, we are going to have to deal with this again.
Yet, when it comes to some of the educational shortages that you
have talked about here, we do not have the money to do it. This is
what we have to confront with. I just wish the other 429 Members
of the House of Representatives had been exposed to the kind of
testimony that we have heard from you all.

My specific question, I guess, is I am interested to find out, and
all of you can respond to it, but I will start with you, Dr. Hack ley,
because you raised it. On page five of your testimony, you say in
reference to the elementary schools, our minority enrollment is 90
percent. Twenty-eight percent of the math and science students are
low level, as compared to seven percent in the large white schools.
Do you think this is an accident or by design?

Mr. HACKLEY. Mr. Hayes, whether it is an accident or not, it is a
fact. What I do in my work, I am the Vice Chairman of the South-
east Region Vision for Education, the $18.5 million laboratory that
serves this area in the Southeastern part of the United States.
What we do is we disregard whether it is accident, racism, or what
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have you, and ask the schools to put in place plans designed to
remove all the gaps among the children.

I have tried, m another state, to come at it from a human dimen-
sion rather than from standards and procedures for getting them
out. Now, that is my educational approach. You explain to me why
there are such disparitiee among the children in your school. Why
are 90 percent of the white kids at grade level or above, and 90 per-
cent of the black children are below grade level? What plan do you
have to remove that within a certain period of time? That is pre-
cisely the approach. Accountability and responsibility for all the
chilth.en in the school because the people take jobs based on educat-
ing all the kids. If they cannot do ihat, then they ought to be asked
why they continue to take the money.

Now, my view, my own personal view is that the schools have
failed to deal with the whole spectrum of kids, absolutely failed. In
order to deal with that, they have d ,ted off some antiquated
myths about intellectual inferiorities of dertain kinds of kids. Then,
they represent that in their placement of children. And they make
the policy, or make the prophecy become fulfilled. So, there is prob-
ably, again, my own personal view, there is probably some linger-
ing consequences of racism embedded in there, but I do not ap-
proach it from that perspective. In fact, I say, I do not care wheth-
er you are a racist or not, you have too many black children below
graiie level, and you need to do something about that.

Mr. HAYES. I think you are right. It is a difficult thing to do, you
know. In a state like mine where access to education is really clif-
ferent in poor areas, in the elem -ntary level, as compared to the
suburban areas, where the state who has the distribution of money,
they do not have the same equipment in this hi,gh tech society we
live in. Computers are not available in some high school levels, you
know. You spend $6,030 or $8,000 a year on a kid who goes through
high school in the suburbs, and maybe $3,000 for one who goes to
school in my district, for example, which is 9.? percent black. So, I
cannot ignore race as being a problem, particularly at this level of
elementary education.

Mr. HAMELIN. Mr. Chairman, can I add one point to that? Or,
Mr. Hayes? I studied educational problems the same way I studied
political science when I was in my Ph.D. program. The problem
goes all the way back to Brown v. The Board of Education. It was
extended right into Adams v. Richardson. We misunderstood the
intention of those laws. We thought and allowed people to define
the issue as desegregating buildingsthat the name of the game
was to get black children and white children in the same physical
setting.

So, what has happened as a consequence of that, we have course
proliferation and all kinds of strange titles for worthless programs
designed primarily for black children and minority children in that
same physical setting. So that we end up with a desegregated build-
ing, but segregated education. If you stack up math courses, for ex-
ample, in the typical high school in America from say, advanced
calculus all the yray down to arithmetic for everyday living, which
will not get anybody a living, but anyhow, that is what it is titled,
just in high school, as you get down to the bottom, they get
lalacker, blacker, and blacker. If you plot the increase in those

113
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worthless courses into the curriculum, you will find that they
i

in-
creased after integration. As more and more black kids got nto
these schools, more and more of those kinds of courses were added
into the curriculum. In North Carolina between the seventh grade
and the twelfth grade, there are 400 courses available. The univer-
sity asks for 12 courses in order to be admitted to the University of
North Carolina sYstem.

Mr. HAYES. I have one question I want to throw at all of you. It
is key to me. This Nation's historically black colleges have been the
traditional sources for more than half of the country's black teach-
ers. Currently, the need is increasing, for an increase in the
number of minority is truly at a priceless point. Can you inform
me of any innovative or alternative programs for the production of
minority teachers, particularly blacks, for public education?

Mr. FORT. I am going to give you a name, and then I am going to
have to leave for the airport, Congressman Hayes. I would strongly
urge that you glean either some written testimony or verbal state-
ments from Dr. Barbara Sizemore, who is a professor at the Uni-
versity of Pittsburgh, and the former superintendent of the schools
in Washington, DC. I think that she probably knows more about
the whole question of getting a response to your question than any
two people in the state or elsewhereBarbara Sizemore.

Mr. HAYES. All right.
Mr. MOORE. I am presently chairing a master plan task force for

the State of Louisiana Board of Regions on teacher education. That
is one of the issues that we are addressing. So, I do not have all the
innovative programs for you today, but I certainly will be able to
send them to you. That is a part of our task.

The problem is complicated by having to address so many dimen-
sions of the problem. You see, it is not enough just to offer scholar-
ships to good male students, or black students, to get them in, be-
cause on the other end, you have to deal with the pay. So, it in-
volves more than the college or university, but it ultimately will
involve the state board of education or whatever agency is respon-
sible for salary. So, it is not a simple matter of attracting people
into a discipline, such as engineering, but it is a matter of salary
and overcoming all of those myths and misconceptions about teach-
ing. It is very complicated and multidimensional in nature.

Mr. HAYES. I will just shut off here.
Mr. MOORE. But, one which we are addressing forcefully in this

state, by the way.
Mr. HAYES. I do not expect responses from the others.
Chairman JEFFERSON. Mr. Payne?
Mr. PAYNE. Thank you very much. I really enjoyed all of the tes-

timony. Dr. Fort, I also appreciate you. I know you have to leave. If
you have to get up while I am talking, I will not take it personally,
knowing that you have to get a plane.

I would just like to say that it is unfortunate that we cannot see
represented in the classroom, and I am a former teacher who
taught for about 10 years, that we cannot see the same reflection
in the classroom of male instructors, as we do see at the presiden-
tial level. It is very key and important. I think that we have strong
male African American teachers in the classroom. It is extremely
key, in my opinion.
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I just have one quick question. As we know, there is definitely a
turn towards historically black colleges by many students, in par-
ticular now, in the North, who are now looking towards sort of a
trend of having an interest in admission to historically black col-
leges. I would assume, and I know Spellman and some of the
schools, Morehouse, have been rejecting large numbers of students
who are applying for admission simply because they do not have
the space. I would imagine that this trend is going to continue with
all your institutims. You are going to get more applications, and in
fact, you are going to get students who are scoring higher on tests
scores, than perhaps you had 2 or 3 years ago.

Now, the question is this, I assume this is being anticipated,
what are you planning for those students who you have been able
to accommodate in the past, as the larger numbersfor example,
we have more black students, for example, in some universities in
New Jersey, independent white universities, than some historically
black colleges have on their campuses just because they are largerand that is where they go. As the trend starts to turn around, for
example, Bloomfield College, in my district, has probably as many
black students as some historically black colleges. As these stu-
dents start maybe to rediscover the schools of historically black col-
leges, how will you be able to accommodate the large increases in
numbers that you will be having in the near future, and how do
you accommodate those that were traditionally served?

Mr. FORT. Mr. Chairman, let me respond very quickly. I am glad
Congressman Payne asked that question. Two thingsnumber one,
you garner the resources that are absolutely critical as pertains to
the enhancement of the programs that you need in your campus to
accommodate the needs of the youngsters that come to you in in-
creased numbers. That means, then, that these enhancement tools
have to be gleaned from sources that are multiple, and that are not
relegated merely to that which comes from state coffers.

For example, it is a misnomer that there are publicly supported
historically black campuses. They are publicly assisted. Case and
point, A&T operates an $80 million budget. We have nearly 7,000
students. Only 59 percent of that budget comes from the state. The
rest must come, same thing for Dr. Hackley, from Federal agencies,from foundations, a limited amount from tuition and fees, and from
the corporate sector Fortune 500. That means that we have to havethe assistance of each of you at the table up there in relationship
with providing the additional resources that are absolutely critical
as it pertains to accommodating these additional kids.

The increases, I predict, are going to continue notwithstanding
the reality that the birth rate shows a lesser number of 18 yearolds in the pool between now and at least the year 2002. The im-
portant thing to recognize in this regard is the cost. Kenneth
Clark, more than a quarter of a century ago, in his massive volume
Dark Ghetto, indicated that black kids, historically, have been cate-gorized and relegated to track A, track B, the green giants, thebuddies. It all means the same thing. They are not being taught
because those that are responsible for their teaching are convinced
that they cannot learn. As a result, the point that Dr. Hackley sets
in, the self-fulfilling prophecy, leads to the results of racism institu-
tionally in the classroom.
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The kids know that. As a result, if they leave the classroom and,
notwithstanding that system, do manage to get the high school di-
ploma, some of them with honors, and then go on to the majority
institution, and find a repetition of the same kind of nonsense,
then increasingly, they say to themselves, "Well, heck, the salva-
tion must be to take a crack at the historically black campus." I
predict that that is going to increasingly occur on a larger and
larer scale, notwithstanding the decline in the 18 year old age

.1. Therefore, the Federal Government, along with the Fortune
1, has to assume the responsibility for increasing its commitment

to these campuses.
It is not enough, for example, to say that Title III, as was men-

tioned earlier, that Title III should set aside dollars guaranteed to
design the establishment and the enhancement of development of-
fices. That suggests that those development offices in the main are
going to be concentrating in fundraising activities that evolve from
the garnering of dollars from the Fortune 500. I am saying that
that is all well and good. But, that those same offices, if they exist
must also be involved in the business of garnering Federal dol-
larsdollars that are designed to enhance these campuses. There-
fore, on that basis, to save this Nation's collective neck.

Mr. HACKLEY. I would just like to take
Chairman JEFFERSON. We are going to have to take it very quick-

ly, and move on to the others, very quickly.
Mr. HACKLEY. A quick response. It appears that Representative

Payne read the part of my address that I did not give because of
my efforts to conform to tune constraints. I will just read four sen-
tences. The great challenge that many HBCUs face today is that of
creating learning environments which will accommodate students
of a wide range of abilities and backgrounds. Hence, it is not sur-
prising to find schools employing three distinct tracts of learning,
including a development tract, which is where a large number of
those students will be; a standard, what we call the average tract;
and, of course, an honors curriculum.

Generally, special emphasis is placed on the two extreme tracts,
you know, on the honors or on the developmental. The ones in the
middle are sort of left unattended. Then, I go on in the final sen-
tences to indicate that throufgh partial support from Part B funds,
but also through the types of things that Dr. Fort is talking about,
we can address those varying needs. It has to be done that way be-
cause it will require special attention, and a normal formula will
not give you the money through state appropriations to deal with
it.

Chairman JEFFERSON. We will let Dr. Cook, since he is the host
here, make a brief comment. Then, we will go to Congressman
Washington and to Congresswoman Mink. Since he is from Texas,
he will yield to her, because he is the gentleman from Texas.

Mr. Coox. Black and white institutions are n )t monolithic. They
represent a wide universe. The spectrum is very broad. Hence, the
answer to the question of increasing numbers of black students
coming to black colleges cannot be the same. Some institutions,
like Dillard, will become more and more selective. We have been
selective, but we are increasingly selective. We have set a cap
really on the number of students. 'We are about where we want to
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go, around 1,600. We simply cannot take additional students. That
mvolve3 all kinds of facilities. We are trying to expand here and
there.

So, the answer depends upon the school. Now, there are many
black schools, let's face it, that are not too crowded. There are a lot
of empty dormitories. Obviously, the,y can take a lot of those stu-
dents. There are a lot of black schools that have less than 600 stu-
dents. There have been some schools, you mentioned Spelhnan,
where my wife happened to attend, and you mentioned Morehouse,
where I happened to attend. Spellman was taking enormous enroll-
ment. It went up to beyond 2,000 several years ago. The size of it
was going in a direction where it did not want to go. So, it cut
back. On the other hand, Morehouse is enrollment driven. So, ithas been building more and more dormitories. But, you simply
cannot project what is going to happen in the next 5 or 10 years in
total enrollment.

So, it depends upon the institution. There is not a singular
answer to this Question because of its complexity and the diversity
of institutions. So, the answer that Morehouse might give, or Dil-
lard might give, might not be the answer that AliT might give.
But, above all, black colleges and universities represent vast diver-
sity. They are not monolithic. They do not represent a single cate-
gory. So, the strategies rnd the approaches will be the functional
priorities, division, and the character of the institution.

You raise the question, what kind of an institution do I want Dil-
lard University to be 5 years from now, 10 years from now? If you
go beyond 2000, you have a different kind of an institution. So,
there are all sorts of philosophical, ethical and humanistic ques-
tions to be raised.

Chairman JEFFERSON. Mr. Washington I am sure will yield to
you, Congresswoman Mink.

Mrs. MINK. Thank_you, Mr. Washington.
Mr. WASHINGTON. For debate only.
Mrs. MINK. Are we here to debate?
[Laughter.]
This has been a very, very exciting and interesting panel. I have

learned a great deal. I do have a mountain of questions. I knowthat the time is limited, but I wanted to expand on the idea of theimportance of expanding opportunities for students in your col-leges.
My question is, first, if we were able to, if you were able to fully

maximize the educational opportunities that you could offer in allof the 114 colleges, how large an increase would that be for the stu-dent enrollments in your black colleges? Does anyone have that
answer? If we are talking about the necessity of enlarging Federal
support, and establishing an entitlement program which would
guarantee every eligible student that wanted to enroll in your col-leges, how much of an expansion would that entail?

Mr. FORT. Congresswoman Mink, I would have to refer it to Dr.
Cook's eloquence. He has hit it on the nose. There is no monolithicanswer. I can suggest to you, for example, just one sample re-sponse.

There are a number of campuses in this Nation that are histori-
cally black and have highly organized and sophisticated pre-Ph.D.,
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or even Ph.D. programs in the field of engineering. I mentioned
eight in number. Now, those are unique. We have been given the
nature of the economic development and goals internationally of
this nature for the year 2000 and beyond, therefore the dollars that
are needed for purposes of enhancing the infrastructure of those
eight campuses are massive, if not monumental. But, as far as I am
concerned, they must be met if, in fact, this Nation is to seek and
to secure its destiny from just the point of view of developing a
greater stance, internationally, in the area of engineering.

Secondly, and at the same time, we talked about the need for in-
creasing by five the number of graduate programs that are housed
by five institutions, as pertains to such fields as pharmacy and the
law. Pharmaceutical sciences are absolutely critical as pertains to
the health status of not only black kids, but also white kids, yellow
kids, and brown kids, too. On that basis, then, it is critically incum-
bent upon the Nation to do something about increasing the viabili-
ty of the ability of those campuses that have schools of pharmacy
to deal aggressively with the needs of their students, such as
Xavier, for example, in this city, or my friend Fred Humphrey,
who is with Florida A&M in Florida. On that basis, then, you need
another package of dollars designed to insure the adequacy of those
youngsters.

But then again, thirdly, as cautioned by my friend Dr. Hackley,
something must be done to insure that there is an enhanced rela-
tionship between the undergraduate liberal arta relationships on
our campuses at the pre-graduate school level, and what happens
as a connecting link between the undergraduate programs and the
youngsters that are coming in K through 12. That requires billions.
niat is the reason why I made my comment at the outset that to
merely talk about $900 million, or whatever the figure is, as the
figure that has been given to us in an allocation basis, is totally
insufficient when you take a look at the nature of the track records
that this Nation has promulgated on behalf of less than 100 institu-
tions nationally since the inception of the National Science Act.

Once Sputnik hit the fan, this Nation pulled out all the stops.
The problem is that in so doing, it created that gargantuan like
galloping ethos defined as the good old boy network. Tile good old
boy network, like it or not, enhanced the coffers, the laboratories,
and the structures of such institutions as Berkeley, Michigan, and
other institutions. I am not knocking them because I did my under-
graduate work at Michigan, and did my doctorate at Berkeley. So, I
am not knocking those institutions. But, the fact of the matter is,
that of that 100, only in the top 50 was there one black campus
that enjoyed the spoils of that fruit.

I am saying to you that enough is enough. Now you have to in-
crease the viability of billions, not just millions, billions as levied
toward the necessities of these campuses on a non-monolithic basis.
That means you take care of the needs of the engineering schools.
You take care of the needs of the pharmacy schools. You take care
of the needs of the undergraduate programs and their variances as
they impact upon these 114 institutions.

Mrs. Mum. One final question. Do I still have some time? We are
under a 5 minute limit, too.
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I was interested in Dr. Hack ley's comments having to do with
the necessity of startinig early, beginning even in the sixth grade.
Could you sort of explain how that program works at your college,
and how you identitr which students you are going to impact at
the sixth grade, and what successes you have had, and what num-
bers you have dealt with?

Mr. HACKL1W. The question you just asked also includes some ref-
erence to what Mr. Payne asked. One thing we need to do is to un-
derstand that we cannot save the whole world. That is what I tell
my campus. But, we can do a whole lot more about what is going
on in our county than we are doing right now. So, we have a schol-
arship program, for example, where students are given academic
scholarships. They are required to perform public service, at least 6
hours per week of public service in the public schools. They go into
the elementary schools and mentor and tutor young children.

We have a wealth of information, both anecdotal as well as sta-
tistical, to show that the students do do well. They dress better.
They behave better. They change their attitudes about so many
things when these college students come in there and spend an
hour or 2 hours with them per week. They move around.

So, we have those numbers. We have the numbers of the Upward
Bound, bridging programs. But, what we are trying to do is not just
change the number. I think this gets in with what Mr. Payne was
asking. We do not want to just change the number. We want to
change the quality of the number arriving so that they will begin
to get out of school.

Most states fund on a body count so that the students come into
the university. They stay there for 11 days. They drive the budget,
and what happens to them after that is not relevant, just as long
as the next year you bring in another number to drive your budget
some more. What we ought to be focusing on is making sure that
they move all the way through, and hold schools more accountable
for graduations than from the number that comes in the door onthe front end.

As I talk to you about what has happened at Fayetteville State
University in the past 3 years, that is a result of the activities that
we started 3 to 3Y2 years ago. The kids then were in ninth and
tenth grade when we started working with them, and changed
their aspirations about going to college. It is interesting, and let me
say this, and I will try to quit it like this, but this is a very impor-
tant subject to me.

When we work with those kids in those minority areas, if you goin with them in Septembe:, and you ask those kids, "How many of
you intend to go to college?" The hands that go up are very, very
minuscule. But, after 2 or 3 months, practically 90 percent of those
kids raise their hands, and they say, "I am goinkg to go to college."
For us, what we also understand that they say is, "Not only am Igoing to go to college," we are talking about sixth and seventh
grade kids now, but they say, "I am going to Fayetteville State
IJniversity." The kids they work with are from Fayetteville State
University, with the T-shirts on and the sweatshirts on, and theytalk about the campus. They bring them to the campus to visit.
They look at the observatory. They visit classes, etc.
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That is the way to get them linked to something that h ippens
after the twelfth grade. As I said, about 45 percent increase and
the black student enrollment from that county alone, that is a con-
sequence of that. When we see 58 percent increase in white stu-
dents coming from that county, that is a consequence of that.

And when we see them moving through the university: that is
not only a consequence of the increasing numbers, but it is also Es
consequence of our having told them, "You need to take Algebra I,
Algebra II, and Geometry. Do not let that counselor put you in
Arithmetic for Every Day Living and Marketin4 Merchandising.
Take real Biology. Don't take this Applied and Technical Biology.
Take real Biology." We send thinp home to their parents. We
meet with the parents. We hold family math night where we tell
parents how to teach their children math, and all that kind of
stuff.

I apologize for taking that much time. But, this is a very compre-
hensive type of thing that we are doing. And the results, as the sta-
tistics show, is what I was trying to show you about what occurs
when you work with those kids.

Finally, the program in Cleveland, is the one that shows not only
do the kids behave better, and have a higher grade point average,
but they graduate in higher rates from those high schools. They go
to colleges in higher rates. And the graduation rate, generally,
from that program that has been going on a number of years now,
is 80 percent. The graduation rate nationally is 50 percent. For
black Icicle in that program in Cleveland, the graduation rate is 76
percent, and nationally it ranges from 26 to 31 percent. So, they do
work.

Mrs. MINK. I commend you for that. I am really excited. I hope
we can put something into the Higher Education Bill that does ex-
actly that.

Chairman Jzirnitsox. Well, thank you, and I should say this.
There is no way to answer with the comprehension that you would
like to the question that Mrs. Mink has asked. I would like to, and
I am sure the committee would like, to have each of you for the
questions that have been asked that you could not have been fully
able to respond to, to respond to the questions in writing so that we
can make the best use possible of the information you have that
you can provide the committee.

We still have our outstanding gentleman from Texas. Mr. Wash-
ington?

Mr. WASHINGTON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will be very brief.
I am mindful of the time. I believe we may request, by unanimous
consent, may we not, Mr. Chairman, that the record remain opened
for a period not to exceed 14 days for the presentation of other
written documents of response to questions?

Chairman JICIFFIRSON. IS there objection from the committee?
Without objection, it is agreed to.

MT. WASHINGTON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I did not want this
record to remain silent on one point. What you all do is so, so very
important because in the areas where we need additional strezigth-
ening and support from "outside the belt," you bring that. There
are some who suggest that Members of Congress, from time to
time, only talk to themselves and listen to themselves, and there is
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no support out in the real world for some of the ideas and notions
that my brother from Illinois and the rest of us attempt to articu-
late.

And since I was not here and did not have an opportunity to ask
tiny questions of the Deputy Assistant Secretary on one specific
point, I would like, if you have any feelings in that regard, in the
time available, otherwise, if you would express them, I have some
concern, and perhaps it is just me. If so, if I am dreaming, just tell
me that I am dreaming, and we will go on to the next panel.

On the question of the potential violation of Title VI of the 1964
Civil Rights Act, with respect to the Part B funds and the recom-
mendation of the administration that they eliminate the require-
ment that institutions continue to have as their principal mission
the education of black Americans. I am troubled by that emu -
tion, even taken alone. But taken in concert with the advisory
opinion, or whatever it was, from the Assistant Secretary back in
December with respect to race specific scholarshipsthese things
taken together, it seems to me to appear, at least from this un-
learned person's of view, to set up a straw man for the pur-
pose of later knoc that *grew man down.

As far as I know, t ese institutions have always been integrated,
in that they have always been opened to people of all races. I do
not know of a historically black echool in the history of this coun-
try, at least in my readings and my scant study, that discriminated
in the sense that doors were closed to whites or persons of other
extractions, wbile, of course, the same was not true.

Then, you put that against the backdrop of this same administra-
tion with the other tongue, talking about choice in schools. Well,
you are talking about choice in schools that are private and still
segregated. How do these things reconcile themselves, or am I just
dreamine

Mr. Mums Oh, you are not dreaming.
Mr. WASHINGTON it just me? Am I paranoid? I mean, isthere--
Mr. HACIELSY. You may be, but that does not mean that that is

not a valid question that you raised.
Mr. WASHINGTON. I am interested in your thoughts, if you have

thoughts, on the record. It was not a rhetorical 9uestion. Perhaps, I
asked it in a rhetorical fashion. But, let me put it this way. Against
that backdrop, then, do you have any response to the suggestion by
the administration that they make "color blind" the Part B funds
for institutions such as yours?

Mr. Coos. I have a response. I think it is based upon a tragic il-
lusion. This societyt Cmgressman, did not accidentally produce
racism or the disabilities of blacks. This society builds on a con-
scious and deliberate attempt, going back to slavery, not only to ex-
clude blacks from equal opportunity, but really to dehumanize
them, too. It is not accidental.

I am always amazed to hear people talk about color blind in the
American society, when the whole history of this society has been
the very opposite. If you argue to have a color blind society now
based on all the disabilities, all the oppression that blacks have suf.
fered, what you do, Mr. Congressman, is to idealize, absolutize, and
sanctify the status quo with all of these injustices, all of this op.

1 A.? 1
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pression, all the disability that blacks have suffered down to the
grinding years, the decades. This is a tragic illusion.

There is nothing racially unconscious about American society.
On the contrary, just as it took conscious, deliberate, concentrated, *
sustained efforts to build this society's institution on racism, it is
going to take concentrated focus, creative and sustained efforts to
dismantle all the inv,uities of the status quo. What you have now,
and this illusion of the administration and of others, when you talk
about color blindness, this reflects a dramatic and tragic blindness
to the reality of color. This whole pattern of racial discrimination,
based upon the past, and the past is the present, if you do not use
race specificity, if you do not concentrate on this dismantling of
racism, what you are going to do is to absolutize the status quo,
and blacks are going to fall further and further behind in this race
in the pursuit of the American dream.

So, I differ with them on it. I think it is a tragic illusion. I think
it is anti-democratic. I think it is a moral disgrace and a scandal.

[Applause.]
Chairman JEFFERSON. How do you really feel abOut it?
Mr. WASHINGTON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you for your provocative question,

Mr. Washington.
Chair ,nan JEFFERSON. Thank you very much. 'I .is has been a

brilliant panel. We really applaud you for what you have done
here. Thank you very much.

[Applause.]
Chairman JEFFERSON. I want to try, if I can, we only have two

persons in the next panel. If we can really hold to our 5 minute
rule, and really move this, we could be free around 1 p.m., and may
be able to get a sandwich and come back and finish up. That is
what we had planned to do, and I really hope that we can adhere
to that, and get that done.

Will the next two panelists please come forward? Barbara
Tucker-Blair and Joe Page.

May I please get the panel going? I know that things are stretch-
ing out a bit. But, Mrs. Barbara Tucker-Blair, if you are ready to
start now, ma'am, we would like to begin with you. Then, Mr.
Page, just follow directly. We will ask questions, as we have of the
last panel, at the conclusion of the testimony of bah of you.

Mrs. Blair?

STATEMENT OF BARBARA TUCKER-BLAIR, DIRECTOR OF FINAN.
CIAL AID SERVICES, TUSKEGEE UNIVERSITY, TUSKEGEE, ALA.
HAMA

Mrs. BLAIR. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Members of the House
and Labor Subcommittee on Post-Secondary Education and Labor, I
am Barbara Blair. Director of Financial Aid Services at Tuskegee
University located in Tuskegee, Alabama. I am honored to be here
to address this committee on the Historically Black Colleges and
Universities.

Chairman JEFFERSON. May I interrupt you for just a moment? If
you have observed the rule that we have been trying to operate on,

')
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that is to summarize your testimony, limit it to 5 minutes if you
can.

Mrs. BLAIR. Yes.
Chairman JEFFERSON. I would like to just reiterate that with the

hope that it would be adhered to this time.
Mrs. Bum. Historically Black Colleges and Universities have a

significant role in educating and producing successful black Ameri-
can and other minority graduates. Dr. Joyce Fleming reported in
Blacks in College, that "in determining what happens to black stu-
dents in black colleges as compared to black students who attend
white colleges, even with fewer resources, black students in black
colleges show more academic progress than blacks in white col-
leges."

It has been predicted, as previously stated, that by the year 2000
the majority of the work force in America will be made up of mi-
norities. They will not be able to compete without affordable oppor-
tunities for higher education. Aiding minority and nontraditional
students in attending HBCUs that offer quality programs is crucial
to the survival of this Nation. Many of the minority students who
have graduated would not have been able to do so without the as-
sistance of funds made available through Titles in the Higher Edu-
cr.t: , a Act of 1965. For this, we are grateful.

A/ voximately 17 percent of all black students enrolled in post
$ yob, ciry institutions are enrolled at HBCUs, but they graduate
0 imately 30 to 35 percent of all black students. We are all
a. re of the constant reduction in Federal dollars available over
the ,..4t 10 years. HBCUs have been adversely affected by these re-
ductions.

Titles I through XI of the act are each significant to HBCUs as a
whole. They are the key to viable strengthening of HBCUs. Their
overall goal is to provide opportunities for students to get the best
education possible at colleges of their choice. While Tuskegee Uni-
versity receives funding under Titles III, IV, and X of the act, my
comments will be focused briefly on Titles III and IX, and mainly
on Title N.

The programs and provisions in the act which we view as most
significant to the mission and financial stability of HBCUs include,
Title III, strengthening developing institutions. Funding under
Title III supports institutional efforts in planning, implementation
and evaluation of programs in academic and administrative areas.
Unrestricted grant money is provided that enables 11£ to strengthen
our faculty, renovate buildings, purchase computers and other spe-
cial equipment that we would not otherwise be able to afford. Addi-
tionally, this provision has made it possible for Tuskegee Universi-
ty to upgrade selected educational facilities to meet accreditation
requirements. Specialized accreditation of professional programs
ensures and assists the university in meeting its mission to offer
superior technical, scientific, and professional education with a
career orientation.

TRIO helps us identify talented minority students and provide
support services that are essential to their enrollment in college. It
is aW important that the TRIO programs receive adequate funding
so that critical special services and community development pro-
grams can continue.
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Title IV, the student aid programs, increasing funding for the
Pell Grant, SEOG, &SIG, and College Work Study programs, would
make it more conducive for needy mdividuals to attend colleges of
their choice in both the public and private sectors. This would also
assist in aiding universities to work toward their mission and fi-
nancial stability in that fmancial aid awards would be more attrac-
tive to students. Offe aid ckages with less loan liability could
increase enrollment in schools.

Concerns under the Title IV of the act.
1. Because of the current structure, stuelents have to rely heavily

on loans to finance their education and black students are veg re-
luctant to take out loans, which makes the choices more difficult
for them. This would indicate that there needs to be a balance be-
tween grants and loans. There is not enough grant support for first
generation students. As a result, this causes them to miss out on
opportunities of choice, or they graduate with heavy loan indebted-
ness, thus increased default rates on loans. The loans are not
repaid, not because they do not want to repay them, but because
the jobs secured do not pay enough to enable them to repay. In
other words, the earning power does not measure up to the loan
liability acquired by students in completing their educational ca-
reers.

2. Because of the loan burdens, there is also a reduction in the
number of black American students able to go on to graduate
schools. The end result is a decrease in the number of students
going on to earn Ph.D.s from graduate schools around the country.
1Vhat you get is a tendency for people to abandon education for the
more lucrative fields of law and engineering.

3. The possibility of community service being tied to a student
being able to go to college is another concern.

4. The paperwork reviewed by financial aid administrators is
enormous. The process is so complicated that many people in need
get hung up in verification. Reducing the amount of paperwork re-
quired to perform verification, and simplifying the documents by
applications are necessary.

5. Middle income students are being squeezed out of the financial
aid process, thus being deprived the opportunity to attend the col-
lege of their choice. Home equity as a part of the resources tends to
indicate that the parent can do more, however, this data can some-
times be misleading. We have found in awarding financial aid at
Tuskegee that middle income students need just as much, or
almost as much financial assistant as low income students.

6. The effort underway to revise policies and procedures for the
loan program through the direct loan program would help to
reduce the paperwork burden in administering loan fund to quali-
fied students. We somewhat support that notion.

Title IX of graduate education. As previously stated, the number
of minority candidates for doctoral study are steadily decreasing.
The loan liabilities that students are endinF up with to pursue
graduate studies is alarming. Having additional grant funds to
assist minority students to pursue master's and doctoral degrees
will ensure availability of qualified human resources for the future.
Increasing the amount in the programs already established could
be one way to increase graduate access.



119

In conclusion, we must find ways to support education, or by the
year 2000 other countries will leave us behind.

Recommendations for improvement of the act's effectiveness:
1. Simplify the need analysis process and applications for stu-

dents.
2. Simplify the independent student defmition. It is currently dif-

ficult, and the way that it is designed on the application, it makes
the application form look intimidating to the students.

8. Increase SEOG, SSIG, Pell Grant, and College Work Study
funding. Federal support of SSIG is very critical. A significant
number of students benefit from SSIG. Requiring the states to
match funds could eliminate some states from providing these
funds to their students. If the states are not financially equipped to
match these funds, it would have adverse effect on students and
their families. Increased funding in the College Work Study pro-
gram would make more jobs available, while giving a larger
number of students financial assistance and job experience. The
work study program is an excellent source of self-help funding. By
increasing Pell and SEOG funding, the needier students could get
better aid packages and less loan liability.

4. Make public assistance applicants automatically eligible to re-
ceive Federal funds without a financial aid verification process.
These applicants have already undergone verification.

5. Require standard applications for Part B loans. The multitude
and diverse number of applications that we have to use to process
GSL inhibits expedient processing and delivering of funds.

6. Reduce the paperwork requirements for processing aid and ad-
ministering the programs. The amount of paperwork required to
award various types of aid and to properly administer each pro-
gram is enormous.

7. Allow grant or loan funding without a needs test, through
Title W, for the nontraditional student. Higher education trends
are headed towards increased numbers of nontraor ional students
entering the arena.

8. Continue the provision for renovation and construction in Title
III of the act.

9. Increase grant funding through Title IX for graduate study mi-
norities and women.

10. Include middle income students in the grant by removing the
Pell eligible criteria from campus based funds, and exclude home
equity as a part of the resources in determining for low and middle
income families.

Mr. Chairman, committee members, we appreciate the support
and hard work that you have put into the reauthorization process.
We are confident that Congress will put forth a package that is in
the best interest of this Nation. Again, thank you for the opportu-
nity to address the body.

[The prepared statement of Barbara Tucker-Blair followsd
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#V4/111
HISTORICALLY BLACK COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES AND 44044+
RELATED TITLES OF THE HIGHER EDUCATION ACT OF 1965

Good morning, my name is Barbara TuckerBlair. I sm Director of Financial Aid

Services at Tuskegee University, Tuskegee, Alabama. I sa grateful for this

opportunity to address the House Education and Lobor Subcoemittee on

Postsecondary Education as we move closer to reauthorization of the Higher

Education Act of 1965.

Historically Black Colleges and Universities (HICUs) have a significant

rola in educating and producing successful Black American and other minority

graduates. Dr. Joyce Fleming reported in Blacks In Collo e that "in

determining what happens to black students in black colleges as compered to

black students who attend white colleges, even with few resources, blaek

students in black schools show more academic progress than blacks in white

colleges."

It has been predicted that by the year 2000 the majority of the

workforce in America will be made up of minorities. They will not be able to

compete without affordable opportunities for higher education. Aiding minority

and nontraditional students in attending HICUs that offer quality programs is

crucial to the survival of this nation. Many of the minority students who have

graduated would not have been able to do so without the assistance of fund made

available through Titles in the Higher Education Act (HEA) of 1965, and for this

we are grateful. Approximately !7 percent of all block students enrolled in

post secondary institutions are enrolled at HMIs, but they graduate 30 percent

of all black students. We all are aware of the constant reduction in federal

dollsrs svailable over the last ten years. HICUs have been adversely effected

. )t
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by these reductions.

Titles I through XI of the Act are each significant to HBCUs as a whole.

They are the key to viable strengthening of HBCUs. Their overall goal is to

provide opportunities for students to get the best education possible at

colleges of their choice. While Tuskegee University receives funding under

Titles III, IV, and X of the Act, my coacents will be focused only on Titles III

and IV.

The programs.and provisions in the Act which we view as most significant

to the ission and financial stability of MU'. include:

'Title III: Strengthening Developing Institutions. Funding under Title III

suppor.s institutional efforts in the planning, implementation, and evaluation

of programs in academic and administrative areas. Unrestricted grant money is

provided that enables us to strengthen our faculty, renovate buildings, purchase

computers and other special equipment that we would not otherwise be able to

afford. Additionally, this provision made it possible for Tuskegee University

to upgrade selected educational facilities to meet accreditation requirements.

Specialized accreditation of professional programs ensures and assists the

University in meeting its mission to offer superior technical, scientific and

professional education with a career orientation.

TRIO helps us to identify talented minority students and provide support

services that are essential to their enrollment in college. It is also

important that the TRIO Programs receive adequate funding so that critical

special services and community development programs con continue.

Title IV: Student Aid. Increasing funding for the Pell Grant, SEW, SSIG and

College Work Study programs would make it more conducive for needy individuals
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to attend colleges of their choice in both the public and private sectors. This

would also assist in aiding Universities to work toward their mission and

financial stability in that financial aid awards would be more attractive to

students. Offering aid packages with less loan liability could increase

enrollment at HISCUs.

CONCERNS IN TITLE IV OF THE ACT:

I. Because of the current structure, students have to rely heiivily on loans

to finance their education and black students are very hesitant to take

out loans, which makes the choices more difficult for them. This would

indicate that there needs to be a balance between grants and loans.

There is not enough grant support for first generation students. As a

result, this causes them to miss out on opportunities of choice or they

graduate with heavy loan indebtedness; thus increased default rates on

loans. The loans are not repaid, not because they do not want to repay;

but because the jobs secured do not pay enough to enable them to repay.

In other words, the earning power does not measure up to the loan

liability acquired by students in completing their educational careers.

2. Because of the loan burdens, there is also a reduction in the number of

Black American students able to go on to graduate school. The end

result is e decrease in the number of students going on to earn PhDs

from graduate schools around the country. What you get is a tendency

for people to abandon education for the more lucrative fields of medicine

and lam because of earning power. Fewer and fewer students are going

into any field of education. This indicates that fever teachers are

being trained at the elementary, secondary and college levels.
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3. The possibility of community service being tied to a student being ibis

to go to college is another concern. Such a requirement would discourage

young adults from poor families from
considering college because of the

delay in qualifying to receive assistance. Tor the more economically

well-to-do student, such a requirement would present lees of a problem

because they would have other means. Many, if not most, of the black

colleges already have community service orientation for students

enrolled at their institutions.
Voluntary service has traditionally

been key component at black colleges.

4. The paperwork reviewed by financial aid administrators is enormous.

The process is so complicated that many people in need get hung up in

verification. Reducing the amouut of paperwork required to perform

verification and simplifying the documents for application

ars necessary.

S. iiddle incoeo students are twain/ squeezed out of the financial aid

process, thus being deprived of the
opportunity to attend the college

of their choice. Home equity as a part of the resources tends to

indicate thst the parent can do more, however, this data can sometimes

be misleading. We have found that middle income students need almost

as much assistance as low income students. Bringing this group back

into the loop would enable sore students to obtain a college education.

6. The effort underway to revise
policies and procedures for the loan

program would help to reduce the paperwork burden in administering loan

funds to qualified students.
We strongly support the notion because

based on our analysis of the proposal, the positive outcoees would far

out weigh any other considerations.
Examples are, "elimination of the

Lvo
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GSL application, timely delivery of aid, more tire available for

counseling by financial aid officee, elimination of up front

origination and insurance fees, improved access to deferments, automatic

loan consolidation, choice of repaysint plans vith no additional charges,

and reduction in the constant pressure to increase student interest rates

to offset government subsidies.

In conclusion, we must find ways to support education, or by the year 2000,

other countries will leave us behind.

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR IMPROVING THE ACT'S EFFECTIVENESS:

The following recommendations are submitted for consideration:

1. Simplify the need analysis process and applications for students.

Students and parents are fearful of the complex forms which can

be a deterrent to applicants.

2. Simplify the independent student definition. As reported by

CSS, the current definition is too complicated. Students cannot

understand it; aid administrators find it difficult to administer;

and the 16 questions currently required to fulfill it make the

form look intimidating. Therefore, we concur with CSS' recommendation

to preserve the current automatic criteria, permit graduate and

professional students to establish independence automatically, and

eliminate all conditional criteria.

3. Increase grant (SEOG, SSIG, Pell Grant) and College WorkStudy

funding. The reduction of loan indebtedness after graduation will

also result in reduced default rates for NECUs.

4. Make public assistance applicants automatically eligible to receive

federal funds without a financial aid verification process. These

Lw
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applicents have slready undergone verification under another federel

program end demonstrated eligibility. There is no need to duplicste

effort.

S. Require stendard applicetions for Part B loons (Stafford, BLS end

PLUS). The diversity in loan applications inhibits expedient

processing end delivery of funds.

6. Rmduce the paperwork requirements for processing aid and

administering the programs. The smount of psperwork required

to sward verious types of sid and to properly administer

esch program is enortous.

7. Allow grent or loan funding without a needs test, through Title IV,

for the nontraditionsl student. Higher Education trends are heeded

towerd increased numbers of nontraditional students entering the

arena, currently there are no provisions for this category of student.

S. Continue the provision for renovation end construction in Title III

of the Act.

1 3

46-420 0 - 92 - 5
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Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, and I appreciate your diligent
effort to come within that time limit. I know you were pressing
very hard to do that. Mr. Page?

STATEMENT OF JOE PAGE, FINANCIAL AID OFFICER,
GRAMBLING STATE UNIVERSITY, GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA

Mr. PAGE. Mr. Chairman, and other members of this subcommit-
tee, I appreciate the opportunity to be here today.

My name is Joe Page. I have been serving in student financial
aid for the past 21 years. I am currently serving as the college
work study coordinator at Grambling State University. Grambling
is a historically black university that has a long history in educat-
ing and providing services to students throufhout the world, espe-
cially those who have been economically, socially, and educational-
ly deprived.

The written testimony has been submitted, as requested, to Con-
gressman Jefferson by Ms. Cynthia Burks, our director of student
ail. The paper concentrates on Title IV program& It identifies and
discusses the complexity and the delivery system, as well as the
lack of appropriate funding levels that will be more beneficial to
our students who need and apply for assistance.

Grambling State University is a publicly supported institution
that has undergraduate and graduate programs of study. Our insti-
tution participates in all major Title IV programs, and has a
modest amount of institutional funds to award. To the extent that
funds are available, we are committed to meeting the full docu-
mented need of all students.

Grambling State University supporta the recommendation of the
National Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators to
increase the grant from $8,100, as written in Subpart I of the 1965
act, to $4,400. The act states that by 1991 the grant award should
be $8,100. However, the current maximum award of $2,400 per
award year is only half of the tuition of Louisiana residents, and
even less for out-of-state students.

The current level of funding is not adequate to support the needs
of students at our historically black university. Ninety percent of
our students receive some form of financial assistance. GramPing
is not an exception to the national loan imbalance. Our level of
SEOG funding is less than $870,000, while the student loan volume
is in excess of $11 million dollars. This statistic serves as evidence
that the current level of SEOG funding is woefully inadequate to
assist our needy and deserving students.

Grambling State University supports the NASFAA's recommen-
dation to delete the Pell Grant eligibility criteria to determine
SEOG recipients. Concurring with NASFAA's recommendation
would provide greater flexibility in targeting SEOG funds to stu-
dents according to the level of their remaining need.

1 " C..
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Grambling State University is grateful for the opportunity to
share its view on issues that must be addressed as we approach re-
authorization. We must simplify the Federal aid application proc-
ess. The forms must be made simpler and the delivery system less
complicated. No institution anywhere is any better than the service
it provides to its people. Services can be provided to students who
attend our institution only if the institution is able to cope with
the student aid delivery system and serve them well.

Mr. Chairman, I thank you.
[The prepared statement of Joe Page follows:]

13,i
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As Romuthorisation approaches, therm aro many important iss

which affect Historically Slack Cilleges and Universities (HSCUs)

which must be addressed, without which we threaten the access to

higher education for those students who would benefit most. This

paper will discus specific Title IV regulations which directly

affect access to higher education for needy students.

The entire Federal aid, application process has become so

Complex that low income and minority students are not attending

college because of the complexity of the process. Financial aid

programs have grown to serve a broader population and the results

of the complex application process has become a dtrient to low

income, first-generation students across the Country. Something

must be dons to make the application process and delivery system

more user/consumer-friendly. It is obvious that students and/or

parents ars having a difficult time completing the Application For

Federal Student Aid properly, otherwise, there would not be a need

for a mandatory verification process.

Not only is the Federal aid application process confusing, but

the funding to support these needy programs has not increased as it

was suppose to inaccordance with what was written in the original

Higher Education Act of 196$. The cOst of college tuition rises

each year, yet federal grant funds have not risen proportionately.

The most popular issue that should be addressed through the

reauthorization process is the need for additional grant funds to

support our institutions.
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Background information on our institution le essential to the

understanding of our specific nceds. Grasbling State University is

publicly supported institution that has undergraduate and graduate

programs of study. The role of the Financial Aid Office at

Brambling State University is to help ligible students pursue

their educational goals. Brambling State University believes that

it is the responsibility of parents and students to meet

educational cost through espioyment, earnings, and other available

resources. The University also believes that every student should

be able to obtain a postsecondary education, regardless of economic

background. Its 6500 plus student population represents both in-

state and out-of-state residents. Brambling State University is a

residential campus, but has a significant number of commuting

students. The University is a credit-hour institution using

semesters. Its academic year runs from August to July.

Brambling State University participates in all major Title IV

programs and hes a modest amount of institutional funds to award.

To tho extent that funds are available, Brambling State University

is committed to meeting the full documented need of all students.

Through federal, state, and institutional resources, the Irniversity

provides award packages which contain both gift and self-h 'p forms

of assistance. Priority consideration for funding is given tO

students who meet established deadlines for submission of aid.

The Title IV funds awarded from 1966-19 to 1961-00 are

depicted in Figures 1 through 4. Significant Items to note are as

followss

1 3 /
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1. from 1988-89 to 1989-90, there was an eleven percent

increase in Pell Grant dollars provided to students, while

the student loan volume increased from $8,881,984 to

$11,418,355. A 29% increase.

2. Student loans accounted for 60% of the'total awards in

1989-90, 50% in 1988-89 and 66% of the total aid awarded

in 1987-88.

3. Grants accounted for 33% of total aid awarded in 1989-90,

35% in 1988-89 and 29% in 1987-88.

Other relevant items to be considered about our institution

are as followss

1. During the 1989-90, 5,617 students of 7490 students who

enrolled during this period submitted a Pell Grant apoli-

cation (75%).

2. During 1989-90, 25% of our students were classified as

independent student, while the other 75% were classified

as dependent students.

3. The income levels for the independent student are listed

below:

Less than $10,000 84%

Greater than $10,000 16%

4. The income levels for the dependent student are listed

bolowt

Lass than $12,000 42%

$12,001 to $21,000 22%

$21,001 and greater 36%
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Testimony Before the House Education and Labor

Subcommittee on Postsecondary Education

by Joe O. raga
Brambling State University
trembling, Louisiana 7124$

July 27, 1991

IMO= ON

My name Is Joe 0. fags. I have served in financial aid for

the past 21 years and ern currently serving as College Work Study

Coordinator et Grambling State University. Grambling is a Historically

Slack University that has a long history of educating and providing

services to students throughout the world, especially those who nave

been economically, socially, and educationally deprived.

The written testimony has been submitted as requested to

Congressmen. William .Jeffersom by Hs. Cynthia Burks, our Director

of Student Financial Aid. The paper concentrates on Title IV Programs

(Student Aid). It Identifies and discusses the complexity In the

delivery system es well as the lack of appropriate funding levels

that will be more beneficial to our students who need to apply for

assistance.

Grembling State University is a publicly supported institution

that has undergraduate and graduate programs of study. Our Institution

participates In all major Title IV Programs and has a modest amount

of institutional funds to award. To the extent that funds are

available, we are committed to meeting the full documented need of

all students.

133
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PELL Grant

GremblIng Stets University supports the recommendation of the

National Association of Student Aid Administrators (NASFAA) to Increase

the grant from $3,100, es written In Subpart 1 of the 1965 Act, to

$4,400. The Act states that by 1991-92 the grant award should be

$5,100. However, the current maximum award of $2,400 per award year

fs only half of the tuition for Louisiana residents and even less

for out-of-state students.

SEOG

The current level of funding Is not adequate to support the

needs of students at our Historically Slack University. Ninety percent

(90;) of our students receive soma form of financial assistance.

Grambling Is no exception to the national loan imbalance. Our level

of SEOG funding Is less than $370,000, while the student loan volume

Is In excess of 11 million dollars. This statistic serves as evidence

that the current level of SEOG funding Is woefully Inadequate to

ssist our needy and deserving students.

Orambling State University supports the NASFAA's recommendation

to delete the Pell Grant eligibility criteria for determining SEOG

recipients. Concurring with NASFAA's recommendation would provide

greater flexibility In targeting SEOG funds to students according

to the level of their remaining need.

CONCLUSION

GramblIng State University Is grateful for the opportunity to

share Its views on Issues that must be addressed es we approach

Reauthorization. We must simplify the Federal old application prOCess.
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The forms must be made simpler and the delivery system less

complicated. eNo Institution nywhere is any better then the service

. It provides to Its. people. Services can be provided to students

who attend our Institution only If the institution Is able to cope

with the student aid delivery system and serve them well.

Thank you.
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Cisme 1

Grambling State University
Grambling, Louisiana 71245

Office of Student Financial Aid
Summary of Title IV Financial Aid

Fiscal Years: 1987-88 thru 1989-90

Code
IY.O.

Total Do Ilw
LI81-

Total Dollar
ignEaft.1118.

Pe II $8,186,349.60 S7,199,92a00
CWS $1 ,049,311 .60 $i 1049,886.00
NDSL $88,180.03 S109,929.00
Stafford A930,050.15 $8,831 ,584.48
Plus S3,310,373.25 Si ,332,904.4o
SLS $1 290,636.17 111 ,471 1429.53
SEOG iNiegpada tailaalgage

Total Dolls/
Lifielh20.

67,981 ,11 4.50
SI Ai ,441 .44

$6o,8oi.00
$11 ,41 8,354.61

$i ,728,880.1 2
31,298,413.51
MalACil

Aid Typo
EM (1987-$$P1(1988 -$9,13 (19$9 -90)

1 4 3
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Grambling State University
Grambling, Louisiana 71245

Office of Student Financial Aid
Summary of Title IV Financial Aid

Fiscal Year 1989-90

Code Total
nallx

Pell *Tiles ,114.60
CWs A811441.44
NDSL 0007 .00
Stafford th 1,418,354.61
Plus $11728.890.12
SLS ,298,413.61
SEOG Maoism
ft tell Total Wet** 423,935,8n.o8

F4um. 2
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Grambling State University
Grambling, Louisiana 71245

Office of Student Financial Aid
Summary of Title IV Financial Aid

Fiscal Year 1988-89

Code
Ina

Total
Dollar

Pell 0,199,922.03
CWS 31,049,696.00
NDSL 3109,929.00
Stafford 38,981 ,ff84.48
Plus $1 ,332,9o4.4o
SI_S 31,471,429.53
SEOG tiggi=g4

Total 320,391 ,237.91

Figtae 3

1 41
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Grambling State University
Gramblingi Louisiana 71245

Office of Student Financial Aid
Summary of Title IV Financial Ald

Fiscal Year 1987-88

Coda Total
Zaa adit.

Pell K18313460
CWS $1 lo49,311 so
NDSL MAW=
Stafford $9,69300.1 a
Plus 4310167825
61-8 *11290,636,i 7
SEOG =Ma
me Total

Safford (45.014)

ViguAt 4

1 4 0
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With these items in mind, we submit the following comments and

recommendations to be considered as the financial aid process is

being updated with reauthorisation.

REAMORISATION ISSUIS

PSLL GRANTS

Grambling State University supports the National Association

of Student financial Aid Administrator's (NASPAA) recommendation to

increase the grant award from $3,100, as written in Subpart 1 of

the 1945 Act, to $4,400. As you may be aware, this Act stated that

by 1991-93, the grant award should be $3,100. The current maximum

award is $2,400, $700 less than the budgeted amount. At Graabling

State University, the maximum grant award is $1200 per emester.

This only covers half of the tuition of Louisiana residents. For

out-of-state students, it covers even less. Consequently, our

students have to bridge the gap with the student loan programs and

we all know where the student 1oan program has led us.

SUPPLEMENTAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITI GRANTS (SSW)

The current level of funding is not adequate to support the

needs of students at Nistorically Slack Colleges and Universities.

During the 190-$0 Award Tear, SS% of our students were awarded

some type of federal state or institutional aid. Seventy-five

percent of our students submitted grant applications, Nationally,

there is a grant and loan imbalance. Grambling State University is
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no xception. Figure 1 depicts that our level of SEOG funds have

been under $370,000, while the student loan volume exceeded 11

million dollars. We need more SEOG funds appropriated to assist

the needy students.

Grambl

ing State University supports NASFAA's recomendation to delete the

Pell Grant eligibility criteria for determining 5E00 recipients.

Concurring with NASFAA' recommendation, this would providP greater

flexibility in targeting $EOG funds to students according to the

level of their remaining need,

ROBERT T. STAFFORD LOAN

There have been suggestions to increase the Stafford Loan

amounte. Grambling State University believes the student loan

programs are fundamentally sound and essential to the financing of

post secondary institutions. There have been suggestions to

increase the Stafford Loan amounts. We strongly disagree with

increasing loan limits. Not only is it contradictory to the

concept of reducing the national student loan debt, but also

students from HBCUs are more likely to borrow simply because it is

available, In most instances, these are the least likely to be

able to pay the loan back, Stafford Loans are a primary source of

aid for low income students. They should not be over burdened with

student loans. Our students heavy reliance on the loan ultimately

dictates an increased level of default. It is our opinion that the

loan limits for freshmen and sophomores should remain the same,
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$2625. Junior level should be $4,000 and senior level $6,000 as

they are more likely to graduate and get a job. Tor students

attending on a half time basis, the annual amounts should be

reduced to half of the standard amounts.

MULTIPLS nisSUIUMMSMT MULX

The omnibus emdget reconciliation Act of 1990, P.L. 101-50$,

amended the Higher Rducation Act to require a 30 day delay in the

disbursement of loan proceeds to all first-time, firt-year

borrowers as measure to reduce defaults rates. OraMbling State

university support KAMAN' recommendation to allow a single dis-

bursement tor loan periods less than 90 days. The regulation as

written places undue financial burden on first-year students, many

of whom must rely on their loan proceeds to pay for living

expenses, books, etc. Minority students are hit Va,, harder

because many of their parents cannot bridge the gap in expenses

incurred within that 30 day period.

PLUS LOANS

The Act should requike that PLUS Loan checks be co-payable to

the school and parent. The rationale is that parents, especially,

the low-income !sallies who otherwise might not have Such funds,

often abuse the prograa. The funds Are used for every purpose but

to pay for educational costs. The student and the school often

suffer when parent abuse the program. Additionaliy, by making the

PLUS Loan check co-payabla, Plus Loan fraud will be reduced. For
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the Spring 91 semester alone, we reported 21 cases of Plus Loan

fraud to the Department of Education, potentially $84,000 in fraud.

Plus Loans should also be disbursed in two equal payments. This

would also limit the abuse of parents receiving funds for periods

of enrollment where the student is not enrolled.

We do support an increase in the PLUS Loan annual and maximum

limits. However, and aggregate limit of $100,000 as proposed by

NASFAA, would only lend itself to more Plus Loan abuse. An

aggregate limit of $40,000 seems more appropriate. The current

level in most instances does not seem sufficient to cover an entire

school year even at an institution like ours where the tuition and

room and board charges fir an out-of-state student is only $9,964

per year.

PERRIN LOAM PROGRAM

Should HSCU's be exempt from the'71 exceptable dfault level

as defined by thi Department of Education/ We believe so.

Currently, no new funds are awarded to those institutions whose

Perkins Loon default rate is 7%. The last time we received

additionel funds was in the early seventies Increased funding

would enable more.students to benefit from it's faYorable terms and

conditions.

INDUINDMIT STUDENT

Tho criteria used to dftermine a student's dependency status

should be reviewed guarefully. Currently, the process is long and

151
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complex. The $4,000 criteria should be dropped. Consideration

should also be given to lowering the age criteria. Currently, a

student may be classified as independent after the age of 24. Fet

at the age of 21, we give students permission to do almost

anything. At the age of 21, if the parents are not claiming the

child for tax purposes, he or she should be classified as

independent, regardless of the $4,000 resource criteria.

INDEPENDENT STUDENT STATUS AND NEMEC ASSISTANCS

In our atmosphere, we find that many of our student's families

aro on public assistance such as welfare and social security. The

Financial Aid awarded to them is limited because of the independent

student criteria. They are dependent on these families, yet their

families are not able to provide much assistance because of their

fixed income. Some consideration should be given to making this

group of students independent. Additionally* soma consideration or

more flexibility should be given to the aid administrator in

allowing the dependent student in this category to borrow under the,

SLS loan programs After all,.the parent of the student on fixed

income is not likely .to be able to ropey a Parent Loan.

Additionally* they are more likely to abuse the PLUS loan program

because of the easy access.

INDOINUNT STUDSNT DEFINITION

The current definition of a dependent student is long and

complex. furthermore the Student status questions on the financial

1 5 2
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aid forma are confusing and cumbersome, The attempt to develop

concrete criteria to determine a student's dependency status

inadvertanly created questions that automatically multiply

themselves every year. The rolling nature of the years for which

a single undergraduate student under the age of 23 must demonstrate

$4,000 in resources addresEas 'more questions with every passing

year end now Consumes a third of the page. Together we must search

for a way to sort out the students who are truly independent from

those' who rely on parental assistance, Professional judgement

should play a major role in the students dependency status

determination. It has been suggested that there be a separate,

simple application form available at schools for students on public

assistance. These students would simply bring In verification from

the public agency and the financial aid officer would determine

eligibility without the student having to complete the long,

complex federal application.

REVIEW TRIATNEW OF ASSETS

The one section of the need formula which needs reviewing is

the treatment of StUdent/parent savings. There must be a way to

encourage students and families to save for an education and not

have the savings penalise them in terms of reducing their eligi-

bility for grants. Recently, a parent walked into the Financial

Aid Office at our institution,, The family income was only $12,000

($3,000 for the student and $9,000 for the parent),

The student also reported receiving social security benefits of
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$3.000. The family's home was valued at $30,000 with no outstanding

debt. The student's eligibility for the grant was less than $500.

She was only ligible for $750 in other forme of aid. That was

because her expected family contribution towards her education had

been inflated due to the home asset. Is this fair? Not for low

Income residents. Asset treatment is unfair. Home equity should

be eliminated from the Tiered analysis formula.

FORMS AND REGULATIONS

The form should remain free with decentralised Multiple Data

Entry agencies. Students are often confused with all the different

numbers to call. All MDE's should be required to be full

processors, handling all data collection under one agency. This

simplifies the process for the student. Me believe the forma

should be free of fees for both students and schools. Ne applaud

those services who are taking steps toward providing needed

intonation to students and school. The new ACT should create two

fores, one for those on public assistance and one for those who ere

not. FOr those dependent on public assistance, the application

should become an express form. After all, recipients on public

assistance should not have to prove (again), that they are poor.

STUDENT ELAISILITT

Ne believe that the system should allow for automatic Title IV

eligibility for recipients of federal human resources benfits

(e.g., AFDC, food stamps, etc.). The need analysis process should

recognise that people on public assistance programa have already

154
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undergone federal, or state need analysis to obtain public

assistance, These persons should not be required to file an

additional analysis to establish financial aid eligibility. Ws

strongly believ that the simplification process for low income

families who have already established need should be incorporated

into the process with authorisation process to access public

assistance or tax information for verification,

',VAULT REDUCTION

With the new default initiatives, HIBM's are threatened with

termination, limitation, and/or suspension from the student loan

programs, without which our students would not be able to attend

college. Since federal, state, and institutional grant and

scholarship funds are limited, student loans are the only other

alternative. There must be a way to keep these programs available

for our schools.

Gambling State University believes that the institutions

should not be held liable when wo have no real control. Currently,

the loan default rate is assigned strictly to the institution that

certifies the application. In reality, the lenders, guarantor.,

cosigners and students share in the default of the loan. If the

student is eligible, we must certify the loan. We propose ways to

more effectively involve all parties in the prevention of defaults.

Ws feel that it is not appropriate for schools, who have no power

to limit borrowing power and receive no remuneration for

collection, to bear this burden.

We also believe that the new ACT should address loan servicing
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agencies as they may be a legitimate factor in the student's

default rate. Oftentimes they report students in default and late

payment when the student is up-to-date with their payments.

Frustrations with busy phone lines, loans sold without previous

notice, and "getting the run around" from untrained and

unprofessional loan servicing staff, creates potential default

situations. Lenders are allowed to sell loans to more than one

servicing agency. once the student nters repayment, oftentimes

they are unsure who to pay, Sallie Mae, Nellie Mae, The Loan

Servicing Center of Virginia, or the Loan Servicing Center of

Minnesota. It's all too confusing and often creates a potential

default.

FINANCIAL AID ADMINISTRATOR'S AUTNORITI TO LIMIT LOAN AMOUNTS

The Department of Education recently announced a regulation

that gives the Financial Aid Administrator the authority to deny a

loan to a student who "appears" to be a potential defaulter. Who

can decide based on the limited information we have on file, who

will default? We do not require Credit reports for student loan

borrowers! Therefore, how can one say that a particular student

will or will not repay his or her loan. We strongly believe that

this regulatiou is discriminatory and will result in many

minority students being discriminated against at predominately

white institutions. In our opinion, the current satisfactory

academic progress standards are sufficent to Wait the amounts the

student will borrow. The Department of Education should outline
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specific guidelines for making these decisions. It should not be
left to professional judgement.

CONCLUSION

Grambling State University is grateful for the opportunity to
Share ite views on a few issues that must be addressed as we
approach Reauthorization, There are many items which must be
reviewed in order to make the Title IV Programs operate with their
original intent, to provide access to higher education for needy
students. congress must find a way to provide more grant funds.
if grant funds are not available, then more funds met be provided
through student employment.

Student loan volumes are at an all time high
nationally and at

Orambling State University in particular, We must find a way
through Reauthorization to reduce the student loan debt of low
income students. The rising default rates of ROCUe can be reduced
if more grant funds are provided to these Institutions, We must
find away help low income students finance their education without
jeopardizing the future access to higher education for these same
students with an Institution's high default rate. Rveryone is
responsible for the default rate.

Finally, we must simplify the Federal aid application process.
The forms must made simpler and the delivery system less
complicated for needy students. No Institution anywhere Is any
better than the service

it provides to its people. Services can be
provided to students who attend our institution onty if the
institution IS able to cope the Student Aid Delivery System.

15/
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Chairman JIRMREION. Thank you, Mr. Page. Is there a question

from any member of the committee? Mr. Payne?
Mr. PAYNS. I just have a quick quustion in regard to the question

of student work study. We have gotten somenot work study, but

cooperative education, where students go to a business to work as

they are in college. We are looking at an amendment that would,

hopefully, shift cooperative education into tutorial work, which

would Wmost make it like a work study, because we are fmding

that cooperative education, because of the lack of opportunity for

employment, there are less, there are dollars that are not being ex-

pended in cooperative education. Whereas, if we could shift tutorial

work, whether it was in the institutien itself where a stipend could

be paid to a student, or at a secondary school, as we heard is al-

ready being done, do you think that a program like that, and we

are trying to see how we can introduce this as an amendment, do

you think that that would be helpful to the students coming in,

and also providing income for those students who are at the college

and needing income?
Mrs. Tuciam-Bum. I would support that notion simply because

students who manage to get the co-op jobs now, and they are on co-

op for a semester, once the income from that co-op assignment is

counted in the analysis process for the next academic year, many

of those students have reduced eligibility to receive financial aid.

Whereas, if the funding is treated as a work study assignment, it is

not counted as income, and would not be held against them for the

future year.
Financial aid administrators do have professional judgment capa-

bility to adjust down the contributions, but that will not make that

student eligible for a Pell Grant. Most co-op students are now not

eligible to receive a Pell Grant, which eliminates SEOG and work

study eligibility if you make your awards based on the law.

Chairman Jarnasori. Thank you very much. That was interest-

Intr. HAM. Just a comment to Ms. Tucker. I hope you are right

in your conclusion that this Qmgress of ours is going to be liberal

in its conclusion when it comes to funding.
Mrs. Tumma-Bum. We hope so.
Mr. HAM. Even though we are operating under an announced

educational President, they move based on the threat of a veto if

they do not do what they are suppos,,d to do.

Mrs. Tueima-Bum. Well, we still have to push and have to ex-

press that education should be at the top of the totem pole in terms

of priorities.
Mr. HAM. Keep pushing.
Chairman Jurintsorc Thank you very much. Very good. We ap-

preciate your testimony.
Panel Four, Dr. Titus and Dr. Marcellus Grace. Is Dr. Grace

here? Not to waste anytime, Dr. Grace, in his defense, was prob-

ably expecting to come on a little later. He may be around and

about, I am told. But, so as to not lose any time, we will just pro-

wed with you, Dr. Titus, and hope that we will be lucky in finding

Dr. Grace. If not, we will just have to work it out in some sort of a

way as we go along.
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But, I do not want to disrupt the panel. We would like you, sir,
to please begin your testimony with this panel, and we are very
pleased to have you here, and you may begin, sir.

Mr. Trrus. Thank you. Mr. Chairman, members of the subcom-
mittee, I am Myer L Titus

Chairman JEFFIRSON. Just a minute. Is Dr. Joiner here? Dr.
Joiner, I am told, will not be here at all. But, Dr. Grace is on his
way, and he very well may come before we finish up. So, Dr. Titus,
if you would proceed. Forgive us for interrupting you, sir.

Mr. Trrus. That is okay.

STATEMENT OF MYER L. TITUS, REPRESENTATIVE UNITED
NEGRO COLLEGE FUND, PRESIDENT, PHILANDER SMITH COL-
LEGE, LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

Mr. Thus. Mr. Chairman, members of the subcommittee, I am
Myer L. Titup, President of Philander Smith College in Little Rock,
Arkansas.

Philander Smith is one of the 41 member institutions of the
United Negro College Fund. I appear today on behalf of the United
Negro College Fund and the other 40 presidents. I represent some
50,000 students from 48 of the 50 states, and 1,504 international
students from 30 foreign countries, and 889 students from our pos-
sessions.

I am pleased to have this opportunity to talk about the need to
revise and extend Title HI of the Higher Education Act, and to talk
specifically about Part B, The Black College and University Act.

In order to set UNCF's recommendations for reauthorization of
Title III in context for the subcommittee, I believe it is appropriate
to give you a snapshot of United Negro OAlege Fund's studenth
and the institutions as a group.

During the past few years, 81 of our institutions experienced en-
rollment grow up to 16 percent over the past 4 years. The UNCF
schools now enroll some 49,897 students as of September, 1990.
Sixty-one percent of all UNCF studenta receive Pell Grants and
some kind of aid. Sixty-one mw-nt of all UNCF students receive
Pell Grants, 88 percent SEOGs, 87 percent College Work Study,
and 51 percent receive Stafford loans. Most receive multiple forms
of this assistance. UNCF presidents note, with alarm, the fact that
the number of student borrowers in GSL [Stafford loans] have
almost doubled from 11,000 in 1982-88, to almost 22,000 in 1988-89.
Increaringly, UNCF students are becoming indentured servants.

In 1979-80, eight percent of all UNCF students received Guaran-
Wed Student Loans. Vhile in 1987-88, more than half of all UNCF
students received Stafford loans. I mention this to point out to you
two pointo. One, institutions like Philander Smith are helping the
Federal Government to fidfill its access mission by enrolling low
income and minority students who get baccalaureate degrees and
become tax paying citizens. Two, in addition to all you do for black
colleges, which we very much appreciate, the Title Ill aid you pro-
vide to our students is our lifelme and our passport to escape the
second generation burdens of slavery in America. We hope that
you will keep this in mind as you debate whether or not to make
the Pell Grant a real entitlement. We hope that you do.

159
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Since the rewrite of Title III, Part B, in 1986, UNCF member in-
stitutions have benefitted immensely from the much more careful-
ly targeted, formula-driven program which provides almost $38
million to private Historically 'ack Q:olleges and Universities, and
$89 million to the entire universe of undergraduate HBCUs. Addi-
tionally, another $11.3 million is provided to five historically black
professional and fraduate schoolsClark Atlanta University, the
Tuskegee University School of Veterinary Medicine, the Morehouse
School of Medicine, the Meharry Medical College, and the Charles
R. Drew School of Postgraduate Medicine.

Title III was completellrewritten during the 1980 reauthoriza-
tion, and again, in the her Education Act of 1986. It is the
single largest institutional aid_program funded by the Federal Gov-
ernment under the Higher Education Act or any other Federal
statute, including the Morrill Act Title HI authorizes three sepa-
rate programs of funding for eligible institutions and provides
direct institutional aasistance to a variety of institutions of higher
education, especially throe eerving large numbers of low income
student& The three programs include: 1] the strengthening institu-
tions program; 2] the strengthening Historically Black Colleges and
Universities programs, including Section 326 for graduate and pro.
fessional schools; and 8] the endowment challenge program.

The Title Ill institutional aid portion of the act was revised to
reflect the outline described above in the 1986 amendments. UNCF,
among others, played a significant role in working with Senator
Pell and Chairman Augustus F. Hawkins in rewriting this law,
which constitutes the only real form of institutional assistance
most HBCUs receive from the Federal Government That is true of
Philander Smith College. It is our view that the Part B Black Gil-
lege and UniversiV Act requires only minor modifications in order
to fulfill its stated goal of enhancing America's historically black
institutions of higher education. We have been working with repre-
sentativee of the public black colleges, as well as black professional
and graduate schools to develop a series of legislative recommenda-
tions affecdng Part B. UNCF supports four important changes in
Title M. UNCF, I repeat, supporta four important changes in to
Title M.

1. We concur that the floor should be increased from $350,000 to
$500,000.

2. Enactment of the Bush administration proposal to set aside
$20 million for historicaly black colleges in Part C, the Challenge
Endowment Grant Program, with a Part C authorization of $175
million for fiscal year 1998.

3. We rece umend that you add five new graduate and profession-
al schools to 4ection 326 of Part B, including the Xavier lJniversity
School of Pharmacy, the Southern University School of Law, the
Texas Southern University [Thurgood Marshall] School of Law, or
the School of Pharmacy at Texas Southern, the Florida A&M
School of Pharmaceutical Sciences, and the North Carolina Central
University School of Law, with provisions to protect the existing
grants already made to the original five schools through fiscal year
1998, or through the life of their current grants. UNCF believes
that the current means of increasing the number of participating
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graduate institutions based on need and community consensus has
worked well.

4. We recommend the establishment of a statutory mechanism
for bringing the five new graduate institutions into Section 326
without reducing funding to any of the current participants. We
oppose the introduction of a generic graduate school authorization
because this will create a substantial drain on the limited number
of Title III funds to graduate programs where African Americans,
although under represented, do not require as much attention as in
the health professions, medicine, and law.

UNCF also supports including a uniform methodology for calcu-
lating the number of graduates who complete their studies in 4 or
5 years, and who enter graduate or 'professional school within a 5
year "look back" period. Additionally, UNCF recommends inclu-
sion of seven new authorized activities in Section 328 which would
permit institutions to implement fund raising and development, in-
stitutional research, institutional outreach, and community out-
reach activities, all of which would contribute to carrying out the
overall purpose of Part B.

In Part C, UNCF believes that a cap on the amount of a Part C
grant, relative to the size of the overall Part C appropriation is
needed. This is intended to prevent a few large grants from absorb-
ing the entire Part C appropriations. We would suggest a $500,000
cap when the appropriation is $11 million or less, or a $1 million
cap when the funding is above $11 million, but below $21 million,
and no limit when the appropriation is $21 million or greater. Fi-
nally, we think reducing the sit-out period for those institutions
which successfully pursued a large matching grant, 2 million Fed-
eral dollars for each 1 million private (Mars raised, reduce that
sitout period from 10 years to 5 years.

We strongly support a Part B authorization of $150 million rais-
ing to $250 million during the 5 year life of the authorization.

U.N.C.F. is pleased with the progress made thus far with the re-
vised Black College and University Act program established in
1986. We encourage Congress to follow the old-age principle, if it
ain't broke, don't fix it, during the current reorganization process.

I would be pleased to answer any questions.
[The prepared statement of Myer L. Titus followsl
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MR. CHAIRMAN, MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE, I AM MYER L.
TITUS, PRESIDENT OF PHILANDER SMITH COLLEGE IN LITTLE ROCK,
ARKANSAS. PHILANDER-MUTH IS ONE OF THE FORTY-ONE MEMBER
INSTITUTIONS OF THE UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND (UNCF) AND I APPEAR
TODAY ON BEHALF OF OURMEKBER PRESIDENTS AND ALMOST 50,000 STUDENTS
FROM 48 OF THE FIFTY STATES AND 1,504 INTERNATIONAL STUDENTS FROM
30 FOREIGN COUNTRIES AND 339 STUDENTS FROM OUR U.S. POSSESSIONS.

I AM PLEASED TO HAVE THIS OPPORTUNITY TO SPEAK TO YOU ABOUT
THE NEED TO REVISE AND EXTEND TITLE III OF THE HIGHER EDUCATION ACT
AND TO TALK SPECIFICALLY ABOUT PART B, THE BLACK COLLEGE AND
UNIVERSITY ACT.

IN ORDER TO SET UNCF'S RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REAUTHORIZATION OF
TITLE III IN CONTEXT FOR THE SUBCOMMITTEE, I BELIEVE IT IS
APPROPRIATE TO GIVE YOU A "SNAPSHOT" OF UNCF'S sTUDEPTS AND THE
INSTITUTIONS AS A GROUP.

DURING THE PAST FEW YEARS, 31 OR OUR 41 MEMBER INSTITUTIONS
HAVE EMRIENCED ENROLLMENT GAINS OF TWO PERCENT OVER THE FALL OF
1989 AND INCREASES OF 16 PERCENT OVER THE PAST FOUR YEARS. WE NOW
ENROLL 49,397 STUDENTS AS OF SEPTEMBER 1990. SIXTY-ONE PERCENT OF
ALL UNCF STUDENTS RECEIVE PELL GRANTS; 33 PERCENT RECEIVE SEOGs;
37 PERCENT RECEIVE COLLEGE WORK STUDY; AND 51 PERCENT RECEIVE
STAFFORD LOANS; AND MOST RECEIVE MULTIPLE FORNS OF THIS ASSISTANCE.
UNCF PRESIDENTS NOTE -- WITH ALARM -- THE FACT THAT THE NUMBER OF
STUDENT BORROWERS IN THE GSL (STAFFMND LOANS) HAS ALMOST DOUBLED
FROM 11,000 IN 1982-82 TO ALMOST 22,000 IN 1988-89. INCREASINGLY,
UNCF STUDENTS ARE BECOMING INDENTURED SERVANTS -- IN 1979-80, EIGHT
PERCENT OF ALL UNCF STUDENTS Rzacrimp GUARANTEED STUDENT LOANS,
WHILE IN 1987-88, MORE THAT ONE-HALF OF ALL UNCF STUDENTS RECEIVE
STAFFORD LOANS. I MENTION THIS TO YOU TODAY TO MAKE TWO POINTS
REALLY: (1) INSTITUTIONS LIRE BETHUNE COOKMAN ARE HELPING THE
FEDERAL GOVERNMENT FULFILL ITS "ACCESS" MISSION BY ENROLLING LOW-
INCOME AND MINORITY STUDENTS WHO GET BACCALAUREATE DEGREES AND
BECOME TAX-PAYING CITIZENS; AND (2) IN ADDITION TO ALL YOU DO FOR
BLACK COLLEGES, MICR NE VERYWUCH APPRECIATE, THROUGH TITLE III -
- THE TITLE IV AID YOU PROVIDE TO OUR STUDENTS IS OUR LIFELINE AND
THEIR PASSPORT TO ESCAPE THE SECOND-GENERATION BURDENS OF SLAVERY
IN AMERICA. WE HOPE YOU WILL KEEP THAT IN MIND AS YOU DEBATE
WHETHER OR NOT TO MAKE THE PELL GRANT A REAL ENTITLEMENT --WE HOPE
THAT YOU WILL:

SINCE THE RE-WRITE OF TITLE III PART B IN 1986, UNCF MEMBER
INSTITUTIONS HAVE DIMWITTED IMMENSELY FROM THE MUCH MORE CAREFULLY
TARGETED, FORMULA-DRIVEN PROGRAM WHICH PROVIDES ALMOST $38 MILLION
TO PRrVATE HISTORICALLY BLACK COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITY, AND $89
MILLION TO THE ENTIRE UNIVERSE OF UNDERGRADUATE MICUs.
ADDITIONALLY, ANOTHER $11.3 MILLION IS PROVIDED TO FIVE
HISTORICALLY BLACK PROFESSIONAL AND URADUATE SCHOOLS -- CLARK
ATLANTA UNIVERSITY (GRADUATE SCHOOL), THE TUMUMEE UNIVERSITY
SCHOOL OF VETERINARY MEDICINE, THE MOREHOUSE SCHOOL OF MEDICINE,
THE =HARRY MEDICAL COLLEGE, AND THE CHARLES R. DREW SCHOOL OF
POSTGRADUATE MEDICINE.
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TITLE III WAS COMPLETELY RE-WRITTEN DURING THE 1980 REAUTHORIZATION
AND AGAIN IN THE HIGHER EDUCATION ACT AMENDMENTS OF 1986 (P.L. 99-
498). IT IS THE SINGLE LARGEST INSTITUTIONAL AID PROGRAM FUNDED
BY THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT UNDER THE HIGHER EDUCATION ACT OR ANY
OTHER FEDERAL STATUTE, INCLUDING THE MORRILL ACT. TITLE III
AUTHORIZES THREE SEPARATE PROGRAMS OF FUNDING FOR ELIGIBLE
INSTITUTIONS AND PROV/DES DIRECT INSTITUTIONAL ASSISTANCE TO A
VARIETY OF INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION, ESPECIALLY THOSE
SERVING LARGE NUMBERS OF LOW INCOME STUDENTS. THE THREE PROGRAMS
INCLUDE: (1) THE STRENGTHENING INSTITUTIONS PROGRAM; (2) THE
STRENGTHENING HISTORICALLY BLACK COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES PROGRAM
(INCLUDING SECTION 326 FOR GRADUATE AND PROFESSIONAL SCHOOLS); AND
(3) THE ENDOWMENT CHALLENGE GRANT PROGRAM.

THE TITLE XII, INSTITUTIONAL AID PORTION OF THE ACT WAS REVISED TO
REFLECT THE OUTLINE DESCRIBED now: TN THE 1986 AMENDKENTS. UNCF,
AMONG OTHERS, PLAYED A SIGNIFICANT ROLE IN WORKING WITH SENATOR
PAUL SIMON AND CHAIRMAN AUGUSTUS F. HAWKINS IN RE-WR/TING THIS LAW
WHICH CONSTITUTES THE ONLY REAL FORM OF INSTITUTIONAL ASSISTANCE
MOST HISCUs RECEIVE FROM THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT. IN OUR VIEW, THE
PART B, BLACK COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY ACT REQUIRES ONLY MINOR
MODIFICATIONS IN ORDER TO FULFILL ITS STATED GOAL OF ENHANCING
AMERICA'S HISTORICALLY BLACK INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION. WE
HAVE BEEN WORKING WITH REPRESENTATIVES OF THE PUBLIC BLACK COLLEGES
AS WELL AS THE BLACK PROFESSIONAL AND GRADUATE SCHOOLS TO DEVELOP
A SERIES OF LEGISLATrVE RECOMMENDATIONS AFFECTING PART B. UNCF
SUPPORTS FOUR rMPORTANT CHANGES IN TITLE III:

* INCREASE THE PART B FLOOR OR MINIMUM GRANT FROM $350,000
TO $500,000 IN ORDER TO PROVIDE A MINIMUM LEVEL OF
FUNDING FOR THE SMALLEST MMUS WHICH ARE ELIGIBLE TO
PARTICIPATE. THIS CHANGE AFFECTS ONLY FIFTEEN PART B
INSTITUTIONS;

ENACTMENT OF THE BUSH ADMINISTRATION PROPOSAL TO
ESTABLISH A "SET-A-SIDE00 OF $20 MILLION FOR HBCUs IN THE
PART C, CHALLENGE (ENDOWMENT) GRANT PROGRAM, WITH A PART
C AUTHORIZATION OF $175 KILLION FOR FY 1993; AND

ADD FIVE NEW GRADUATE/PROFESSIOnAL SCHOOLS TO SECTION 326
OF PART B, INCLUDING THE XAVIER UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF
PHARMACY, THE SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF LAW, THE
TEXAS SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY (THURGOOD MARSHALL) SCHOOL OF
LAW (OR THE SCHOOL OF PHARMACY), THE FLORIDA AIIM

UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF PHARMACEUTICAL SCIENCES, AND THE
NORTH CAROLINA CENTRAL UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF LAW, WITH
PROVISIONS PROTECTING THE EXISTING GRANTS ALREADY MADE
TO TEE ORIGINAL pm SCHOOLS THROUGH FISCAL YEAR 1993 OR
THE LIFE OF THE CURRENT GRANTS. UNCF BELIEVES THAT THE
CURRENT MEANS OF INCREASING THE NUMBER OF PARTICIPATING
GRADUATE INSTITUTIONS BASED ON NEED AND COMMUNITY
CONSENSUS HAS WORKED WELL.
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* ESTABLISHING A STATUTORY MECHANISM TOR BRINGING THE FIVE
NEW GRADUATE INSTITUTIONS INTO SECTION 326 NITEQUI

. WEREDU 401.11 . 411 hi); -14 .

OPPOSE TN3 INTRODUCTION OF A "GENERIC', GRADUATE
AUTHORIZATION BECAUSE THIS WILL CREATE A SUBSTANTIAL
DRAIN ON LIMITED TITLE III FUNDS TO GRADUATE PROGRAMS
WHERE AFRICAN AMERICANS, ALTHOUGH UNDERREPRESENTED, DO
NOT REQUIRE AS MUCH ATTENTION AS IN THE HEALTH
PROFESSIONS, MEDICINE AND LAW.

UNCF ALSO SUPPORTS INCLUSION OF A UNIFORM METHODOLOGY FOR
CALCULATING THE NUMBER oF GRADUATES WHO COMPLETE THEIR STUDIES IN
FOUR/FIVE YEARS, AND WHO ENTER GRADUATE OR PROFESSIONAL SCHOOL
WITHIN A FIVE YEAR oLOOK-BACE00 PERIOD. ADDITIONALLY, UNCF
RECOMMENDS INCLUSION oF SEVERAL NEW AUTHORIZED ACTIVITIES IN
SECTION 323 WHICH WOULD PERMIT INSTITUTIONS TO IMPLEMENT FUND
RAISING AND DEVEL3PMENT, INSTITUTIONAL OUTREACH AND COMMUNITY
OUTREACH ACTIVITIES, ALL OF WHICH CONTRIBUTE TO CARRYING OUT THE
OVERALL PURPOSES oF PART B.

IN PART C, UNCF BELIEVES THAT A 'TAP,' ON THE AMOUNT oF A PART C
GRANT, RELATIVE TO THE SIZE oF THE OVERALL PART C APPROPRIATION IS
NEEDED. THIS IS INTENDED TO PREVENT A FEW SMALL GRANTS FROM
ABSORBING= ENTIRE PART C APPROPRIATION. WE WOULD SUGGEST A $500
THOUSAND CAP WHEN THE APPROPRIATION IS $11 MILLION OR LESS; A $1
MILLION CAP WHEN FUNDING IS ABOVE $11 MILLION BUT BELOW $21
MILLION; AND NO LIMIT WHEN THE APPROPRIATION IS $21 MILLION OR
GREATER. ImALLY, NE THINE REDUCING THE "SIT-0UT0 PERIOD FOR THOSE
INSTITUTIONS WHICH SUCCESSFULLY PURSUED A LARGE MATCHING GRANT ($2
FEDERAL FOR EACH $1 PRIVATELY-RAISED) FROM TEN YEARS TO FIVE YEARS
IS WARRANTED.

WE STRONGLY SUPPORT A PART B AUTHORIZATION oF $150 MILIam RISING
TO $250 KILLION DURING THE FIVE YEAR LIFE OF THE AUTHORIZATION.

UNCF IS PLEASED WITH THE PROGRESS MADE THUS FAR WITH THE REVISED
BLACK COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY ACT PROGRAM ESTABLISHED IN 1986. WE
ENCOURAGE CONGRESS TO FOLLOW THE AGE-OLD PRINCIPLE -- Ir IT AIN'T
BROKE, DON'T FIX IT -- DURING THE CURRENT REAUTHORIZATION PROCESSi

I WOULD PLEASED TO ANSWER ANY QUESTIONS YOU MAY HAVE.

400/66067167
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Chairman JEFFzitsori. Does any member of the panel have any
questions of our witness?

We are going to proceed this way, Dr. Titus. Dr. Grace is not
here, through no fault of his own. We were hoping to move things
along more quickly.

What we are going to do now is take a break for about 15 min-
utes. Eat very quickly. Come back here. Perhaps Dr. Grace will
have arrived, at which point, if it is okay with you, you may come
back to the table, and after he testifies, it may be that there may
be some further discussion at that point. And we will give the stu-
dents an opportunity to come on.

One student is here now. If we were to proceed, we would miss
the information we were hoping to get from the other two or three
students. So, we will take a break right now, and try to come back
in about 15 minutes.

Thank you.
[Recess.]
Chairman JEFFERSON. The hearings are called to order. We will

reconvene, and continue with the panel that we left off with, with
Dr. Marcellus Grace.

I might say, I am informed by our staff counsel that although
Bernard Joiner is not here physically, he has submitted a state-
ment. Under the standing rule that we are operating under, we
will have that statement submitted as a part of the record without
objection from the committee. It is agreed to.

%Ye heard from Dr. Titus before we broke for lunch. Dr. Grace, if
you are prepared, we would like to have your statement at this
time. Our standing rule is to have you summarize in no more than
5 minutes, if you would, what your testimony is. We will take the
entire evidence and make it part of the record. So, if you would.
And after that, if the committee should have any questions, we will
ask those of you at that time.

So, please proceed.
Mr. GRACE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let me apologize for

being the one who is late, although we are only 15 minutes away.
Chairman JEFFERSON. You really were not the one that was late.

We were moving the schedule ahead, so it really is not your fault.
It was the committee's interest in moving ahead that led to that
problem.

STATEMENT OF MARCELLUS GRACE, PAST PRESIDENT, ASSOCIA-
TION OF MINORITY HEALTH PROFESSIONS SCHOOLS, DEAN,
COLLEGE OF PHARMACY, XAVIER UNIVERSITY, NEW ORLE-
ANS, LOUISIANA

Mr. GRACE. Well, let me thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members
of the committee, to have an opportunity today to represent the As-
sociation of MinoriV Health Professions Schools that we profes-
sionally call ANDIM, concerning the Higher Education Act. I am
Dr. Marcellus Grace, the Dean of the College of Pharmacy at
Xavier University, which is about 10 minutes by car from here,
and a past president of this Association.

Our Association is comprised of the eight historically black
health professions schools. I think most of the panel members are

1 f; t;
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familiar with themthe Meharry Medical Coilege and School of
Dentistry, the Charles Drew University School of Science and Med-
icine in Los Angeles, the Morehouse School of Medicine in Atlanta,
Florida A&M iJniversity College of Pharmacy in Tallahassee,
Texas Southern University College of Pharmacy and Health Sci-
ence in Houston, the Xavier University College of Pharmacy here
in New Orleans, Tuskegee University School of Veterinary Medi-
cine. These eight institutions combined have trained 40 percent of
the Nation's black physicians, 40 percent of the Nation's black den-
tists, over 50 percent of the Nation's black pharmacists, and incred-
ibly over 75 percent of the Nation's black veterinarians.

We are very proud of the accomplishments of our institutions, es-
pecially given the significant challenges that we have overcome
throughout our existence. Our schools are considered by many to
be a national resource. Only i ocently has the Federal commitment
to supporting these institutions and the students who attend them
become an important issue.

The fact that blacks and other disadvantaged minorities do not
enjoy the same health status as other Americans has never been a
secret, but these problems have not been well documented. A
breakthrough in this dearth of data was in 1985 when the Secre-
tary of Health, at that time, produced the so-called Secretary's
Task Force Report on Black and Minority Health. Let me just
share a few startling statistics that were revealed in that report:

Life expectancy of blacks was found to be nearly 6 years less
than that of whites;

Among blacks, infant mortality occurs at a rate of almost 20 per
1,000 live births, twice that of whites;

Blacks suffer disproportionately higher rates of cancer, cardio-
vascular disease and stroke, chemical dependency, diabetes, homi-
cide and accidents; and,

Incredibly, each year almost 60,000 excess deaths occur among
blacks when compared to whites.

Unfortunately since this historic report by the Secretary not
much has improved. In fact, things have worsened. For example,
according to a recent report by the National Center for Health Sta-
tistics, black life expectancy has decreased from 69.7 percent in
1984, to 69.2 percent in 1988. And AIDS, at that time we did not
know much about it, which was not even mentioned in the report.
It is a leading cause of death and disproportionately affects blacks
and other minoritiesminorities specifically who constitute 24 per-
cent of the population, but 45 percent of the AIDS victims.

Let me comment specifically, now, on the 1986 Higher Education
Act reauthorization. In 1986 Congress reauthorized the Higher
Education Act, which includes Title III, a program that supports
Historically Black Colleges and Universities. Under Part B, Swtion
326 of the act, funding was provided for five independent HBCU
professional or graduate schools. Four of these schools just hap-
pened to be AMHPS institutions, specifically Morehouse S'chool of
Medicine, Meharry Medical College, Tuskegee University School of
Veterinary Medicine, and the Charles R. Drew University School of
Medicine and Science. The purpope of this funding was to assist
graduate HBCUs in establishing and strengthening their physical
plants, development offices, and so forth.
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Let me skip ahead and comment that this legislation was intro-
duced in the last Congress to add five, or there has been legislation
introduced through an amendment to add five new qualified eligi-
ble graduate and professional schools. These five institutions are
Florida A&M College of Pharmacy, Xavier University College of
Pharmacy, the North Carolina Central University School of Law,
the Southern University School of Law, and the Texas Southern
University College of Pharmacy, or the School of Law. The Associa-
tion of Minority Health Professions Schools has worked with the
National Association for Equal Opportunity, the United Negro Col-
lege Fund, and the Office for Advancement of Public Black Col-
leges, and agrees with these organizations that there is a need to
include additional eligible institutions in the graduate portion of
Title III, Part B, Section 326 of the Higher Education Act.

AMHPS has adopted principles of participation, though, that
state that the addition of new institutions to the program should
not jeopardize the funding that exists for current and participating
schools. In this way, no institution will be forced to reduce this
budget, or cancel obligations already incurred. We are firm to hold
the position, and I want to make these two important points, both
in the written statement and in my oral testimony this afternoon.

1. Funding for the original five schools should be held harmless
at a level that insures a continuous availability of existing funding
for these schools. This would insure that the original five schools
would be able to continue their obligations, and count on these re-
sources without the threat of losing their program only because a
number of additional schools have become eligible.

2. The Education Secretary should not, I repeat, should not be
given the broad discretion to make additional schools elieble. Just
in 1986 Congress eliminated generic secretary discretion because of
the great risk of spreading modest Title III funds across too many
institutions, limiting their ability to reduce the under representa-
tion of blacks in the health and medical professions.

It is essential that the Section 326 program be expanded to in-
clude other eligible schools to further enhance the quality of educa-
tion at these schools. This should be accomplished during consider-
ation of the act reauthorization. The Xavier University College of
Pharmacy currently does not receive these funds. One of the limit-
ing factors in expanding the pharmacy program at Xavier is the
lack of resources, like all the other institutions that we represent.

Title III graduate funding will allow the college the opportunity
to establish its own development offices. This will facilitate the de-
velopment of the infrastructure that will be vital to raising and
maintaining permanent endowment support for our program. The
resources of Title III will also provide significant assistance in en-
couraging other extramural organizations to support the biomedi-
cal research equipment and student support needed in the competi-
tive health science program. For Xavier to continue its quest for
academic and research excellence, Title III funding would serve as
a springboard to further financial stability. Finally, Title III will
allow Xavier to increase its enrollment. There is a documented
need for more pharmacists in the State of Louisiana and other
areas of the South.
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Mr. Chairman, thank you for the opportunity today to present
my own personal views and recommendations of the Association of
the Minority Health Professions Schools. We also want to thank
you for your support that the community has demonstrated to
problems focused upon by our Association.

I would be pleased now to respond to any questions that you or
the panel may have.

[The prepared statement of Marcellus Grace follows:]
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Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, thank you for the

opportunity to receive testimony from the Association of Minority

Health Professions Schools (AMHPS), concerning the Higher Education

Act. I am Dr. Marcellus Grace, the Dean of the College of Pharmacy

at Xavier University of Louisiana.

AIMI1112=11114112151111
Our Association is comprised of 8 historically black health

professions schools. They are the Meharry Medical College's

Schools of Medicine and Dentistry, in Nashville, TN; the Charles

R. Drew University of Medicine and Science in Los Angeles, CA; the

Morehouse School of Medicine in Atlanta, GA; the Florida AiM

University College of Pharmacy in Tallahassee, Fl; the Texas

Southern University College of Pharmacy and Health Sciences in

Houston, TX; the Xavier University of Louisiana College of

Pharmacy in New Orleans, LA; and the Tuskegee University School of

Veterinary Medicine in Tuskegee, AL. These institutions have

trained 40% of the nation's black physicians, 40% of the nation's

black dentists, 50% of the nation's black pharmacists, and 75% of

the nation's black veterinarians. Mr. Chairman, we are very proud

of the accomplishments of our institutions, especially given the

significant challenges that we have overcome throughout our

existence. Our schools are considered by many to be a national

resource. Only recently has the federal commitment to supporting

these institutions and the students who attend them become an

important issue.

1
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In addition a disproportionate share of doctorates in

Biomedical and other sciences have been awarded by these'schools.

For example, since 1975 over 10% of all doctorates in the

Biomedical Sciences awarded to Blacks have been awarded by

Meharry's School of Graduate Studies. All three of the pharmacy

schools of the Association are now offering the Pharm.D. degree.

EIRAICRITARY!S Tan NOM OUTLIMBB_BIALTB_STATUS DISTABITIES

The significance of institutions that have a student body that

is represeted by more than 50% minorities is dramatic in that data

clearly show that blacks and other minorities are more likely to

practice in underserved communities, more likely to care for other

minorities and more likely to accept patients who are Medicaid

recipients or otherwise poorer than the general population.

Mr. Chairman, the fact that blacks and other disadvantaged

minorities do not enjoy the same health status as other Americans

has never been a secret but these problems have not been well

documented. A breakthrough in this dearth of data was the mama

fiecretary'S ink Z2E21 ESA= 2D AlAcis And Minority MAIM The

Secretary's Task Force Report was among the first comprehensive

documentation that there indeed was and is a significant health

status disparity among blacks and other minorities as compared to

the general population of the U.S. Among the more sobering facts

revealed by the report were:

2
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Life expectancy of blacks is nearly 6 years lees than that of

whites;

o Among blacks, infant mortality occurs at a rate of almost 20

per 1,000 live births, twice that of whites;

o Blacks suffer disproportionately higher rates of cancer,

cardio-vascular disease and stroke, chemical dependency,

diabetes, homicide and accidents; and

Each year almost 60,000 excess deaths occur among blacks when

compared to whites.

Unfortunately since this historic report by the Secretary in

1985, things have not improved but worsened. For example,

according to a recent report from the National Center for Health

Statistics, Black life expectancy has decreased from 69.7 in 1984

to 69.2 in 19881 And AIDS, which was not even mentioned in the

1985 report is now a leading cause of death and disproportionately

affects blacks and other minorities - minorities who constitute 24%

of the population but 45% of the AIDS victims.

The Association is deeply troubled by these data and ham been

working since the issuance of the report to implement policy

activities that address the disparities outlined in the report.

3
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For a long time our schools have struggled against terrific

odds to survive. To have a positive impact on the health status of

blacks and other minorities, these institutions must thrive. The

support of your committee in terms of federal resources for

programs impacting our students and our institutions has had and

will continue to have a significant impact. Programs supporting

these schools are critical to the existence of our institutions.

1986 HIGHER EDUCATION MT REAUTIMISATION ESTABLISHES NW mom

(thr

In 1986 Congress reauthorized the Higher Education Act which

includes the Title III program at supports historically black

colleges and universities. Under Part B, Section 326 of the Act,

funding was provided for five independent HBCU Professional or

Graduate programs, four of which are members of AMHPS institutions

(Morehouse School of Medicine, Meharry Medical College, Tuskegee

University School of Veterinary Medicine, and the Charles R. Drew

University of Medicine and Science, in addition to Atlanta

University). The purpose of.this funding is to assist graduate

'IBMs in establishing and strengthening their physical plants,

development offices, endowments, academic resources and student

services. AMHPS institutions have used these federal funds for all

of the recommended activities under the program including

purchasing scientific laboratory equipment, constructing education

facilities, enhancing faculty development and programs in the basic

medical sciences, expanding curriculum and academic support systems

and improving research capabilities and maintaining an

4
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institutional endowment.

This Graduate program is a response to a nationally recognized

problem - the severe underrepresentation of blacks and other

minorities in the health professions. Blacks constitute 12% of the

population but less than 3% of the nation's physicians, dentists,

pharmacists and veterinarians. In addition, only 1.8% of the

faculty in medical schools in the nation are black and less than 3%

are underrepresented minorities. Thus role models are rare. There

is a national concern for the health status of blacks and other

minorities which is far worse than the health status for the

general population. AMHPS schools, with Title III funding,

successfully provide quality health education and care to the

nation's underserved. congress should be very proud of this

program. It has been a tremendous success.

MPS SMOLA UTILISE TITLE III GRADUATE FUNDING

Among the institutions receiving support is the Morehouse

School of Medicine. As a direct result of support from this

section and its predecessors, Morehouse has been able to make great

strides. Founded in 1975 as the first predominantly black medical

school to open in the 20th Century, Morehouse was the first school

to receive funding under this program (in 1982). With the

assistance provided to Morehouse under Section 326, Morehouse has

been able to accomplish the following:

5
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o Significant development of faculty and programs in the basic

medical sciences, and early progress tovard development of our

faculty and programs in the clinical medical sciences.

o Expansion of the medical curriculum and academic support

systom.

o Enhancement of research capability. Morehouse's faculty has

successfully competed for research grants from the NIH, NSF,

and other sources.

o Established a preventive medical/public health residency

program, and a family practice residency program.

o Early development of educational programs designed to prevent

alcohol and drug abuse, cardiovascular diseases, AIDS, teenage

pregnancy, cancer and other preventable conditions.

Established continuing medical education programs for

practicing physicians.

In addition, Morehouse graduates have a very high pass rate on

the National Board of Medical Examiners exam and have received

appointments in residency programs at a number of the nation's

oldest and most prestigious university-affiliated hospitals. 75%

of Morehouse graduates are doing post-graduate training in primary

6
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care fields and 704 of Morehouse graduates are practicing in

medically underserved inner cities and rural areas.

Section 326 is a particularly good investment for the nation.

Without Section 326 funding, these accomplishments would not have

occurred. All five of the existing section 326 schools have

developed strong community outreach programs to improve the

applicant pool. These programs extend from the Head Start program

at Drew to the Summer Enrichment program for faculty at Meharry.

LIIIIMIAT/COLIIMMUSID-ISLIMAJII/112122141

Legislation was introduced In the last Congress to add five

new qualified eligible graduate.and professional schools to the

program. Those five institutions are Florida PAIM University

College of Pharmacy, Xavier University College of Pharmacy, the

North Carolina Central University School of Law, the Southern

University School of Law and the Texas Southern University College

of Pharmacy.

The Association of Minority Health Professions Schools has

worked with the National Association for Equal Opportunity in

Higher Education (NATEO), the United Negro College Fund (UNCF), and

the Office of the Advancement of Public Slack Collmges (OAPBC), and

agrees with these organizations that there is a need to include

additional eligible institutions in the graduate portion of Title

III, Part IS, Section 326 of the Higher Education Act.

7
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AIMS has adopted principles of participation that state that

the addition 0 new institutions to the program should not

jeopardise the funding that xists for currently participating

schools. In this way, no institution would be forced to reduce its

budget or cancel obligations already incurred. We also firmly hold

the position that:

(1) Funding for the original 5 schools be held harmless at a level

that insures the continuous availability of existing funding

for these schools. This would insure that the original 5

schools would be able to continue their obligations and count

on these resources without the threat of losing their program

only because a number of additional schools have become

eligible.

(2) The Education Secretary should not be given the broad

discretion to make additional schools eligible. Just in 1986,

Congress eliminated generic Secretarial discretion because of

the great risk of spreading modest Title III funds across too

many institutions - limiting their ability to reduce the

underrepresentation of blacks in the health and medical

professions.

1 I 1 I . 4 d

It is essential that the section 326 program be expanded to

include other eligible schools to further nhance the quality of

education at those schools as well. This should be accomplished

8
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during consideration of the Higher Education Act Reauthorization.

The Xavier University College of Pharmacy currently does not

receive Section 326 Title /II funds. One of the limiting factors

in expanding the pharmacy program at Xavier is the lack of

resources. Title III Graduate funding will allow the College the

opportunity to establish its own development office. This will

facilitate the development of the infrastructure that will be vital

to raising and maintaining permanent endowment support for the

program. The resources of Title III will also provide significant

assistance in encouraging other extramural organizations to support

the biomedical research equipment and student support needed in a

competitive health sciences program. For Xavier to continue its

quest for academic and research excellence, Title III funding would

serve as a springboard to future financial stability. Finally,

Title III funding will allow Xavier to increase its enrollment.

There is a documented need for more pharmacilts in the State of

Louisiana and in other areas of the South.

Mr. Chairman, thank you for the opportunity to present the

views and recommendations of the Association of Minority Health

Professions Schools. Also, we appreciate the support your

committee has demonstrated to the problems focused upon by our

Association. I would be pleased to respond to any questions you

may have.

9
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Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, Dr. Grace. Does any member
of the committee have a question of Dr. Grace or Dr. Titus?

Mr. WASHINGTON. I have one, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman JEFFERSON. Mr. Washington.
Mr. WASHINGTON. Dr. Grace, I would like to discuss with you the

problem with respect to Title III funding, inasmuch as Texas
Southern University has two professional schools, sort of like a
person using a knife to put a king and a queen in check, and to
make them use between them. As you mi4ht suspect, if that occurs,
since I am a graduate of the Law School, it may be very well to the
detriment of the Pharmacy School. But, I am not sure we have to
choose between the two. What is the rationale that supports one or
the other, and not both?

Mr. GRACE. Well, wIssn this was being discussed with three
groups that I mentioned in my report, this was some 2 years ago.
The feeling at the time was that the president should make the
call. That it would be unfair because the issue in that sense is
unique, and that it is one of the only institutions that has poten-
tially two new member schools because we focus on the profession
of law and pharmacy that may be added. Medicine was pretty well
taken care of already with the other schools, the other five schools.
So, that pretty much was a judgment call made by the president at
that time.

That could be influenced, I suspect, Congressman, by either
members of your panel, conversations, perhaps with the president,
and we respected, though, his choice. Theoretically, the way this
would work, or could work, he could choose to rotate it. Maybe the
first 3 or 4 years, or something, would be the School of Law. And
then, the next cycle of the grant, I guess it is a 5 year cycle, could
be pharmacy.

Mr. WASIMIGTON. Of course, I could make that decision for him
by excluding one.

Mr. Glue-. Yes, of course, I would be tempted to be biased being
that I am a pharmacist, and as I mentioned, I have known Dean
Patrick Wells for a long, long time since I was a student. Your cur-
rent depv., Henry Lewis, was formerly an associate dean at Florida
A&M. I know him real well. We do not know the Law School
people at all. So, I guess if you press me, it could very well be. You
all have the power to maybebut, as I said, I do not want to seem
like I am ducg the question. But, we really did respect the presi-
dent at that time. That was his decision. He said that he was to
make that decision on the local issue because, naturally, we felt
that Patrick Wells, who was the dean at the time, that it would all
go to pharmacy, but it did not. But then, the law influenced, espe-
cially the people who had come from the law schools at North
Carolina and 'Southern were very vocal that the law school should
be included.

Mr. WASHINGTON. I guess what it boils down to is the determina-
tion as to which is in the greatest need and makes the most signifi-
cant contribution to the community, and which services areas that
are yet unserved by the larger institutions in the same community,
do you not think?

Mr. GRA cs. That is cot rect. I am not
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Mr. WASHINGTON. Are those guidelines upon which to make that
decision?

Mr. GRACE. I would think so. I must be honest. I am not quite as
familiar with the impact of a black attorney. I suspect, though,
there are a lot of, certainly the poverty law programs that are in
this country, I must confess some degree of ignorance, though, in
terms of the impact. But, I think we all know that the health pro-
fessions peace, that like it or not, it ought not to be that four black
pharmacist schools out of 75 still train 50 percent of all black phar-
macists. The fact is a national disgrace. There are some 18 1)lack
pharmacist schools this year that did not have a black student. So,
I would almost argue that maybe if we were pressed, that perhaps
the pharmacist schools may, and certainly in rural parts of Texas,
may have a greater impact in terms of expanding their training
pro .grams because the people down in Austin are really not doing a
good job in terms of either hispanic or black pharmacist students.
'Mat I know for a fact.

Mr. WASHINGTON. Thank you, sir. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman JEFFERSON. May I ask you, Dr. Grace, if you have a

recommendation as to what, if enything, we should do within the
context of the act to more directly, more dramatically, address
these outstanding health issues that you have delineated, that we
are not doing now under the act. I do not know what the thrust
might be, or what direction you would suggest, or whether you are
even prepared at this moment to suggest one, but I would like to
know that what we are doing, as we are authorized to do, is rele-
vant to addressing the life expectancy problem, infant mortality,
and higher death rates, and all the rest. These outstanding ques-
tions, if there is some way we can better focus our efforts to get
after these issues, I would like to know about it.

Mr. GRACE. Well, I think, as part of my testimony, it is probably
a national disgrace that up until the early seventies, Meharry Med-
ical College alone had trained almost half of the black doctors in
this country. We do know, whether we like it or not, the reality is
that most black health professionals tend to take care of minority
patients. The very survival, you must have seen the front page of
1JSA Today, approximately 2 weeks ago, the President of Meharry,
the whole half page, it is a national issue of Meharry's very surviv-
al that has to do with them merging the hospitals and all that busi-
ness in Nashville. Their hospital, financially, might put Meharu
out of business if they cannot get involved in Nashville General.

So, the very survival of our institutions has a direct impact. Data
does show that black pharmacists tend tolet's take Mr. Bannein's
pharmacy across the street from St. Bernard project. Now, why is
it K&B will not put a pharmacy there? The reason is they are just
not going to invest resources with all the drugs. So, in our town,
there are instances where probably no other pharmacists would
practice across the street from a housing project, but Mr. Bannem
has been there since the 1940's. He is a 1939 graduate from Xavier.

So, the real significance here is to hav e these firms, because of
the Title III infrastructure development, there is enough flexibility
in this funding to build the infrastructure. Part of what a lot of us
have to do as deans is spend a lot of time in Washinicton, as you
know. We have to really spend most of our time not being academ-

1 S
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ic administrators, but fundraisers. Eighty percent of my own per-
sonal time is spent fundraising for the College of Pharmacy. I have
an associate dean who runs the academic programs.

But, funds that could come because of the flexibility of these
funds. A lot of the NIH funds, we are doing reasonably well there.
But, they are directed. You are doing specific research on cancer,
AIDS, or whatever. But, the flexibility they give, especially the de-
velopment part of it at a lot of the schools. I know at Drew they
put together a learning resource center where they could use more
video tapes in teaching their medical students.

Chairman JEFFERSON. So, you are arguing for more flexibility?
Mr. GRACE. Yes, and that is the good part about the Title III

funds. Those funds are designated to build and strenehen the
basics. As you know, our problem with our schools is the basics, the
physical plant. We are doing reasonably well in getting some good
faculty 'in recent years. But, when you look at the widiovisual sup-
port that you neecl, you need an auf:liovisual technician. For exam-
ple, you are familiar with the Centers for Excellence Grant that we
have gotten funded over the last 3 years. We were able to hire an
audiovisual technician for a mere, I think his salary was about
$26,000. But, for the last 3 years now we have faculty members
who ate willing to use more videotapes because he comes in, and
he videotapes a lot of their lectures. So, the students can go and
watch those lectures. You know, you can play it over as many
times as you want. Prior to that grant, we could not have afforded
to have had a simple $26,000 a year audiovisual technician, which
is not very much money. And we were able to get some equipment,
the camera, and buy the tapes.

So, I give that as an anecdotal very inexpensive example of the
significant impact. Imagine my students now can go and have a li-
brary of all of their professor's lectures. So, for $26,000, a few
tapes, and I guess the camera may have been $10,000. Less than
$50,000 a year, that impacted over the last 3 years. So, these are
the kinds of things that I know several of my colleagues have used
these funds for, in order to develop the teaching support.

I am not suggesting you give us funds so that we can do what-
ever we want to do. But, in those broader guidelines, that these
funds could be used in areas such as development; having the sup-
port mechanism for me to have some additional staff to go and do
fundraising; to be able to afford the postage to do the mailings or
to pay to travel for a development officer.

As you know, at Xavier, as large as we are, it is all relative. We
have 3,000 students, but we only have three professionals in our
whole campus that are directly involved in fundraisingMr. Jupi-
ter and his staff of two professionals. You know, there are schools,
and I will not name any, that have staffs of 30 and 40 people who
do nothing but raise money. That is why we only have three en-
dowed chairs at Xavier University. We are 63 years oldthree en-
dowed chairs. Two of those we just got 2 years ago.

Chairman JEFFERSON. Mr. Hayes?
Mr. HAYES. I just want to make a comment, and maybe direct a

question to Dr. Titus. I remember in your testimony that we had
over a year ago, you pointed out clearly that when this program to
help the institutions of higher learning first went into effect, 75

r
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percent of the funds that were appropriated for student aid were
supposed to be in the form of grants, Pell Grants. Somewhere it got
switched where the reverse happened. Seventy-five percent, almost,
went into student loans, guaranteed student loan programs, and
the other 25 percent or less in grants.

You have confirmed that by your statements. You said in your
statement that the number of student borrowers in the Guaranteed
Student Loan program has almost doubled from 11,000 in 1982 and
1983, to almost 22,000 in 1988 and 1989. Eight percent of all UNCF
students receive guaranteed loans, while in 1987-88 more than one-
half of all UNCF students receive Stafford loans.

I run into people, professionals, today who took out loans, who
are having now to repay those loans. The cost of repaying those
loans trickles down, sometimes, if you are a doctor to the patient,
in terms of costa, and the cost of drugs, and this kind of stuff. If
you are a lawyer, the fees go up. You are a lawyer, too. I am not
blaming you, but I am just telling you what reality is. This is
passed on to pay back that loan.

I think it is a great disparity. We can afford to forgive some of
our foreign debts, almost $7 million dollars to Egypt, and I don't
know how much to Poland. We can dish out money every year to
Israel and some of the other countries. Yet, we send a bill hound
out after some of these students, who should have been given
grants in the first place, in order to repay a loan.

[Applause.]
Somewhere along the line, I think we ought to be moving in the

direction of changing this kind of program, as you suggest, where
they become entitlement grants instead of student loans, which
even some of the banks do not want to underwrite anymore, you
know. So, I just wanted to know your reaction. Am I on the wrong
track?

Mr. Trrus. I think you are on the right track. I thought you were
going to ask a question. But, the only thing I can say is that, even
with more emphasis, those statistics that were quoted were 1987-
88. This is 1991.

Mr. HAYES. That is my question. Do you not think it is worse
today than it was then?

Mr. Trrus. Certainly. You know, every time we have a gradua-
tion, I can look at 80 to 90 to 100 students who will march across
that stage with almost 90 percent of them owing a debt that they
have to start paying on, and pay the rest of their lives because
money has been loaned to students who do not have the economic
base to start paying it.

Mr. HAYES. We give $30 billion, you know, to bail out the savingv
and loans. They are coming back for another cup, I thi k, in Sep-
tember. Of course, me and Craig are going to be against it, right
Craig?

Mr. WASHINGTON. Yes.
Mr. HAYES. Okay.
Chairman JEFFERSON. Is there another question of this panel? If

not, we will bring on the last panel, Panel Five. Thank you very
much for your testimony.
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Finally, we will get the ultimate consumers of all of this, the stu-
dentsbin Charles Brown, Mr. David Bell, and Mr. McArthur
Clarke. Our students are in the wings waiting. Here they come.

Mr. Brown is here and Mr. Bell. They may be getting together on
their testimony out there.

Do either one of you live in my district? That is what I want to
know before you start. You do not have ambitions about running
for office?

Mr. HAIM. I have another question before you ask them. Are
they registered voters?

Mr. BROWN. YeS, sir.
Mr. Hayes. All right.
Chairman JUTERSON. I wanted to get right to the point, though,

Mr. Hayes. We have another student who may join us. It has been
a long day. It has been a very productive day, very good testimony.
I am sure you will add to the splendid record that has been made
so far.

So, we would like the two of you to testify. We have been asking
witneases to keep their testimony to 5 minutes, and to summarize,
in effect, what they have as written statements. Your whole state-
ment will be submitted to the record, so no fear of not having your
words recorded and kept, reviewed, and used by the committee.
But, we just want to move it along.

So, Mr. Brown, if you would proceed, then Mr. Bell, and after
that, we will ask questions such as the panel may have.

STATEMENT OF CHARLES BROWN, PRESIDENT, STUDENT GOV-
2RNMENT ASSOCIATION, XAVIER UNIVERSITY, NEW ORLEANS,
LOUISIANA

Mr. BROWN. Good evening, Mr. Chairman and membera of the
subcommittee. I would first like to take this opportunity to thank
Congressman Jefferson and the subcommittee to invite me to testi-
fy on matters concerning HBCUs and reauthorization of the
Higher Education Act.

My name is Charles Brown, and I am classified as a junior at
Xavier University. I am presently president of the Student Govern-
ment Association which represents over 8,000 students enrolled at
Xavier. My purpose today is to discuss Federal financial aid, and
its impact on HIBICUs, and offer some views from the students' per-
spective.

Today, black colleges and universities are continuing to produce
the greater percentages of the black baccalaureate degrees. This is
so important due to the conducive close knit atmosphere we enjoy
at HBCUs. But, for the most part, such success would be impossible
if it were not for the Federal student financial aid, more specifical-
ly Title IV of the Higher Education Act. The majority of these in-
stitutions whose percentage of students are on Federal student aid
ranges from 75 percent to 90 percent of the undergraduate popula-
tion. Some black institutions have had 1 year enrollment increases
of 16 percent. The 41 members of the United Negro College Fund
have senior classes rise an average of 4 percent a year for the past
4 years.

I 4
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Therefore, with this information at hand, minority access to Fed-
eral student aid is of grave concern. I would first like to focus on
Title IV, a shift in student aid policy in which loans have replaced= as a major source of student aid. According to the College

in the mid 1970's, about 76 percent of Federal student aid
was awarded in grants, 20 percent in loans, and three percent in
work study. In the 1987 academic year about 67 percent of Federal
student aid was awarded in loans, 29 percent in grants, and three
percent in work study. Therefore, students who are poor, and un-
derprivileged, and under educated through the secondary schools,
are left to incur considerable debt to attend college. Default rates
have grown as a result of this.

Some students fmd this ordeal unacceptable basically because
minority students for whom the aid was intended, it really does not
help. These students desire to attend HBCUs because of ita success-
ful track record in educating students to become productive citizens
despite discrimination and cultural biases they have faced. Never-
theless, as a result of possible enormous debts, many students
change their decision to pursue a secondary education.

The present system of student financial aid does not effectively
reach out to minority students. Rather, it reaches deep into their
pockets only to fmd a large sum of debt, bad credit ratings, and a
soaring default rate. In order for the aid system to better serve stu-
dents of HBCUs, a balance between grants and loans must be
achieved.

Through a revised need test, the Guaranteed Student Loan and
other related loans should be made of a greater option for middle
income studenta, whereas the focus is primarily upon lower income
students today. Furthermore, the majority of financial aid packets
for middle income students should consist of loans. For lower
income, the majority of the packet should be grants.

There is also need for increased Federal funding for Supplemen-
tal Education Opportunity Grants, Perkins loans, and College
Work Study. These forms of aid have not increased with inflation,
and must respond to the added increase of enrollment and the tui-
tion increases that we face at HBCUs. Between 1981 and 1991 fund-
ing for SEOG programs declined by 11.9 percent. Funds for College
Work Study dropped by 32.3 percent, and Perkins loans appropria-
tions plunged about 67.5 percent.

Again, the system of need testing must be revised so that fman-
cial aid is accessible, and is eaey for families tc obtain. There
should be a better network than the present one for low income
students who work to assist families t be assessed under 70 per-
cent of his earnings for the preceding year. There happens to be
one student at Xavier who works for Ins family. He was assessed
this amount of his earnings. He did not have that money anymore.
So, that is a flaw in the system that needs to be looked at. It is
unrealistic to expect a student in a situation to contribute that per-
centage to his education. There is an attached form in the back
that further explains that.

Mr. Chairman, there is much work to be done in order to lower
these default rates on GSle, balanced loan grant assistance, and
improvement in order to access and progress. I hope that my testi-
mony will have substantive effects on the reauthorization of the
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Higher Education Act, and its impact on HBCUs. I urge the sub-
committee to continue support of the HEA authorized programs
which provide special services such as tutoring, counseling to disad-
vantaged students, including minorities, to improve their access
and success in post-secondary education. These programs, Student
Support Services, Upward Bound, Talent Search, Education Oppor-
tunity Centers, and the Ronald E. McNair Post Baccalaureate
Achievement, have had a positive effect upon preparedness to
enter and graduate from HBMs.

This concludes my testimony, Mr. Chairman and members of the
subcommittee. Once again, I thank you for the opportunity to testi-
fy. I will be happy to answer any questions you may have.

Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, Mr. Brown.
Mr. Bell?

STATEMENT OF DAVID BELL, PRESIDENT, STUDENT GOVERN-
MENT ASSOCIATION, SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLE-
ANS, NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA

Mr. BELL I also would like to thank Congressman Jefferson and
this subcommittee for this opportunity to speak.

My name is David Bell, and I am the Student Government Asso-
ciation president for Southern University at New Orleans. I will
try to s ..mmarize this as much as I can. I will try not to read until
I have to.

When I graduated from high school I did not know anything
about finacial aid. I didn't think I was ready for college. I didn't
know where to turn. I was staying with my grandmother. She
didn't know about financial aid. She was 72 at the time. I took the
ASVAB test, and decided that I would just go into the military.

I was fortunate in that when I went to sign up, there was a 131ack
recruiter there who saw my scores, and told me about college and
about the Pell Grant. He told me, "If I were you, I would kind of go
that way." So, I took his advice. We had a junior college in town. I
went over to the junior college, and tried to enroll. She told me the
deadline date had passed for a Pell Grant. I would have to pay
myself. I didn't have the money to pay, but I said, "No problem." I
had a lawnmower. It was hot in Florida. I am from Florida. I
mowed some grass, and got the money, and paid for my college.

I stayed there for my first year. I really was not satisfied with it.
I wanted to go to a larger university. So, I filled out my Pell Grant
form. They sent it back to me to revise it and correct it. I filled it
out, and they sent it back again. And fmally, we got it right. I was
accepted at Southern at New Orleans. I came up here. I enrolled in
school. It is a commuter campus. So, there was a problem with
housing. I had to save money to pay for housing. The Pell Grant
did not cover that.

When I received my letter saying that I would receive a Pell
Grant, I was happy, because I knew my school would be paid for. I
moved up here. I didn't have any family. I decided to go to school. I
went to pay my fees that day and register, and my Pell Grant is
$225. Now, out of state tuition was $1,500. So, it did not work out
too well. But, I had some money saved up. I got it. I took on two
strange roommates. They were strange. We lived together for the
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first year, and we made it all right. If one person had a dollar, ev-
erybody had a dollar. That is what made us make it. We ate a lot
of peanut butter sandwiches, and we made it.

But, without any question, investment in education is one of the
most important investments any government can make. We ask
you, if we are tomorrow, hopefully we will be where you are one
day.

In response to your requwit, I am pleased to offer the following
comments as they relate to reauthorization of the Higher Educa-
tion Act. I hope you consider them.

I think we should establish an early intervention program before
the students get to college. Perhaps the government can provide
money for that. Teach them counseling. Get their grandparents,
parents, or whoever it may be involved in the process, and show
them how to fill out the Federal financial aid packets, and that
sort of thing.

I think the Pell Grant formula needs to be readjusted and rede-
termined. Consideration should be given to the maximum grant
amount. I am fully in support of the recommendation that allows
at least $2,500 for living expenses, and 26 percent of tuition. This
formula should be adjusted annually based on the consumer price
index, which is another plus. A new formula would also address
the needs of low income Pell Grant recipients, while also aiding to
the needs of students who pay higher educational expenses.

A Guaranteed Student Loan program, or GSL program, as you
know it, was designed to meet the needs of the middle class. A GSL
is important because it gives the students a choice to access to dif-
ferent universities. However, there are ways you need to combat
default and such other problems. I think that we should make the
loans only 80 percent guaranteed. That would force the banks that
are lending the money to look and pay a more careful scrutiny to
who they are lending the money to, and also allow the universities
some input. I was speakil g with our fmancial aid supervisor. She
said that one of the problems is that they would have to give loans
to people that they knew would not pay them back because the
bank would authorize the money. They didn't have any say so in
that.

Other things to consider are the Family Support Act of 1988,
which is a welfare reform law for recipients of AFDC. It contains
an educational clause in it. Why do we not make use of this act to
prepare minority and disenfranchised youths for college? Establish
remedial programs, prep courses, mentors, tutors, the list can go on
and on and on.

I am also in support of a federally supportea prepaid tuition pro-
gram, allowing parents or families to lock in on the price of today's
education for tomorrow's technology.

S
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In conclusion, the Federal financial aid program needs to be re-
visited and revised. Students need adequate and professional coun-
seling before, as well as while enrolled in college. The Pell Grant
formula needs to be revised. The GSL program is important, but it
also has flaws that must be addressed. Special attention needs to be
focused upon minority and disenfranchised students.

I hope you all will consider my recommendations. I thank you
for listening.

[The prepared statement of David Bell followsl
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I would like to first thank Congressman William J. lefferson

and the Subcommittee for this opportunity to speak on the

reauthorization of the Higher Education Act. My name is David L.

Bell, aud I am the Student Government Association President of

Southern university at New Orleans.

As a senior in high school, I knew nothing of Financial Aid.

Everyone was yelling, "fill out your University application

packets, apply early to guarantee your acceptance, visit the

campus, etc.", but not once did I hear anyone say, "and don't

forget about that Pell Grant Application." And if they had, it

wouldn't have made much of a difference, because no one had

explained to me what a Pell Grant was. So instead I took the

ASVAB. And scored well on it. Recruiters were taking me to

lunch, calling my house, giving me tours of the military base,

and one even picked me up fro& school and gave me a ride home.

Wow!!l those are some hard workers. I still wonder if they get

paid on commission. The Air Force seemed like a logical choice,

and it was. It was there that a Black recruiter looked over my

ASVAB scores and took the time to tell me about college. It was

also there that I learned about the Pell Grant and what it meant

not only to myself, but to the many others in my same

predicament.

Needless to say, it was too late to apply to any major

college or university. But I IS lucky enough to have a junior

college in town. / enrolled in Pensacola.Junior College.

The Financial Aid Officer explained to me that the deadline

for receiving a grant had passed and / would have to pay the
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tuition out of my own pocket. I thought, "No problem", right?

Wrongi there were tuition, books, lab fees, parking fees, the

ACT, late registration, and so forth. I thought the list would

never end. I had no money in my checking account or y savings

account, two broke parents, and a neighborhood with grass that

needed to be mowed. Regardless of these circumstances, I became

a college student. Unfortunately, I was dissatisfied with the

college of y choice, it just didn't motivate me. It was time

for a transfer.

I filled out my Pell Grant forms and my application packets

early this time. I was accepted by Southern University at New

Orleans and also received a Pell Grant. Hy next step was to

visit the campus; and I did, only to find out that it was a

commuter campus. No problem, right? I worked and saved until

August 15th. On August 16th, I moved to New Orleans my person,

my transcripts and $2,500 in savings. August 18th was

Orientation and everything was going fine; then came registration

day. i paid my light deposit, phone deposit, first month's rent

and apartment deposit, bought groceries and opened a checking

account. I knew everything was finally falling in place, until I

received a $215 grant. Out of state tuition was nearly $1,500,

I thought suLkly there must have been a mistake, but there

wasn't. I paid my tuition, bought my books (used whenever

possible) and had about $300 left to support myself for the next

four months. What a predicament! I had no family in the

immediate area, and didn't know a single person.
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It was impossible to survive the duration of the semester

with the meager funds remaining to me. I was forced to break my

lease and took in two roosmates. This was xtremely difficult

since all we knew of each other was that we were experiencing the

sue types of problems. It was hard, but we made it. We made

it simply because if one of us had a dollar, all of us had a

dollar. We realized that our very being, our survival, was

dependent on one another.

government needs to assume.

Without any question, an investment in education

This attitude is one that our

is one of

the most important investments our government can make. All

throughout the world, the bulk of funding for colleges and

universities comes directly from the government because those

nations understand that the youth of their country inevitably

become the leaders of the future, the labor force, the resource

for change and development. Education is essential to

maintaining a potential for future techonolgical development and

enlightened leadership of our country. If students have the will

to acquire an education, our government must have the will to

assist. A quality education is essential if our country is to

prosper.

In response to your request, I am pleased to offer the

following comments as thay relate to the reauthorization of The

Higher Education Act, especially Title IV Studant Ald Programs.

I believe them to be of significance to the stability of Colleges

and Universities in this country:

1

41- 14
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Counseling

Why not establish an early intervention program. Greet

students entering high school and provide them with

counseling programs. Provide early assessment of

eligibility for federal aid. Guarantee state assistance for

the purpose of college once high school is completed. setup

seminars for college bound high school seniors, on how to

fill out Financial Aid Packets. I also believe that this

process should involve parents as well.

Pell Grant

The Formula for determining Pell Grant Awards needs to be

revised. Consideration should be given to the maximum Grant

amount. I am fully supportive of a recommendation that

allows $2,500.00 for living expenses (room, board, books,

personal items, tc.) and 26% of a students tuition (not to

exceed $1,600.00). The recommendation that this formula be

adjusted annually based upon the Consumer Price Index is

another plus. This new formula would address the needs of

lowincoe Pell Grant recipients, while also aiding the

needs of students who pay higher educational expenses.

Loan Programs

The Guaranteed Student Loan program was designed to meet the

needs of the middle class family. The G.S.L. is important

because it gives the student a choice and access to

different universities; however, ways to combat default are

1
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needed. I suggest consideration be given to developing

more flexibility in repayment options. Also, make loans

only 80% guaranteed (instead of 100 %), thereby forcing

banks to render a more careful scrutiny to whom they issue

monies. I am of the opinion that G,S.L. loans should be

granted to all students who have displayed satisfactory

academic progress, defined as the average required to

graduate.

Others

The Family Support Act of 2988 is a welfare reform law for

recipients of AFDC. It conteins an educational clause. Why

don't we make use of this act to prepare minority and

disenfranchised youth for college? Establish remedial

programs, prep courses, mentors, tutors, the list can go on

an on.

Perhaps Federally supported pre-paid tuition programs could

be established for state funded colleges and universities.

This would allow parents to lock in on today's prices for

tomorrows education. Set up a payment plan that makes

college affordable for everyone.

Provide extra funds for colleges and universities graduating

a high percentage of minorities.

i (1 i
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In conclusion, the federal financial aid program needs to be

revised. Students need adequate and professional counseling

before, as well as while, enrolled in college. The Pell Grant

Porula needs to revised. The G.S.L. Program is an important

program, but it ilso has flews that must be addressed. Special

attention needs to be focused upon minority and disenfranchished

students. I sincerely hope that you all consider my suggestions.

If there are any guestiels please fill free to contact me.

46-420 0 - 92 - 7
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Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, Mr. Pell. Mr. McArthur
Clarke, you have come just in time to offer your testimony. You
may, if you feel ready, proceed at this time. We are operating on
the rule where we ask you to speak for no more than 5 minutes,
and submit your written comments for the record if they extend
beyond that time.

STATEMENT OF MCARTHUR CLARKE, DILLARD UNIVERSITY,
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA

Mr. Cuatzz. Thank you. I am sorry that I was late, first of all,
but buses do not quite run as you predict them to sometimes. I
would like to say good afternoon, Members of the Congress, friends,
and all of the parties.

My name is McArthur Clarke, Jr. I am a sophomore here at Dil-
lard University, pre-engineering mechanical and physics major. It
is a privilege and a pleasure to have been chosen one of the few to
spmk on behalf of many on this very important issue.

The Title IV fmancial aid programs offered by Dillard University
have proven to be the deciding factor in my pursuit of higher edu-
cation. I, like many of my constituents, would not have been able
to attend such a prestigious university such as Dillard if it were
not for the Title IV programs. I am sure that at least 90 percent of
Dillard's student body is receiving some type of fmancial assist-
ance.

These programs enable students, like myself ,. who possess a
strong will to succeed to enter a university, although they may
lack the fmancial means to do so. This allows us to afford the op-
portunity to acquire desired degrees and eventually enter into our
career decisions, goals, and helping us to reach them. Moreover,
placing us in positions to give back to our communities hope by ex-
ample.

However, if the Title IV programs are decreased or dismantled,
doors that are opened may be closed in the faces of many future
scientists, doctors, engineers, and others who could give economic
stability, as well as new and creative insight, to an ever-changing
America.

Thank you.
Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, Mr. Clarke. You have adhered

very well to the time line. And for that, as the last witness of the
day, we certainly applaud you.

I want to say to each of you, though, that I am very impressed
with what you have had to say. I am sure that each member of this
committee will take to heart your comments today. No matter that
we have had. the presidents coming to speak to us, who did an out-
standing job, and the financial aid people, and others who repre-
sent higher education, you, in fact, are the most important wit-
nesses of the day. You are the real consumers of our services here.
You are the ones for which the act is really authorized, not for the
presidents or the institutions, but for the students' benefit. We are
pleased to hear you say what you have said about what the act has
meant to you, and to have your suggestions as to how we might im-
prove what it does for you and students who are similarly situated.

(1
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Each of you is involved in leadership at your university. And
each of you is an example for the young people who you are
charged to lead. I think you are fme examples. I really am im-
pressed with how you have conducted yolreelves, with what you
have said, and how you rwepared your testimony. I am certain that
you have impressed each of us here very favorthly. So, congratula-
tions to you, and thank you for participating. We really appreciate
your input today.

If there is any member of the committee who has a question or a
comment, they may do so at this time. Mr. Kildee.

Mr. Kamm Thank you very much. In real life, I was a high
school teacher. I can relate to students very well. I have taken this
long 26 year sabbatical in politics now. But, it is interesting, Mr.
Bell, only because a recruiting officer was willing to reduce his
quotabecause they are under great pressures, right, to get people
in there. He looked at you and gave you the counseling that you
really deserved to get when you were in high school, right? He
gave you that counseling. That was really great. Otherwise, you
would have probably gone off into-service, which is not a bad field.
But, you are in now something you choose to do because you had
real choices.

That is the trouble very often in this country. The poor and mi-
norities very often do not really have choices. You discovered,
through that person to whom you should be very grateful, really,
that you did have choices. I think the government's job is to make
sure that people in this country truly do have choices. Your story,
certainly, has not only informed my intellect, but has really
reached my will or my heart to make sure that government is sen-
sitive enough to give choices to people like yourself. I will go back
to Washington doing just that.

Thank you.
Chairman JIIMRBON. Congreesmall Hayes.
Mr. HAIM Just let me say, I just want to say ditto to what my

two colleague° just said to the kind of testimony that we have
heard from you, while it represents the plight of a lot of kids, I
think your determination to go to school and complete your educa-
tion is one that certainly would set an example for many. Lord
knows, when I listen to some of my colleagues who use the default
ratio of student loans on the part of some students who should not
have been given the loan in the first place, and should have been
given a grant, when they use this as an argument to reduce the
amount of money that comes from the Federal Government for aid,
it shows a real lack of sensitivity, a real lack of trying to establish
as a priority the need for education.

One of you mentioned the fact that you may look forward some-
day to beWg up here in our positions. That is certainly something
that you should look forward to. There is no question about it. But,
please, whatever you do, stay on the path that you are on, and do
not hesitate to pass on to others who are headed in the wrong di-
rection, particularly among our young African-American men and
women, that this is the wrong way to go. Go in this direction. This
is the best %ay for you to go. Please do all yrou can to help them.

I have a grandson who is just finishing high school. I will say
this, and then I am through. When he first entered high school, the
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sole objective was to be a wide receiver. He liked football. That was
his prowees. He kept getting wider like me, and he decided the best
approach was to be a tight end. Then, he finally wound up becom-
ing an offensive tackle on the high school football team. But, he
forgot and neglected his books, his academics. He fmally got ousted
from that school. He is in another one. But now he is going to
summer school in order to try to catch up on what he missed when
he should have been studying all along.

We cannot all be Air Jordans, even the Refrigerator man, you
know. We have to have something up here in order to make it.

Chairman JIMRSON. Mi. Payne?
Mr. PAYM Yes, I would just like to certainly amplify what Rep-

resentative Kildee said. You know, to see three young men, presi-
dents of your universities, Charles is of your stusient government,
and Davicl who ate peanut butter sandwiches and had to put up
with two strange roommates, and McArthur who had to widt for
the bus on a hot day all dressed up on a Saturday where people
probably thought he was strange.

RAughter.]
You know, you all three simply go against the old stereotype

that all young black men want to commit crime, do wrong things,
do not care, are lazy, have no direction.

So, I think that your presence here, in addition to the fact that
all of your ties even exceed mine, and I thought I was wearing a
fancy one, it certainly goes to indicate that the stereotypes are defi-
nitely out of plitce. I would just like to say, also, as Congressman
Kildee mentioned to you, David, that you are fortunate. They do
have quotas and goals of getting people to be all that Tou can be,
you know, join the Army. In the schools in my district in Newark,
where there is no employment, where there are no historically
black colleges up in New Jersey, the brightest and the best are in
the Army. The first casualty that we had under friendly fire was
an 18 year old boy that grew up one block from where I grew up.
He was killed in the Persian Gulf because he went to war to go to
college.

So, we certainly have priorities which are distorted. We have
more service personnel in our high schools, abuut five to onel than
college counselors. For one college counselor, we have four military
people,

j
at least. So, they todo get attracted the fancy posters of

"Be all that you can be, oin the Army." As you know, 80 percent
of the military were African Americans. The last 10 years, we
spent $8.5 ton on the military, where we have spent one-tenth
of that on education. We are going into a new fancy plane called
the F-22 that is going to cost $95 billion to develop because it is
better than the others we have. We do not have anyone to use it
against

So, we really need to turn the parties around. The people here,
us six, it is almost like we are sort of the converted. Our job is
really attemptim to convert the other 429 Members of the House
to do the right thing. So, I would just like to congratulate you gen-
tlemen again, and I really appreciated your testimony.

Chairman JimasoN. Does anyone else have a comment? The
last thing that I would like to say is that I do not know if Mr.
Childers has any authority in the area with respect to which these

1 S
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young men are speaking. But, someone needs to take back to the
administration the conclusion that has been reached here.

It should not be visited upon future generations of young people
who want to attend college at certain schools the sins of those who
may not have paid loans in the past for whatever reason. If you
were to take these three young men as examples, who if their
schools were determined ones that could no longer have students
going to attend them who needed the aid, but who could not be-
cause others who had gone before had not paid the loans back, you
would not do anything to affect those who had been the offenders.
You would simply affect the innocent victims, who would be these
young men that I am using as examples here, who could not them-
selves have the opportunity.

So, it makes no sense to punish the school, particularly when
they say that the school really has very limited discretion if the
student meets the qualifications. Then, they get the grant. They
get the loan, and that is it. And the school cannot really say, "You
cannot come because you may not pay us beck." That is not the
function that the school operates under. It can counsel and tell
them that it is their responsibility but it cannot deny them the
loan. It is the real backward thiaing of policy to say that if the
school has messed this thing up, we are not going to have anyone
else go there and get a grant or loan. That is something the CAm-
grew ought not permit, and it is something that the administration
ought not to consider.

Mr. Kildee?
Mr. Kum. I would like to say one more thing. One of the things

I taught was history. I taught Latin for the most part, but I also
taught history. I want you to know that your testimony will make
a difference. I think we are all more motivated when we go back to
Washington now because of your testimony here today. And you
will be part of history.

People do not realize it, but these hearinp are printed. They
become part of the archives of the United States. They will be
stored for hundreds of years in the Library of Congress. As a
matter of fact, in case we do not have the good sense to keep the
peace, they keep extra cc:I0es of the archives buried deep in the
mountains of Maryland. They are there for thousands of years.
And our historians will look at those and know that McArthur
Clarke, and David Bell, and Charles Brown testified. I think by
your testimony, you have made a difference. I deeply appreciate it.

Mr. PAYNI. Mr. Chairman, and this is not the regular time. This
is the time to be used to say nice things about you. I did not get the
chance to say many nice thinp about you at the beginning. I just
would like to say that I really would like to commend you f'or this
outstanding hearing, not only the university, but your staff and the
witnesses. Everything has really been excellent. I would just like to
say that as I wondered initially whether it was because it was New
Orleans or you now I am swayed more to you than New Orleans.

But fm Ially, too sort of entered the House of Representatives
under a similar situation as you, replacing a person who in my in-
stance served 40 years. I am only in my second term, but I have
heard continually that his shoes are very big. "You are going to be
unable to fill them. You don't know how you are going to." They do

1 0 (i



194

not even call my district by the number. They call it by the former
representative's district. Most of the buildings are named after him
anxway. But, I would just like to say that.you, I am sure, are not

ing to ffil shoes. I can see you are ma1cing your own footprints.
They are sort of swift, quick, and may be in another direction, your
own footprints in the sands of time. I would just like to, once again,
coctrulmrne you for this hearing.

JEFFERSON. Thank you very much.
u Applause.]
mr. WASHINGTON. Mr. Chairman, as you recall, I reserved the

balance of my time upon Congresswoman Mink's and my arrival. I
will be a man of few words. This is really hard for me, as you
know, Mr. Chairman. But----

Chairman JEFFERSON. YOS, sir.
Mr. WASHINGTON. Over in Texas, it does not take us as long as it

did an old boy from New Jersey to say what we have to say. The
people have done proud by electhig you. I am not just saying that
Wause I am here. You have paved your own way, like the gentle-
man from New Jersey said.

We are here because of you. I want you all to know that. We are
not just here because it is the year encl, and because we are inter-
ested in this issue. We are here because of this man. We came from
almost as many places as there are people here on a Saturday.
Many of us have other things, as you might imagine, given the
little time that we have to ourselves and our families, to be here. I
think it is especially noteworthy, particularly for your constituents
and others who helped you to get elected, ancl who will keep you in
office, to know that this is a tremendous show of support, not only
for the issues, as I said, but for the man. They done proud, and you
done proud, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.

[Applause.]
Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you, Mr. Washington.
Mr. HAYES. I knew you were not going to cut him off.
Chairman JEFFERSON. No, no. He might want to extend his re-

marks here, which would be okay with me.
In that vein, I want to again thank this group of Congressmen

and Congresswoman who have shown up today to grace our city, to
hear what our people here have had to say, and those from states
surrounding us have had to say about this act, and what should be
done in the future. I know the people of our city are deeply hon-
ored and sTateful for what you have done for us here today. We
want to tMnk you for that from the bottoms of our heart, as we
say here in Louisiana, Mr. Washington.

I also want to say as Craig pointed out earlier, that those who
have not submitted statements, everyone was not able to testify,
could not because of time constraints and the rest, but there may
be those who want to submit statements to this committee, based
on what we have been considering here today. If you would like to
do that, we will leave the record opened for the 14 days that the
subcommittee has agreed to do. We will take your written state-
ments and make them a part of our record. So, if you should desire
to add to this record and to become a part of this history-making
hearing, as Mr. Kildee has pointed out, then please take the oppor-
tunity to do so.

0 )4,0
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I want to say now as we conclude that I appreciate the accolades
and the warm remarks from my colleagues. But, we have had to
depend upon a lot of people to make this hearing a success. I want
to thank my staff, Mia Franklin, Betty Thibodeaux, and Annette
Crumbly, who is somewhere in the back, and Stephanie Edwards,
and all the rest who are here, and I want to thank the staff from
Washington, Tom Wolanin and Diane Stark, who are here behind
us, who have come to be with us today. I do not know if you notice
these folks who have been making notes, and giving instructions,
and urging us on to ask this or that interesting question. But, they
work with us very closely in Washington, and they will be a big
part of what happens with this legislation. So, I want to thank
them for WANg the time to come down here as well.

Mr. HAYES. Just before the rap of the gavel, I must thank Presi-
dent Cook and Mrs. Cook for being the kind host and hostess, along
with your staff, here at this great university. You have enabled me
to sleep well on the plane from the lunch I ate today.

Chairman JEFFERSON. Thank you very much. The hearing is con-
cluded.

[Whereupon, at 3:30 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
[Additional material submitted for the record follows.]

2 n 1
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Statement submitted by Dr. Jewel L. Prestage, Interim Dean,
Benjamin Banneker Honors College, Prairie View AGN University,
Prairie View, Texas for Hearings on the Higher Education Act
Reauthorization Bill, New Orleans, LA, July 27, 1991.

Preamble

Available statistics on graduate and professional school

enrollment and degree cecipiency indicate that Africen Americans

have experienced a decline in both areas over the past decade.

Overall, the number of doctorates earned by African Americans fell

by 19.8% between 1980 and 1990, while the percentages increased for

Hispanics, Asians, and American Indians by 69.4 per cent, 34.7 per

cent, and 24 percent respectively. (Chronicle of Higher Education,

Nay 20, 1991, p. 1A)

When the view is narrowed to specific disciplines, the

'absolute numbers of doctorates earned by African Americans and the

percentages represented by these numbers provide further reason for

concern in a nation committed to equality of access to higher

education. For example, in the three major fields of Engineering,

only 14 Ph.D.s were awarded to African Americans in 1989, and in

the years between 1980 and 1989, the yearly totals ranged from 4

to 11. During this same period the yearly figures for Computer

Science doctorates ta African Americans ranged from 0 'o 3, with

a 10 year total of 14 doctorates.

Ite American Political Science Association reports that 7 per

cent of the 601 doctorates in Political Science, International

Relations and Public Policy were earned by African Americans in
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1988-89. Overall, there were 34,319 Ph.D.s granted by U.S.

institutions of higher education in 1988-89. African Americans

earned only 4 per cent of these. (P.S. June 1991) pp.262-263).

For persons directing programs dedicated to recruiting high

ability African American students for undergraduate study and

increasing the number of these students entering graduate schools,

earning doctorate degrees and assuming positions on college and

university facultis, &major concern in the reauthorization of the

Higher Zducation Act is how to make the revised legislation more

responsive to the need to produce more African American Ph.D.

holders and reverse the trend of the past decade. The Benjamin

Banneker Honors College at Prairie View A & M University is such

a program. Honors Colleges at Historically Black Colleges and

Universities have devised a number of campus strategies to enhance

the potential for their students to opt for graduate study rather

than imediate entry into the workforce (especially in engineering

and computer science) and have become part of regional and national

linkages and special programs designed to increase minority

doctorates.

The general recommendations offered herein flow, in large

measure, from cumulative experiences with efforts spanning more

than 3 decades to encourage African American students to enter

graduate andprofessional school following receipt of undergraduate

dcs.ess.

The general recommendations, which relate mostly to Title IX,

are as follows:
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1. Overall, it is recommended that there be no erosion in the

level of financial support provided students from underrepresented

minorities entering graduate and professional school, as adequate

financial resources continue to constitute a major impediment to

earning Ph.D degrees by talented African Americans.

2. It is recommended that the cap on summer stipends be

removed so that the stipends offered will provide the funds which

these students need to carry them through the next academic year.

3. It is recommended that the Patricia Roberts Harris Public

Service Fellowship Program be expanded.

4. The removal of the financial needs cap on stipends to

graduate students is recommended.

5. The subject matter areas which are in the current law

should be expanded to include all areas in which women and

minorities are underrepresented. For African Americans, this list

would include almost all disciplines.

Summarily, the critical role of funding in the lives of

African Americium students seeking to enter graduate /professional

school becomes graphically obvious when we focus on individual or

special group cases. For example, a study of Black women Ph.D.

holders in Political Science, revealed that well over half of these

students had been supported by public and/or private funds

specifically earmarked for minority students. At Southern

University in Baton Rouge, the Department of Political Science is

a leader in the production of B.A. degree holders who have received

Ph.D. degrees in Political Science and related disciplines.



199

4

Without puk tc and private special financial support programs, this

would not have been possible. The Benjamin Hanneker Honors College

at Prairie View has placed 36 African American studonts in

sprially funded 1991 Summer programs at major research

universities designed to encourage and better prepare them for

Ph.D. study at the end of the undergraduate experience.

At the HECUs where a disproportionate share of African

American Ph.D. holders get their undergraduate training, we are

acutely aware of the nature of the crisis and urge that the Higher

Education Act which emerges from this session give us the support

needod to respond to it.

r -
)
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REAUTOORISATION OF WEE EMIR EDUCATION ACT
FEDERAL PROGRAMS WO STRENGTEEN DEVELOPING IESTIMITIONS01

MR. CHAIRMAN, I WISH TO THANK YOU FOR PERMITTING NE TO DISCUSS

TITLE IX OF TEE HIGHER EDUCATION REAUTHORIZATION ACT. NY TES-

TIMONY WILL FOCUS ON GRADUATE EDUCATION AT HISTORICALLY BLACK IN-

STITUTIONS OF MEER LEARNING (HECUO. I AM PROFESSOR OF POLITI-

CAL SCIENCE AND ACTING DIRECTOR OF THE JACKSON STATE

UNIVERSITY/UNIVERSITIES CENTER. I AM HERZ TODAY IN MY CAPACITY

AS PRESIDENT OF THE COUNCIL OF HISTORICALLY BLACK GRADUATE

SCHOOLS. IN ADDITION, THE OFFICE OP PUBLIC BLACE COLLEGES SHARE

SOME OF OCR CONCERNS. THE CHBGS IS TEE OFFICIAL REPRESENTATIVE

OF ALL THE HIM TEAT OFFER GRADUATE EDUCATION IN AMERICA. MORE

THAN 40% OF THE HECUs OFFER SOME FORM OF GRADUATE OR PROFESSIONAL

EDUCATION. HISTORICALLY, THE GRADUATE EDUCATION ROLE OF,TRESE

INSTITUTIONS RAS BERN NEGLECTED. THEY HAVE, IN SO MANY WORDS

BEEN ',OUT OF SIM AND OUT OF MIND."

1
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WE ALL KNOW THAT A GRADUATE PROGRAM INVOLVES SPECIALIZED

KNOWLEDGE AND ONRCENTRMED STUDY IN ONE AREA. IN THIS RESPECT IT

DIFFERS FROM LIMERGRABIUME STUDY, WHICH INTRODUCES YOU TO A WIWI

RANGE OF SUBJECTS, EVEN THOUGH YOU MAJOR IN ONE, AND GIVES YOU

CERTAIN INTELLECTUAL SKILLS - - READING CRITICALLY, WRITING

CLEARLY, ARGUING PERSUASIVELY.

A GRADUATE PROGRAM IS GENERALLY dORE FOCUSED ON A SPECIFIC AREA

OF INTEREST AND ACQUIRING SPECIALIZED SKILLS TO PRACTICE A

PROFESSION OR DO ADVANCED =SEARCH. HOWEVER, IT DOES NOT MERELY

ENTAIL AN ADDITIONAL NUMBER OF COURSES. IT REQUIRES ACTIVE PAR-

TICIPATION IN RESEARCH, AND/OR INTERNSHIPS TOO PRACTICE PROFES-

SIONAL SKILLS.

THERE ARE TWO MAJOR KINDS OF GRADUATE DEGREES, PROFESSIONAL DE-

GREES AND RESEARCH DEGREES, AND TNO MAJOR LEVELS, KASTER'S AND

DOCTORAL. IT THE MASTER'S LEVEL, A PROFESSIONAL DEGREE GIVES YOU

A SPECIFIC SET OF SKILLS NEEDED TO PRACTICE A PARTICULAR PROPER-

2
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SION. IT IS GENERALLY A FINAL DEGREE. THE RESEARCH MASTER'S

PROVIDES EXPERIENCE IN RESEARCH AND SCHOLARSHIP, AND IT MAY SE A

FINAL DEGREE OR A STEP TOWARD THE PH.D.

THE MASTER'S DDIRKE NAY BE PURSUED IN SUCH AREAS AS BUSINESS, SO-

CIAL SCIENCE, EDUCATION OR SEVERAL OTHER AREAS or INTEREST. THE

MASTER'S DOES NOT REQUIRE THE SAXE LEVEL OF RESEARCH AS THE DOC-

TORATE. THE OVERWHELMING IRJORITY OF 5 HECUs ARE MASTER'S IN-

STITUTIONS ONLY.

IN ORDER TO FOSTER DIVERSITY OF COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FACULTY,

THE GRADUATE ROLE OF HDCUS MUST BE ENHANCED. INDEED, THE ISSUE

OF THE UNDER-REPRESENTATION OF MUMMIES AND WOMEN WILL NOT BE

SATISFACTORILY DEALT WITH IF WE DO NOT ENHANCE AND REJUVENATE TRE

HECUS GRADUATE EDUCATION COMMUNITY. ME MUST ENSURE THE GRADUATE

AND PPAYESSIONAL EMUCATIOM OF UNITED STATES1031WMITITS ANDVONEN.

WE MUST COUNTER TUE *mom TO monwrz INTERNATIONAL STUDENTS

FOR UNITED STATES MINORITIES AND WOKEN. I AN STRONGLY RECOMMEND-

ING THAT NECUS :SHOULD AND MUST PLAY A P/VOTAL ROLE IN TEIS

3
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PROCESS, ACCORDING TO THE COUNCIL OF GRADUATE SCHOOLS, "BY num

TEE PERCENTAGES ON NON-U.S. GRADUATE ENROLLMENT RUNS A WIDE RANGE

FRON A WV OF 5% IN EDUCATION TO A HIGE OF 38% IN ENGINEERING."

INDEED, IN ENGINEERING, THE PERCENTAGE OF NON-U.S. CITIZENS EARN-

ING DOCTORATES WAS 55% IN 1989. CGS NOTES THAT ENROLLMENT TRENDS

INDICATE A 5% INCREASE FOR NON-U.S. CITIZENS AND LESS THAN 1% PER

YEAR FOR U.S. CITIZENS. THESE STATISTICS ARE EVEN MORE DEPRESS-

ING WHEN NE LOOK AT MINORITIES AND WOMEN IN DOCTORAL PROGRAMS.

THE NUN= OF MINORITY AND FEMALE PHD6 INCREASED SIGNIFICANTLY

arms= THE LATE 195088 AND EARLY 19700S. ACCORDING TO THE NA-

TIONAL RESEARCH COUNCIL, BETWEEN 1977 AND 1987 THE NUMBER OF

FEMALE DOCTORATE RECIPIENTS INCREASED SUBSTANTIALLY. OVER THE

SANE PERIOD, TEE NUMBER OF BLACKS EARNING Ms DECLINED FROM

1,116 TO 765. A MORE PROFOUND DROP OCCURRED Ts BLACK MALE DOC-

TORATE RECIPIENTS ?NOM 684 TO 317. NONEVER, A SIMLL INCREASE OC-

CURRED IN BLACK FEMALE DOCTORATE RECIPIENTS - - 432 TO 448. TEE

765 PHO6 WAD BY SLICES IN 1987 REPRESENTED 3.4% OF TEE PHD.

4
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AWARDED TO U.S. CITIZENS AND 2.4% OF TOTAL PON AWARDED BY U.S.

INSTITUTIONS. YET BLACKS MAXI UP ROUGHLY 12% OF THE POPUIATION.

NISPANICS, WOO MAKE UP 6.5% OF TEE POPULATION, RECEIVED 2.8% OF

THE PHDS AWARDED TO U.S. CITIZENS IN 1987. THE NATIONAL RESEARCH

COUNCIL ALSO REPORTED THAT U.S. MINORITY ISLES RECEIVED ONIll 4.1%

OF THE DOCTORATES AWARDED AND U.S. MINORITY FEMALES RECEIVED ONLY

6.9% OF THE DOCTORATES AWARDED. OF THE 23,172 DOCTORATES AWARDED

TO U.S. CITIZENS IN 1989; AFRICAN AMERICANS, AMERICAN INDIANS

AND =PANICS COLLECTIVELY RECEIVED 1,234 OR 5.3% BASED UPON THE

U.S. POPULATION TEAT IS APPROXI1MTELY 20% MINORITY (12% AFRICAN

AMERICAN, 7% HISPANIC, 1% NATIVE AXERICAN). 4,403 MINORITIES

SHOULD RECEIVE DOCTORATES ANNUALLY INSTEAD OF 1,234 CURRENT

RECIPIENTS. THE POINT THAT I AN TRYING TO MAXI IS THAT TN ORDER

FRO THE GRADUATE canny! TO ADDRESS TEIS NATIONAL SECURITY

ISSUE, WE MUST SNP= NON-TRADITIONAL APPO3ACHIS IN OUR IEETITU-

TIONS. CGS MUST EMPLOY NON-TRADITIONAL APIPAACMES AS THE LEADING

5
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ORGANISATION FOR GRADUATE DEANS. IT IS EVIDENT THAT THE LEADAP-

PROACH IS NOT WORKING IN THE MANNER IN WHICH WE THINE IT SHOULD

WORE.

THE ISSUE OF THE UNDERREPRESENTATION OF AFRICAN-AMERICAN WOMEN

AND OTHER GROUPS IS COMPLICATED BY THE RAPID GROWTH OF NEN IN-.

MIGRANTS INTO INS AMERICAN POPULATION. IN RECENT YEARS, SCHOOLS

HAVE BIOIN OVERWHELMED BY THE NEEDS OF AN UNPRECEDENTED IMMIGRANT

STUDENT POPULATION m. STUDENTS WHO SPEAK OVER SO DIFFERENT LAN-.

GUAM AND WHO CONE FORM A VARIETY OF SOCIAL, ECONOMIC AND CUL-

?URAL BACRGROUNDS. OUR SCHOOLS' ABILITY TO COPE AND TO EDUCATE

TRW INCREASINGLY PLURALISTIC GENERATION WILL HAVE A pwrann) IM-

PACT UPON OUR COUNTRY'S FUTURE.

THE NEW IMMIGRANTS WILL CLEARLY TEST HIS COUNTRY'S ABILITY TO AC-.

COMNODATIC mummy AT ITS HIGHEST. WHEWEAS IN THE EARLY PERT OF

THE CENTURY MOST OF TNS IMMIGRANTS WERE EUROPEAN, TODAY TIM ARE

PRILIPPINOS, VIETNAMESE, =RUNS, INDIANS, arms,

6
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DOMINICANS AND JAMAICANS - - TMEY ARE THIRD WORLD PEOPLES AND

THEY ARE BEING RECEIVED, WITH AT BEST, AN AMBIVALENT WELCOME. WE

CAN REST ASSURED THAT THE RECENT EVENTS DI nom EUROPE AND THE

SOVIET UNION WILL FURTHER COMPLICATE THZ PLIGHT OF WOMEN AND

MINORITIES IN AMERICA. WHAT WILL HAPPEN TO THE EDUCATIOM OP-

PORTUNITY FOR THESE INDIGENOUS UNDERREPRESENTED GROUPS? =SEEMS

TO NE THAT THE HECU COIOMINITY HAS A MAJOR ROLE TO PLAY IN THE FU-

TURE.

THE COUNCIL OF HISTORICALLY BLACK GRADUATE SCHOOLS WISHES TO 00

ON RECORD IN SUPPORT OF THE PROPOSAL THAT HAS BEEN FASHIONED BY

THE COUNCIL OF GRADUATE SCHOOLS, THE ASSOCIATION OF AMERICAN

UNIVERSITIES AND LAND GRANT COLLEGES. THESE ORGANIZATIONS HAVE

REVISITED THE PATRICIA ROBIMTS HARRIS FELLOWSHIP PROGRAM. THEY

ARE PROPOSING THREE YEARS OF FEDERAL SUPPORT FOR MINORITY STU-

DENTS UNDER THE DOCTORAL COMPONENT OF THE HARRIS PROGRAM. TEE

HARRIS FELLOWSHIP WOULD PPXYVIDE IKE FIRST TWO YEARS OF FULL TIME

FUNDING FOR THE STUDENT. THIS IS NORMALLY LONG ENOUGE FOR THE

7
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STUDENT TO COMPLETE MOST OF THEIR COURSEWORE AND POSSIBLY PREPARE

THENSELVES FOR THEIR COMPREHENSIVE. IF THE STUDENT NEEDED NOR2

TIME TREY WOULD RECEIVE ONE OR TWO YEARS OF FUNDING AS A =OEM

OR EVEN BETTER AS A RESEARCH ASSISTANT. THE FINAL YEAR OF

FEDERAL FUNDING WOULD BE RESERVED FOR THE STUDENT WORKING ON

THEIR DISSERTATION. THESE CHANGES WOULD HAVE A MAJOR POSITIVE

IMPACT ON AFRICAN AMERICANS AND OTHER MINORITY STUDENTS. tHEY

ARE ALSO STRONGLY URGING THAT THE CURRENT LEVEL OF FUNDING OF

ABOUT B3MILLION OE INCREASED TO $100MILLION.

THE COUNCIL OF HISTORICALLY BLACE GRAMM SCHOOLS IS ALSO IN

SUPPORT OF THE MASTERS COMPONENT PART OF THE HARRIS PROGRAM. WE

SUPPORT THE FUMING OF THE MASTER'S COMPONENT OF THE HARRIS

MOAK AT THE MULLION LEVEL.

TUX MASTER COMPONENT SHOULD NOT BE OVERLOOKED BECAUSE IT HAS

ENABLED $O MANI AFRICAX-IIMERICAN SCHOLARS TO COMPLETE THEIR DOC.

TORAL WORK. IN FACT, THE OVERMSELMING MAJORITY OF THE SCHOLARS

IN TEE CROGS ARE MASTER'S ONLY INSTITUTIONS. TEEREFORE, THE
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WASTER'S DEGREE IS VERY IMPORTANT WITNIN THE CONTEXT OF GRADUATE

EDUCATION IN OUR INSTITUTIONS. YOU CAN HELP US TO REVERSE THE

DOWNWARD TREND OF BLACK MASTERS DEGREES BY SUPPORTING ADDITIONAL

FUNDING IN THE HARRIS PROGRAM FOR IUMMIMS DEGREE EDUCATION. WE

ARE IN SUPPORT OF THE REDUCTION OF Pawns DEGREE SUPPORT FROM 3

TO 2 YEARS IN ORDER TO INCREASE THE NUMBER OF MASTERS DEGREE STU-

DENTS BY 1/3.

THE PIVOTAL ROLE OF HISTORICALLY BLACK COLLEGES IN THE PROCESS

SHOULD NOT BE OVERLOOKED. WI ARE NOT GOING TO EFFECTIVELY AD-

DRESS TIDI ISSUE OF UNDERREPRESENTATION OF BLACKS AND OTHERS UNTIL

WE MAKE A STRONG COMMITMENT TO ENHANCING GRADATE EDUCATION AT

HMOS. MOS SHOULD BE ABLE TO OFFER MORE GRADUATE AND DOCTORATE

PROGRAMS. THE EXPANSION OF DOCTORAL orraRnwa AT HISCU GRADUATE

SCHOOLS WOULD OCCUR IF MORE OF OF THESE GRADUATE SCHOOLS WERE

ELIGIBLE FOR FUNDING UNDER TTTLE III.

THE COUNCIL OF HISTORWALLY BLACK GRADUATE SCHOOLS WISHES TO GO

ON RECORD IN RECOMENDING THE FOLLOWING CHANGES:

9
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1. TRAT A NSW INITIATIVE UNDER TITLE III IM KIMMINS= TO

STREWTH= THI GRADUATE INFRASTRUCTURE AT =CUB.

2. TSAT AN MITITLEMINT PROGRAM FORM AFRICAN =RICANS AND OMER

MINORITY STUDENTS BS ESTABLISHED ON A NEED BASIS. vs OUR FIELD

IT MAKES MORE SENSE TO SEE ALL STUDENTS AS NEEDY. IN TES WORDS

OF DEAN FRANK L. MORRIS, SR. NTH= WE MAY BEGIN TO SUPPORT

AKE:RICAN GRADUATZ STUDENTS AS WELL AS WS SUPPORT INTONATIONAL

GRADUATE STUDSNTS."

3. MAJORITY INSTITUTIONS SHOULD BS AWARDED MERIT POINTS FOR

GRADUATING 75% OP ITS ICOMMITY STUDENTS. THESE POINTS COULD BS

ADD= TO TIMIS PATRICIA ROBERTS HARRIS PEIIAMSHIP APPLICATIONS.

nownu, Ii THXY DO NOT GRADUATE AT LKAST 75% OF THEIR 10310MITY

STUDENTS, POINTS SHOULD BE TAKEN AWAY FROM TENIR APPLICATION

PACIRGZ.

10
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IN CONCLUSION, LIT NE SAY TEAT THE UNITED STATES FACES THE

PROSPECT OF CONTINUED GREAT INEQUALITY BETWEEN WHITES AND

AFRICAIM-AMERICAWS AND A CONTINUING DIVISION OF SOCIAL STATUS

WITHIN THE APRICAN-AMICAN POPUIATION IF WE DO NOT RECOGNIZE THE

noanum POTENTIAL OF THE H6C0 COMMUNITY. IMICU GRADUATE SCHOOLS

CAN, IF ALLOWED, HELP TO ADDRESS THE UNDERREPRESENTATION OF

AFRICAN-AMERICANS AND OTHER UNDERREPRESENTED GROUPS IN GRADUATE

EDUCATION.

THANE YOU VERY MUCH.
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CENTRAL STATE UNIVERSITY
lifitretfoice, Ohio 43384

BARR /ERB TO MINOR ITY
ACCESS 70 PURL IC EDUCAT ION

The decade of the 1980's witnessed a significant reversal in the

Seine made by blacks in higher education uP to 1977. In 1988.

the National Center for Education Statistics (SCES) found that

blacks earned fewer degrees in 1985 than in 1977 at all degree

levels except the first profeesional. The SCES documented the

following percent changes in degrees earned by blacks between

1977 and 1985:

TABU

Degree Level Black Nen Black Women

Bachelor's

Master's

Doctor's

8

First-Professional

-33

-27

- 8

3

-34

22

81

NCES data further documents the fact that black males accounted

for nearly two-thirds of the drop in the number of blacks

receiving degrees between 1977 and 1985. Contrary to data on

blacks, SCES data on Hispanics.. Asians, and American Indiane/

Alaska Natives indicate that they earned more degrees in 1985

than in 1977 at all degree levels. The following figures were

compiled from the 1989 Digest of Education Statistics and they

compare total U.S. enrollment in institutions of higher education

for the years 1978, 1980, 1984 and 1986 by racial/ethnic group.

.11911W
TABLE H

Total Enrollment In Institutions of Higher Education
By Race/Ethnicity: Fall 1970 to Fall 1006

(in 000's)

74111. 174 17.11121 White Black
(x) 0 (%)

Minipanic
(%)

1978 9.078 (82.8) 033 (9.41_ 384 (3.51

1978 9.194 (81.9) 1,054 (9.4) 417 (3.7)

1980 9,833 (81.4) 1,107 (9.2) 472 (3.9)
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INN IN N.INI White
0 (%)

Black
0 (%)

Hispania
0 (%)

1982 9,997 (80.7) 1,101 (8.9) 519 (4.2)

1984 9,815 (80.2) 1,078 (8.8) 535 (4.4)

1986 9,911 (79.4) 1,080 (8.7) 1 617 (4.9)

Asian/Pacific Amer. Indian/
Islander Alaska Native

Nonresident
Alien

1978 198 (1.8) 76 (0.7) 219 (2,0)

1978 235 (2.1) 78 (0.7) 259 (2.2)

1980 288 (2.4) 84 (0.7) 305 (2.5)

1982 351 (2.8) 88 (0.7 ) 331 2.7

1984 390 (3.2) 84 (0.7) 335 (2.7)

1988 448 (3.6) 90 (0.7) 344 (2.8)

These figures clearly illustrate that despite a 7 percent growth

rate in the black college-aged population from 1976 to 1986, the

blaok percentage of total U.S. headcount enrollment fell from 9.4

,nt in 1978 to 8.7 percent in 1986. Growth in the nonresi-

a-g16 A.ien student enrollment in U.S. colleges and universities

etceeded growth in the black student population, e.g.,

ident aliens as a percentage of total headcount enrollment

btu from 2.0 percent in 1976 to 2.8 percent in 1986. In

absolute numbers, the growth in headcount enrollment between 1978

and 1986 increased by 853,000 for whites; 223,000 for Hispanics;

250.000 for Asian Americans; 125,000 for nonresident aliens;

47,000 for blacks; and 14,000 for American Indians.

Table III indicates the percentage of white, black, and Hispanic

students enrolled in elementary and high schools across the U.S.

from fall, 1960, to fall, 1985. These figures illustrate a

substantial proportional decline in white enrollment both at the

elementary and high school levels over the 25 year span. These

figures also illustrate substantial ProPortional increases in

black and Hispanic enrollment as a percent of total enrollment

-2-
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nationwide from 1980 to 1985. Clearly, however, both black and

Hispanic college enrollment rates are significantly lower than

their high school enrollment rates, e.g., blacks represented 15.2

percent of total U.S. high school enroPment in 1985 compared to

Just 8.7 percent of total college enrollment. Hispanics

represented 8.3 percent of total U.S. high ;school enrollment in

1985 compared to Just 4.9 percent of total college enrollment.

Both minority groups are significantly under-represented in U.S.

colleges and universities.

TABLE III

Percent of Students Enrolled in Schools Across
U.S.

k_Reoe/Ethnicity: Fall 1980 to fall 1985

Race & fear----Elementary and High Schools
Total Elementary High

=MEMEL
White(1)

1980 88.8 85.8 89.0

1965 85,9 85.2 87.5

1970 85.0 84.4 88.5

1975 83.8 83.5 84.3

1980 82.3 82.0 82.8

1985 80.7 80.4 81.4

81ack(1)

1960(2) 13.4 14.2 11.0

1985(2) 14.1 14.8 12.5

1970 13.8 14.3 12.5

1975 14.5 14.8 14.0

1980 15.4 15,5 15,1

1985 15.8 16.0 15.2

1975

1980

1985

6.5 6.8

8.1 8.6

9.7 I 10.4

6.0

7.2

6.3

Isslmoes persons el Mewls egets. al Maeda* Mese and ether rases. 421
Osrsoss 04 5I100919 Inlets soft 60 of aes raes. MOT& gerellesot tooled's Obedests
ts asp twee st Waded Wells. weakish se otter velvets 08400 le repulse 00401
svalmaS. lestudes esearwo sehsele. alsOoreertess. 101100t10, inna060. asgt0Oes.
molsseeltleo. led PPO4OPOSP001 stesege. AttemOsato etV 90 Is 0100, 9011.110s
pr part-tins balls sed Awing the OW fo. 44104. enrellesats II WOW sa96010,
seek at Imadoesibmis. Wllimps the SOMP0006.0640 WIWI. a" mOt
Iselsded. swim 0.9. 90ot. et tooserso. Oared. et tee Somas. Osroest hee.
Nets.. Owls* Mee. elbow) (mill. Ose)el sod etenpate 0e10aster &&&&&& sr
elmilottl.Alst.Aell la .400
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Much of the difference between Hispanic proportional representa-

tion in high school and college can be accounted for by the high

school droP out rates of Hispanic youth. In 1985, an estimated

30.7 Percent of 18- to 19-year-oid Hispanic youth had dropped out

of high school while only 17.4 percent of black youth had dropped

out (see Table IV). School completion rates are also signifi-

cantly higher for blacks than Hispanics. In 1988, only 18.7

Percent of black 25- to 29-year-olds had less than 4 years of

high school while the commensurate percentage for Hispanics in

1986 was 41.0 percent (see Table V). Clearly, black's are

completing high school at significantly higher rates than

Hispanic youth. However, as Table II indicates, the level of

Hispanic enrollment in U.S. institutions of higher education grew

by 40 percent (from 383,790 to f,34.920) between 1976 and 1984,

while the level of black enrollment grew only 4 percent (from

1,033,025 to 1,075,764). The paltry level of black enrollment

growth during these years explains why blacks lost ground (from

9.4% to 8.8%) as a percentage of total U.S. college enrollment

which grew by 11 percent overall from 1976 to 1984.

Degrees earned by blacks also decreased.significantly between

1977 and 1985. Table VI illustrates the degrees earned by black

men and women by level of degree. Black males earned fewer

degrees in 1985 than they did in 1977 across all degree levels,

e.g.. bachelor's, master's, doctor's, and first-professional.

Black women earned significantly fewer master's degrees, held

their own at the bachelor's level and earned significantly more

first-professional degrees in 1965 than in 1977.

TABLE VI

Degrees earned by black, non-Hispanic nen and some- by level

of degree: Selected academic Years ending 1977-1985

Sex and
degree level 1977 1979 1981 1985

Mosn

Bachelor's 25,026 24,544 24,511 I 23,018

Master's 1 7,769 1 7,045 i 6,158 5,200

-4-
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Sex and
degree level 1977

216

1979 1981 1985

Men
ctors 768Do' 733 694 561I-

First-Prof. 1.761 1,783 1,772 1,623

Women
Bachelor's 39,489 35,588 38,182 34.455

Master's 13,255 12.348 10.975 8,739

Doctor's 487 534 571 593

First-Prof. 776 1.053 1,159 1,406

The following illustration graphically depicts the percent change

in the number of degree! ferned by degree level and ethnic group

comparing academic years 1977 and 1985. Clearly, blacks have

been more negatively impacted than other ethnic groups, earning

34 percent fewer masters' degrees, 8 percent fewer doctors'

degrees and 2 percent fewer bachelors' degrees from 1977 to 1985.

-hems aims le washer of 611112,0E24 dlig al
d Nair* pun =MK ea1 ION
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OSwift dsposs
0 Nowt wpm
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wormmovidews
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At the national level, 42.6 percent of black enrollment in

institutions of higher education in 1984 was accounted for by 2-

year institutions while only 36.8 percent of white students

enrolled attended 2-year institutions. The 1985 College Board

Report, Equality and Excellence, found that persistence rates for

two-year college students are much lower than for students

attending four-year colleges, particularly for black student'.

An even higher number of Hispanic students (53.9%) attended 2-

year institutions in 1984.

The over-representation of black and HisPanic youth at the 2-year

level where drop-out rates are significantly higher for minori-

ties than whites contribute to a national trend of restricted

access to 4-year institutions of higher education for minority

youth, particularly blacke. In 1986, 46.7 percent of students

attending 2-year institutions were minorities compared to a 36.1

percent attendance rate for white students. American Indians

(56.7%) and Hispanics (55.3%) attended 2-year institutions at a

higher rate th-n other minority groups. e.g., 41.6 percent for

Asians and 43.1 percent for blacks.

According to the American Council on Education's (ACE) Seventh

Annual Status Report on Minorities in Higher Education, total

minority enrollment in higher education stood at 2.2 million

(17.9 percent of total enrollment) in 1986. Between 1984 and

1986. Hispanics led in enrollment gains, increasing by 16.6

percent with Asian and American Indian enrollment increasing by

14.9 percent and 7.1 percent, respectfully. Between 1984 and

1986, black higher education enrollment increased by a scant 0.5

percent. ACE findings also reveal that black enrollment in 1984

was 2.8 percent below the 1980 peak of 1.1 million students. The

ACE report on minorities in higher education concludes that when

enrollment for minorities is considered as a whole, enrollment

increases for Asians and Hispanics mask the earlier declines and

current stagnation in black enrollment.

-6-
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Table IV

bdabr 23. Dropouts

High school dropouts among II- to 24-ysar-otds, by age, racsdithnloby, and
sou 1970, 1975, 111110, and 1956

Ammet dreams

Yaw,
saw bid

noweitridei 161924
yew

16 and 17
yOW

15 and 19
ISM

201o$4
peen

041ober 1970
TOM 15.0 ILO 11.2 17.3

Mie 14.2 7.1 110 172
rem* 15.7 U 15.3 15.4

K161 13.2 7.3 14.1 15.7

UMW 27.9 12.5 31.2 343

&Ober 1975
Mid 131 ae lie 16.4

WM 13.3 71 15.5 15.0

Female 14.5 9.0 115 15.7

%NM 13.5 5.4 117 13.6

Mal 22.6 10.2 25.4 212
lispenlot 29.2 13.2 30.1 37.4

Golober 1NO
7Mel 14.1 U 15.7 15.5

WM 15.1 Is 15.9 119
mmis 13.1 OA 14.7 14.1

WNW 13.3 9.2 141 142
MOO 19.4 U 21.2 64.4

lewd°, 35.2 151 310 41.0

OeMber IN,
TOMO 12$ 7.0 14.3 14.0

WM 13.4 6.7 110 141

Female 111 71 123 13,2

Velitel 131 7.1 13.5 13.4

MUM 111 5.5 17.4 17.7 .

MOW VI 14.5 30.7 31.2

001mossmullIgseleolsh
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Table V

k",x22. School Completion

Peraint of 25. to 29-yesPolds who have completed selected
schooling, by age and racelethnletty: 1940 to 19115

lusts of

Roos and 1.844 IO49 4 yowl

Yow of high school

4parsol
hip seed
- ony

4 yesmol
NO semi and
NM cape

4 pars el
441401
of more

Al moss
1940
19N

6I.9
472

-- -- 5.9
7.7

19N 392 37.5 122 11.0
1921 211.7 45.3 ILI 12.4
1970 24.6 44.1 14.9 16.4
1975 16.9 412 19.7 212
1910 14.6 40.7 222 22.5
1915 131 42.4 21.5 22.2

131 42.1 21.5 22.4
WhOsI

1940 55.1 - 34.9 64
1950 43.7 - 45.1 5.2
1K4 35.3 39.1 12.6 11.1
IN6 27.2 46.4 132 13.0

22,2 45.0 15.6 17.3
1976 15.6 411 20.0 221
1100 13.1 40.7 22.5 23.7
1116 132 42.3 21.3 23,2
ION 131 411 21.1 23.5

MsOk and olhot mosso
1940 57.7 - 10.7 11
1950 714 - 201 22
1921 61.4 . 251 7.7 64
ION 471 331 5.3 52
1970 411 371 101 10.0
1175 263 41.1 17.3 15.4
1910 231 401 211 162
1915 171 43.1 22.9 16.7
1921 15.7 44.0 24.1 15,2

NNW
ION 49.7 35.1 5.4 69
1970 431 310 91 7.3
1975 21.0 43.4 161 10.7
1160 23.1 44.1 21 .1 11.7
ION 19.4 46.2 223 11.6
ION

illsponha
117 47.0 24.5 1 1 I

1975 463 39.7 12.2 es
INO 42.1 341 15.4 7.7
1121 KO 34.0 16.0 . 11.0
11M8 411 , 33.7 15.3 9.0

-Owe eveldis.
Wise mon Moe* . I Anew Mpg* edek Roe be el we

NORM u.s. ospour4 Comm. &mu el Ws emus. II/N Caina cithit vol. I. psi 1 end Daryl
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St. Chairmen, members of the Postsecondary Education

Subcommittee, thank you for the qpportunity to present testimony

on the Reauthorization of the Higher Iducation Act of 1965,

specifically, Title III and Title rw.

I am especially honored to be able to present testimony to this

committee in my home city of Mew Orleans. Louisiana is proud to

be home of the largest system of Historically Bleak Colleges and

Universities (HMI's) in the Nation, the Southern University

System. The system has three campumes located in Shreveport,

Baton Rouge, and Mew Orleans. Baton gouge homes the main campus

of the System, Southern University and A & II College, a land

grant institution founded in 1880.

nifty, however, I will present testimony concerning Southern

University at Mew Orleans, wtere I serve as Vice Chancellor for

Student Affairs.

BISTORICAL OVERVIEW

Southern ikaiversity at Mew Orleans (SUMO) WM founded in 1956 by

an act of the Louisiana State Legislature as a bran& of the

Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College.

1
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Southern University at New Orleans began its initial year in

Septeeber, 1959 with a freahman class of 158 students, one (1)

building, and a faculty of fifteen (15). Its first commencement

was held in Nay, 1963, with baccalaureate degrees awarded to

fifteen (15) graduates.

The next decade sew SONO experience remarkeble growth. By fall

1975, student enrollment bad cliebed to 3,461, and 303 degrees

were conferred during the spring 1976 commencement exercises.

During the 1990-91 academic year, SUNO's enrollment was 4050 and

4312 during the fall and spring semesters respectively. TO date,

SUMO has graduated 6,438 students, 68% of whom are female, 32%

male, and 95% are African Americans. SUMO is proud of its

graduates, many of whom serve their communities as doctors,

lawyers, city councilmen, state legislators, educators, college

chancellors, business persons, actors, musicians, scientists and

ministers.

Southern University at New Orleans is an open admission

institution which serves am the only opportunity for many members

of the New Orleans area to gain access to a quality college

e ducation. $ONO offers the associate degree, the bachelors

degree and the Master of Social Work degree. SONO's mission is

to create and maintain an environment conducive to learning and

growth, to promote the upward mobility of all people by preparing

them to enter into new as well as traditional careers, and to

2



223

equip them to fuection optimally in the maisetremm of American

S ociety. The Utiversitypremides a sound education tailored to

special seeds of student' coming to an open admissions

institution and peepers" students for full participation in a

4:apples amd chasging society. Tbe SUMO ideal is a harmomy of the

gemeral amd the special aspects of learning. It alms at both

immediate and lomg-ramge rewards.

TITLE III, PART 13 - STRENGTHENING HISTORICALLY SLACK COLLEGES AND

UNIVIMSITINS

ACADEMIC SUPPORT POR PRE COLLEGE STUDENTS

Over ninety percent of SUNO's students come from New Orleans and

the surrounding areas. Many of these students come to college

n eeding academic support services to help insure their college

success. Because of the epecial needs of these and other inner

city students, it is recommended that the funding level for Title

III be increased, and more funds made available to Historically

Elm* Colleges and Universities to provide ostensive academic

support for African American pre-college students. Specifically

it is recommended that increased funds be provided to

H istorically Blank Colleges and Universities for quality early

intervention services to junior/middle school students in the

form of academic enhancement/support programs, in partnership

3
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with public schools, so that they will be better prepared to

summed in college. Additionally, funds must be provided to

colleges to address the issue of the African American male while

he is still at an age when role models and mentors can help mold

and shape him and his perception of life. Bloc& colleges offer

the best role models and paace for this important interaction to

be conducted, and where young African American males& and

females, can actually experience, through special outreach and

partnership programs, same of the benefits of a collegc education

while they are still in junior high and middle school.

This window of opportunity, access to a college education, must

be kept open for all people, especially those young people for

whom a college education is the only way out of poverty and

hopelessnems. The only way that BMWs can confront this task is

through increased Federal funds through the Title III, Part B -

Strengthening of Historically Black Colleges and universities

Program.

SUPPORT POR NOR TRADITIONEL STUDENTS

awls 400 of tbe SUMO student population consists of

"nontraditional" students, students who are well past the 10-24

year range, and who heve families and homes to maintain.

4
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any of these students are single, female heads of households

Whose income falls below the poverty level as defined by the

United States Lmbor Department. These student', need special and

specific support if they are to be successful in college. It is

recommended that increased funds be appropriated for HIM V3

create women centers and child care centers as support for tbese

non-traditional students. Additionally, funds must be made

available to provide after school tutorial centers for the school

age Children of these non traditional students. These centers

will provide academic tutoring, mentor-mentee relationships,

counseling and other 3arly intervention strategies.

Such centers will provide these youngsters with positive male and

female role models throughout their elementary, junior/middle and

high school life, thereby increasing tbe "at-risks students

chances of graduating from high school, attending college and

becoming productive members of their communities.

TUC= =SCAM=

Adequate funds must be provided to SUMO, and other BMWs, to

acquire and maintain accreditation of its College of Sducation by

the National Council for the Accreditation for Teadber Sducation

(RCATS) mo that we might continue to prepare young teachers to

5
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serve the urban/city school systems and the rural school system.

Minds are also needed to establish scholar internship and

exchange programs for senior teachers to receive advanced

&grew' and for special teacher preparation programs for

colleges of education.

Title TV, Student Assistance

STUDENT FINANCIAL AID

This Congress must find ways to continue to inveut in our natural

resource, our youth, through adequate funding for Title TV

student aid programs in the form of increased levels for the Pell

Grant, the Supplemental Education Opportunity Grant and the

College Workstudy program. African American youth in general,

and SSWO students in particular, must be given adequate financial

support to cover their cost of attendance if they are to succeed

in college. This support must be in the form of entitlements

not student loans. It is impossible to expect calr youngsters to

borrow large sums of sceey to finance their education. This

expectation is not consistent wich equal access to higher

education. Dy decreasing entitlements and increasing dependency

on student loans, we are demanding that students, who could not

otherwise qualify to borrow funds, commit to high debts,

sometimes totaling as much as $20,000.00 over a four or five year

period, in order to receive a baccalaureate degree. These

6
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students are put in debt at age 22-24, a debt which is clearly

disproportionate to their earning potential, and which drives

them from social service professions like teaching, health

professions, couneeling and social work, which are a) desperately

needed by their communities.

Additionally, the Congress and the Administration must find other

means to address the default rates experienced by ROCU's as a

result of these large student loans with which students are

burdened. Presently, schools experience heavy penalties when

students go into default. Often these penalties are borne by

future operations of collsge going students who do not, of

course, share in the responsibility for for default. Other ways

of addressing student defaults must be examined. A much more

productive sechanims for enforcement of loan pay-back must be

built into the guaranteed Student Loan program to address present

loans and future loans. One suggestion is to authorize the

appropriate fedwral agency to withhold a portion of the earnings

of those borrowers in default. Another possibility might be to

require students to sign payroll deduction to cover loan

payments when they are first employed.

Regardless of the mechanism used, Historically Black Colleges and

Universities cannot bear the burden for pant defaults an student

loans and thould not be penalized through debarment or suspension

7
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from the Guaranteed Student Loan programs. If NBCS's are to be

responsible to help in the aolleation of loans made to its

students, then this requirement should be specifically stated in

the reauthorized act so that SSCS's can plan for this new

responsibility.

I am pleased to have had the opportunity to present testimony to

you.

Nay I conclude by reminding you that the role of ISICS's in

educating African Americans is well documented. SMN's have

given this great Nation most of its African American leaders., and

nearly all of its African American elected officials. In order

to continue this great legacy, the Federal government must

increare its funding level for special academic support program

and student aid programs so that the window of opportunity will

open fully for all people, especially African Americans and other

xorities who so often are not given equal access and do

experience equal attainment in college.

8
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COMMENTS OF
HENRY S. MIEMDB(T

CHARLES R DREW UNIVErIUTY OF MEDICINE AND SCIENCE
TOME

POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION SUSCOMMITTIE,

HOUSE EDUCMION AND LABOR COMMITTEE

JULY 27, 1201

NEW ORLEANS, LA

Congressman Jefferson end members of the committee, thank you for the opportunity

to receive testimony from Charles R. Drew University of Medicine and Science

cloncerning the Thee of the Higher Education Alt as they Mate to the mobility of tho

Histodcaly Black Colleges and Universitys (HBCL11).

The Charles R. Draw Univerety of Medicine and SOlenoe Is one rA four historically Bleck

medical universities In the country, and the only one net of the Mlealselppi River. Our

institution represents Inrcwative approaches to developing express tor end from e

population of underwved residents. Our Willy usrusu OW rots In providing Man

care swine and educelmel opportunities to minorities who Welt not otherwise have

mos to ecluoaten *thin the environment &dr to ours. In our brief 25 years of

existence, we have:

1) Awsrded over 127 doctorate dogmas ainoe the esteblehment of OW

program In 1951. (Over 20% ars Hispanic and 45% AMosn-Amarloan).

2) Over ROD Postgraduate WumnI in 17 diecipanee;

2 R 5
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3) Over aoo akewh ki ellied Melt education, establishing the fire Physician

Assistant Program In Ce them's, which =ems to serve as a model for el others in the

nation;

4) Ten research centers of which 4 are national centers In mentel heolth, moor,

hypertension end AIDS; aid

3) Fourteen centers of excellence, bend on the need for knowledge end treink

around signincent health problems of our community among them, violence, infant

mortality, cancer, AIDS, hypertension, drug and alcoM Om, and mental health.

Despite ow accomplishments, the problems in our community ere numerous and their

nature is complex.

While Drew has only been a recipient of 1111e III funds since late 1957, those funds have

Improved the academic guilty ci our university, which hes resulted In significant

Improvement In aeademlo Metuchen and fatuity development Specifically, the Mgt B

funds have enabled us tO:

1) improve our learning resource cepebilitles so as to bring the University Into the

modem we of medial informal*

2) extend ow communication network, via satellite, to mike programs and

information related to health and education. (At Drew, we have completely

computerized our access to over 20,000 volumes.);

3) augment and extend ow librwy ospablities, both ki terms of electronic access,

as well as in the pwchasing nem holdings;

4) knprove &Womb plotting end Metitutional advancement
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6) provide assistance wfihtutodsis * students;

0) *Mate an Intermilonsi faculty exchange program;

7) opium new and brooder areas of support form governmental spondee and

6) develop a plan to raise funds, thereby improving the financial position of the

tinter*.
Moreover, the funds have assisted us in Improving our retouch capabilities by

recruiting Research Specialists. Their contributions we of paramount agnilicanos In

addressing the health problems of en undersell/4d population. For example, et Drew

University, the:

research immunologist has contributed significantly to OUf AIDS program, which

effects a population of over 10,030 persons.

- neonatologist provides ue with significant Impact on our neonatal deaths which we

have reducod by BO% over the last two years;

microbiologist has had significant Impact on our Infection °onto' In our 45 bed

hospital;

epidemiologist has provided us with en opportunity to Impact on the drug probiem

affecting more than 23,000 youth.

Without Federal usistance, It would be difficult for Drew University to roman true to Its

mission: It conduct medical education and research In the context of service to a

defoned population so as to train persons to provide care with competence end

compassion to this and other underserved populations.'

Therefore, Drew University would Ike to see 1) an overall Image in The III funding to

the HiCus to enable us to:

1) develop the critical pool of scientific based professions!s who can
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conbibute to health owe prevantIOn Wid control efforts;

2) develop new enipbyment opportunkles tor our youth in areas now open to the

future;

3) build the idustructure which promotes the development of legitimate *cadent

pursuits and knowledge advancement end

4) maintain the momentum gained in building HIstotically Ms* Colleges end

histltudons.

Our eirn. Congressman Jefferson wsd members ct the committee, le to help minorities,

wives educetional opportunities might be limited to walk taller end stand stronger.

Equipped with high self esteem end medical education end training, theee young people

can return to underserved woos end contribute to the improvement of the total

community.

111137MM
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July 22. 1091

Honorable Congressman William Jefferpon
U.S. Rouse of nepreecntetivee
506 Cannon
Washington. DC 20515

Deer Congressman Jefferson;

My name ie Jeeulyn William. from New Orleans. Louisiana. 1 mr, a
1970 graduate of Dillard University e historically Dia= Institut
ion where I earned a Bachelor of Arts degree in Business Adminis-
tration. I am oleo Vice President of Stevenson's Academy. Inc.
which *WM/ two poetaecondary careez institutions in New Orleans.
These intitution* ware founded by my mother in 1973, and we have
participated in /Federal stuaent. Ala Programs eine* 1979. 1

cver.lee the day to day administration of the Federal Student Aid
Programs at our institutions. I nave also served as an elected
member for two term* on the National Accrediting CommissiOn of
Coemetology Art* anti Science INACCAS) and State president of
the Louieiana Apeociation cot Cosmetology schools (LACS).

The importance of higher education programs and legislation are
of great concern to me. and I appreciate the opportunity to share
mom thoughts witn yuu on the Reauthorization of the Higher
Education Act.

Before I go into specific concern* and concrete recommendations,
I would like tu share with you some personal background informr
ation.

A. 1970 graduate of Historical Black University and Owner of
a Poeteecondary carver Institution which serves a primarily black
population. I am acutelY aware of the importance of Higher
Education Programs. IL waa understood from the t2011 I MOO Old
enough to *ay the word college. that I would attend. I was told
by my mother. "go to college and get a job", repeatedly. Well.
I fulfilled the "American Dream" of every mother. but unfortnate-
ly, "get a job" was the brick wall. After receiving a BaChelor
of Arts degree In Business Administration, I began to look for
the solutions to my problems and my frustrations of unemployment
by taking additional accounting courses. Altnough accounting wee
secondary as a chosen career, it did provide employment. but 1
wee very disappointed with the extremely low salary I earned ae a
college graduate. I was told It well because of my selection
of a broad major ea Business Administration. Nevertheless, I
Pereeverod. I began a career change after working five years in
the accounting field with no degree of happiness or enjoyment.

1
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NV college education wee paid for by my mother from inceele she
arned as licensed Cosmetologist and Beauty Salon Owner. 1 wee
not eligible for student aid, other than the College
merk-etudY Program.

I decided to Join my mother ir business end in less than fifteen
(15) menthe 1 had completed the Cosmetology and ?Oftener Training
Programs, was employed and I did not have to relocate. lmmadiate
ly I made an economic impact on my c/mmw111tY.

We enroll approximately env hardred (100) studente in our
Cesmetolow echeels. WO have provided (=plot:dont for over
eighteen (18) years to the comvunitY we serve.

In terms of racial mix. we nav' a population of 95% black and Wa
whit.. 311_ixtreMl_MIIndsz in OW* school le O. I consider row=
self an honest tax payiliv Weiness woman in the business or
education. I do. however. harbz.r some fears about the future of
my students. my Institut:env, and in general postsecondary educa-
tion in this country.

I see school:, closing in urban areas es a means of reducing
default rates. The premise is nnw that institutions are respons-
ible for default. rates. The Derartment's own regulations several
Years ago concluded that it did not make sense to ittaeh
Institutional Default. Rates. given the fact that a lichool wae not
PartY to a tudent loan. Bi summer of lgeg. the Department

had done a 180 degree Lunn and said yes, default* are a school
problem. kll segments invoived with defaults Should contribute
to the eolulion. The fact 111. despite more and more regulatory
burdens, the hand* of the schools are still tied. Untie them!!!

What role do I see the f.d.ral government Pleging an higher
education? I awe it as the cornerstone, a catalyst. an insurer
of acorn and choice. The federal overnment Should foment
streamlining and efficiency. Ycu seem to routinely certify that
YoUr regulations will not flocd school. with Paperwork or over-
burden them. 7Ing higher education regulations have become a
nightmare in their complexity. Wher ie efficiency and Simplicity
in ':.41 Administration going to tak place?

There was a tine when the Deportment acted in :he nature of a
Partner. a facilitator. and to lesser degree an overseer.
Our institutions ars lalooy. and black and blue from the shift.
Mind you. this I. not to way that some stiff eunilment wasn't
warranted An a number of conic.. What manY school owners are
finding in comparinv notes Is that while the traditional sector
is rarely examined, postsecondary carver institutions are the
subject of repeeted scrutiny end are marked for changes ln
policy. The latest policy iv *eye tolerance.

iC111 I
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I see increasing triple standards in dealing with the Department.
Om get of standards for the traditional Sector. Ong Set Of
standard, tor the Historically Black Universities. end one set of
standards for Postsecondery career institutions and the finger
theme days seem to be pointed at postsecondary career institut-
ions.

I urge You to suPPort the provision for Reauthorization of
the Higher Education Act which:

Increase Pell Grants for students from low family income
groups.

Be quitable and non-discriminatory and take into
account the interest of the affected students and the
contributions of those entrusted with ducation.

Restore a balance to aid programa in order
burden students with loans which create
complications. Not the least of which is
tho Part of low income students.

Promote diversity end independence ur
institutions. Somewhere the etudenti. have
ten along the way when one seeks to limit
choice.

not to over-
t' nudisr of

repayment on

Postsecondary
blown forgot-
institutional

The policies 4nd programa embodied in the new higher education
legislation will influence the Choices ot our citizens ntering
into first or second careers end will shaps the economic competi-
tiveness of our nation in the 1990's. Through reaathorization of
the Higher Education Act. I trunt rou will support the changs
outlined above which meet national educational goals and the
needs of students and institutions in the proprielery sector.

Respectfully yours.

ed4141.44,
ulyn Williams

ice President

IW/lh

(1 4 ,
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TESTIMMIT

INTRODUCTION

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee on Education and
Labor, I am Niara Budarkasa, President of Lincoln University of
Pennsylvania, which was chartered in 1854 as the lint gialin in
America for youth of African descent. It is an honor for me to
appear before you today to speak on this Foram on the mission and
achievements of Historically Black Colleges and Universities
(HICUs).

Before t begin my testimony, Chairman Hawkins, may I add my
voice of tribute to that of my colleagues who have expressed their
gratitude to you for your lasting contributions to American higher
education. W. in the historically Black college community are
especially indebted to you for your attentive ear and continuous
support. As you prepare to retire from the HOuse, please accept
our profound appreciation for your stellar service on behalf of
some of America's most important institutions, notably its schools
and colleges.

Mr. Chairman, I wish to address the Committee on the important
role historically Black colleges and universities must play if
America is to achieve the national educational goals outlined by
the President in January of this year. By way of introduction,
I wish to make same remarks about the achievements of Black
colleges, recognising full well that many of the points I make will
have been made by other speakers.

Throughout the day, the Committee has been reminded that
historically Black colleges are representative of the diversity of
higher education institutions in this country. They are; public
and private; singlo-sex and co-ed; predominantly Black or
historically Black but now predominantly white; two-yew:colleges,
four-year colleges, comprehensive universities, research
universitiei, professional schools, etc. My aim institution,
Lincoln University of Pennsylvania, illustrates that a single HBCU
might have go.* through a number of different stages in its
evolution.

Lincoln University was chartered as an all-male institution,
and remained as such for almost one hundred years. It graduated
its first woman in 1953, ninety-nine years after its founding. It
did not become fully co-educational until 1965, when women were
first allowed to reside on campus. Established as a liberal arts
college in 1854, within twelve years, Lincoln's charter was changed
to make it a full-fledged University with a law school, medical
school and seminary, in addition to the College The medical and
law schools did not survive the depression of tho 1870s, but the
seminary thrived until the late 1950s, when it was discontinued.

1
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Although Lincoln began as a private institution wtth strong
but unofficial ties to the Presbytrian church, Lincoln han
received occasional State support since the 1930s, and became one
of Pennsylvania'. four "state-related" universities in 1972. (Tho
others are Penn State, Temple, and Pittsburgh). This means that
Lincoln is now a public institution that receives a part of it.
annual budget from the State. But it also retains a quasi-private
status in that it owns land and other proportion that do not belong
to the State, and it still han a group of melt -perpetuating
truntenn, who constitute approximately one-half of its Board.

Lincoln in enpecially renowned for producing outntanding
national and international leaders. In it. firnt hundrnd years,
Lincran graduate. comprinod 20 percent of the nation'. African
AMOrican physician, and more than 10 percent of the African
American lawyer.. Its alumni have headod 36 college, and
universitien and acron of prominant churches. At leant 0 have
nerved an U.S. ambannadorn and minnion chief., and many other. have
distinguinhed themselves an tate and falderal judge., mayors,
renearch ncinntintn, educators, aviator., entrepreneurs,
journalintn, and other profennionaln.

Lincoln's roster of famoun alumni reads like a Who'n Who of
the 20th century: Poet Lang.ton Hughen; Supreme Court Justice
Thurgood Xarnhall; Ghana'. first Prenidont, Kwame Nkrumah;

firnt Prenident, NnamdiAsikiwe; and Pennnylvania'n first
Black congrennman, Robert N. C. Nix, Sr., junt to name a few.

Throughout it. hintory, Lincoln has been interracial and
international, while naintaining its primary mission of educating
African Amoricann. It graduated its firnt African ntudent in 1859,
and itn first white ntudntn in the 1860n. Lincoln in a hounehold
word in Africa, where its graduates not only include the two heads
of tate mention:id above, but coren of other well-known public
figure. who played prominent roles in the Independence movemints
and in the first national governments of the late fifties and early
ixtien. But Lincoln's training of African leader did not ntop in
the forties and fiftien. In the 1960, and arly 1970n, Lincoln
providod the orientation for the State Department-sponsored
Southern Africa tudentn' program, with the renult that it .
graduate. and former ntudentn are now found in leadernhipponitions
throughout Southern Africa. No lens than ix member of the
cabinet and legislature of the newly indepondentcountry of Namibia
are Lincoln alumni.

The hintory of Lincoln Univernity, and thane of other
hintorically Black college, and univernities, make it clear that
theme inntitutionn have had a remarkable impact through the
training of men and women who made their mark an national and
international leader.. Data compiled by the National Asnociation
for Equal Opportunity in Higher Education (NAPEO), indicate that

2
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these institutions have produced more than 50% of the nation's
African American business executives and elected officials; 75% of
the African Americans with earned doctorates; 75% of the Black
military officers, 80% of the Black federal judges and 85% of the
Black physicians.

A1though Black colleges and universities constitute only 3%
of the nation's institutions of higher learning, they enroll
approximately 27% of the African American students in college, and
award 34% of the undergraduate degrees earned by Blacks nationwide
- 59% of the bachelors degrees earned in the South. Over 50% of
the African Americans who receive bachelor degrees in mathematics
and approximately 40% of those who major in various fields of
business, ngineering, and science graduate from =Us.

Thus, today as in the past, America's BlacU colleges and
universities still assume a major share of the nation's
responsibility for providing equal educational opportunities for
African Americans. And what is most important, they are providing
students with the global-awareness, critical skills, and the
scientific and technical backgrounds that will be indispensable for
survival and success in the 21st century.

THE ROLE OP HMIs IN MINTING OUR NATIONAL EDUCRTIOXAL COALS

It is because of their special success in training students
who come to college "long on promise but short on preparation",
that Black colleges and universities can play a vital role in
helping to achieve the national educational goals outlined by the
President nearly a year ago. In his 1990 State of the Union
message, President Bush set forth the following goals for
educations

1. By the year 2000, all children in America will start school
ready to learn.

2. By the year 2000, we will increase the percentage of students
graduating from high school to at least ninety percent.

3. By the year 2000, American students will leave grades four,
eight, and twelve having demonstrated competency over
challenging subject matter, including English, mathematics,
science, history and geography.

4. By the year 2000,.U.S. students will be first in the wurld in
science and mathematics achievement.

5. By the year 2000, every adult American will be literate and
possess the knowledge and skills necessary to compete in a
global economy and exercise the rights and responsibilities of
citizenship.

3
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4. By the year 2000, every school in America will be free of drugs
and violence and offer a disciplined environment conducive to
learning.

Obviously the challenge in reaching these goals comes not from
the well-prepared students and privileged classes in our society,
but from those who are under-prepared and under-privileged. The
challenge of these goals is not simply to do better in our training
of Americans whom W.E.B. DuBois would call 'the talented tenth'
but rather to deal effectively with thosewho are presently °weeded
out' or allowed to °drop out" or °cop out" of the educational
system.

To achieve our national educational goals
'

we must realize
that the passion for excellence cannot simply trickle down from
the tops it must be the fountain froa which everything flows. Only
when we have a strategy for encouraging and enabling students at
all performance levels to strive for what the athletic coaches call
their °personal best° can we expect to raise the level of
achievement throughout our educational system.

The notion that our students can become globally competitive
will remain an idle wish unless and until we can motivate the
scholastic under-achievers to value academics &gauche@ they value
sports. Our students ilia have to appreciate that drive,
determination, dedication, and discipline can provide them with
the key to careers far more reliable and realistic in their
prospect than the remote possibility of a career in professional
sports.

Regardless of whether it is perceived or intended as such,
the establishment of national educational goals requires a
commitment to equity that is as strong as our commitment to
excellence. In fact, the message underlying the enunciation of
these goals is that any attempt to achieve excellence without
equity is short-sighted and inevitably short-lived. Quantum
improvements in the nation's overall educational performance, such
as called for in the national goals, will require substantial
improvement in the achievement levels of all students, particularly
those who are figuratively and literally at the bottom of the
class.

Clearly, success in reaching our national educational goals
will require a major commitment of funding and other resources from
federal and state governments as well as from the private sector.
The President will have to live up to his alm of becoming °the
Education President° by giving funding for this sector a much
higher priority than it now has.

Obviously, the reauthorization of the nigher Education Act of
1965 is vital to any strategy for identifying resources to achieve
our national educatiorll goals. A case can be made for increasing
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ihe funding of nearly every program funded under this legislation,
but it is particularly important that the level of funding be
increased substaatially for student financial aid and academic
support services, funded under Title rv; for teacher training and
development programs, funded under Title 114 and for aid to
historically Black colleges and other needy institutions, funded
under Title III.

Given the undisputed success of HBCOs in educating students
from poor schools, low income homes, and neighborhood environments
that discourage academic achievement, the nation should realize
that Black colleges can provide models for both teaching low
achievers and training the teachers who will teach them.

In this critical decade, Black colleges can also be encouraged
to fora more linkages with majority colleges and universities so
that our success in nurturing, mentoring and graduating Black
students can be emulated by the predominantly white institutions
at which most of our students seek an education. Demographic
realities tell us that even if all AfricanAmeri4an students wanted
to attend Black colleges, there are too few =CDs to educate all
the African American students who deserve a college education.

We at the historically Black colleges, therefore, have a great
stake in the survival and success of Black students wherever they
are. By establishing programs of academic cooperation and
collaboration with predominantly white institutions, we can pool
our respective strengths to educate greater numbers of African
Americans and.other minorities, and therebymoveour nation closer
to the educational goals enunciated by the President.

In my inaugural address delivered in September 1987, I stated
my conviction that Black colleges would continue to lead the
country in producing African American pioneers and trailblazers
because *these institutions instill in Black students what eludes
them at many predominantly white institutions - namely the boldness
to dare to compete at the cutting edge, and the confidence and
skills to succeed once they are there."

Hopefully, Hr. Chairman, this legacy of success in educating
the underprivileged as well as the talented tenth can become the
hallmark of All of American education. In enunciating the six
national educational goals, the President has challenged the nation
to duplicate the success of the Black colleges. Ma has challenged
the country to fulfill its longstanding proaise of equality of
access, and equality of opportunity for progress and success at all
levels of American education. We in the African American community
now call for the country to rise up and meet that challenge.
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PONTENCONDANT EDUCATION MUDOONNITTNE OP 112

EOM NOUCAMON AND MOE COMMIE

MUNN OM 27e 1991

UNTORICALLT IL= COLUMNS AND UNIVERSITIla

AND TIM SION= EDUCATION ACT

The establishment of Slack colleges and universities

occurred during the early 19th century when access to

education wms denied to people of African descent. At

that time, both basic and higher education warp largely

inaccessible eo African Americans, except through the

role carried by Black institutions. For over a century

and a half, these colleges and univorsities have taken

the primary responsibility for educating African

Americans.

During the last two or three decades, there have been

some noticeable shifts in public policy. These

developments, emerging from the court actions of 1954,

1964 and 1974-the Adams Case, have begun to open up

higher education institutions to w larger portion of

American society.

Notwithstanding this progress, however, current data

indicate that wide disparities still exist between Blacks
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and whites in the educational arena. These discrepancies

clearly are vident in the post-secondary arena and

particularly are glaring at the post-graduate and

professional education levels. Th historically Black

colleges and universities continue to carry the weight of

producing the preponderance of African American graduates

of higher education and from the professional schools.

Their progress would not be possible without assistance

from the federal government's Higher Education

legislation that enables Black Colleges and Universities

to be enhanced through the funding of programs under

Title III.

The increased access to higher education that exists for

poor and otherwise disadvantaged groups of students

exists only because of the financial and special program

supports authorized under Title /V. These programs must

be maintained and increased to assure the continuing

availability of higher education to those persons who

need uch critical assistance.

The mission of Historically Black Colleges and

Univ,:sities continues to be that of enabling the

American society to receive the benefits of an educated

citizenry, particularly those of African descent. These

institutions constitute a national resource that is one

2
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of the greatest assets that this country possesses to

help meet the demands of our national workforce.

It has been projected that by the turn of the century,

minorities and women will constitute the largest segment

of persons entering the American workforce. It is truly

within the best interests of American society to protect

the resources that exist in this nation's Historically

Black Colleges and Universities, for the educating of

that potential workforce. Therefore, the question should

not be whether to continue the authorization of these

higher education programs or institutions; the question

must be how much increase will be made in their funding

levels. TOs important investment is required to assure

the emergence of a positive, taxpaying workforce.

We urge the reauthorization of all aspects of the Higher

Education Act, with particular emphasis on the Title III

and Title xv programs, which so vitally affect,

Historically Black Colleges and Universities.

WILLIAM P. UTAH
VUOIOOPP
OWISISITT OP MAMA=
MURK SMORN
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